

September 20, 2019

Mr. Todd Caffoe, P.E. Project Manager Division of Environmental Remediation New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 6274 East Avon-Lima Road Avon, NY 14414

Subject: Final Feasibility Study Report, Arch Chemicals, Inc., Site No. 828018a

Dear Mr. Caffoe:

On behalf of Arch Chemicals, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lonza, Amec E & E (PC) is pleased to provide this Final Feasibility Study Report for the Arch Chemicals, Inc. site in Rochester, New York.

Sincerely,

AMEC E & E (PC)

alac

Nelson Breton Project Manager

encl.

Melissa Doroski, NYSDOH – Albany (email transmission)
 Jean Robert Jean, USEPA Region II (email transmission)
 Richard Hampson, Lonza (email transmission)
 Francien Trubia, Lonza (email transmission)
 City of Rochester Public Library - Lyell Avenue Branch (hardcopy)

AMEC E & E PC. 511 Congress Street Portland, ME 04101

2019

FEASIBILITY STUDY REPORT ARCH CHEMICALS, INC. SITE NO. 828018a

Prepared for:

Arch Chemicals, Inc. (A Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of Lonza)



Prepared by:

AMEC E & E (PC). Portland, Maine

PROJECT NO: 3616196075

September 2019

FEASIBILITY STUDY REPORT ARCH CHEMICALS, INC. SITE NO. 828018a

Prepared for:

Arch Chemicals, Inc. (A Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of Lonza)



Prepared by:

AMEC E & E (PC). Portland, Maine

PROJECT NO: 3616196075

SEPTEMBER 2019

Nelson Breton Project Manager Stuart C. Pearson, PE Senior Associate Engineer

Nathan Lewis **Project Engineer**

I Stuart C. Pearson certify that I am currently a NYS registered professional engineer as defined in 6 NYCRR Part 375 and that this Report was prepared to document background and remedy evaluations in support for the Record of Decision (NYSDEC, 2019) in general accordance the DER Technical Guidance for Site Investigation and Remediation (DER-10).

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARYES-1		
1.0	INTRODUCTION1-1	
1.1 1.2 1.3	PURPOSE OF REPORT1-1SITE BACKGROUND1-1REPORT ORGANIZATION1-2	
2.0	SITE PHYSICAL SETTING	
2.1 2.2	GEOLOGY	
3.0	NATURE AND EXTENT OF CONTAMINATION	
3.1 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.5	SURFACE SOIL3-1SUBSURFACE SOIL3-1ON-SITE GROUNDWATER3-2OFF-SITE GROUNDWATER3-2SOIL VAPOR3-3	
4.0	CONTAMINANT FATE AND TRANSPORT4-1	
4.1 4.2	FATE OF VOCS AND CHLOROPYRIDINES	
5.0	HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT5-1	
6.0 RESPO	DEVELOPMENT OF REMEDIAL ACTION OBJECTIVES, AND GENERAL NSE ACTIONS	
6.1 6.2 6.3	IDENTIFICATION OF REMEDIAL ACTION OBJECTIVES	
7.0	IDENTIFICATION AND SCREENING OF TECHNOLOGIES7-1	
7.1 7.2	TECHNOLOGY IDENTIFICATION	
8.0	DEVELOPMENT AND PRELIMINARY SCREENING OF ALTERNATIVES8-1	
 8.1 DEVELOPMENT OF REMEDIAL ALTERNATIVES		
8.2	PRELIMINARY SCREENING OF ALTERNATIVES	
9.0	DETAILED ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES9-1	
9.1 9.2 9.3 9.4	COST ANALYSIS PROCEDURES	

	EXTRACTION WELLS	9-7
10.0	COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES	10-1
10.1	COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF REMEDIAL ALTERNATIVES	10-1
11.0	RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVE	11-1
12.0	GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS	12-1
13.0	REFERENCES	13-1

FIGURES

Figure 1-1	Site Location
Figure 1-2	Monitoring Well Locations
Figure 3-1 Figure 3-2 Figure 3-3 Figure 3-4	Spring 2018 Selected Volatile Organic Compound Concentration Contours Spring 2018 Selected Chloropyridine Concentration Contours Spring 2018 Deep Bedrock Groundwater Interpreted Piezometric Contours On-Site Groundwater Extraction Withdrawals vs Quarry Seep Concentrations
Figure 8-1	Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Well Layout
Figure 8-2	Hydraulic Fracturing Pilot Test
Figure 8-3	Hydraulic Fracturing Well Influence
Figure 8-4	PW-14 Groundwater Extraction – Before and After Fracking
Figure 8-5	PW-15 Groundwater Extraction - Before and After Fracking
Figure 8-6	Proposed Hydraulic Fracturing Program

TABLES

Table 3-1	Soil Data Summary
Table 5-1	Qualitative Human Health Exposure Assessment
Table 7-1	Identification and Screening of Remedial Technologies
Table 8-1	Preliminary Screening of Remedial Alternatives
Table 9-1 Table 9-2 Table 9-3	Applicable Location- and Action-Specific Standards, Criteria, and Guidance Cost Summary for Alternative 1 - Continued Groundwater Extraction Cost Summary for Alternative 2 - Install Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells
Table 9-4	Cost Summary for Alternative 3 - Hydraulic Fracturing and Additional Groundwater Extraction Wells
Table 10-1 Table 10-2	Summary of Remedial Alternative Costs Comparative Analysis of Remedial Alternatives

Feasibility Study Report — Arch Chemicals, Inc. NYSDEC — Site No. 828018a AMEC E & E (PC). Project No. 3616196075

APPENDICES

Appendix A:	Media-Specific Standards, Criteria, and Guidance
Appendix B:	Calculations
Appendix C:	Hydraulic Fracturing Pilot Test Field Forms, Notes, and Observations
Appendix D:	Detailed Cost Analysis Backup

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report presents the findings of a Feasibility Study (FS) conducted for the Arch Chemicals, Inc. (Arch) manufacturing facility in Rochester, New York (the Site). Arch performed this FS to evaluate remedial alternatives capable of destroying or removing onsite source area contaminants of concern (COCs) and containing the off-site migration of COCs to protect human health and the environment.

Arch initially completed an FS in January 2000 (Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2000) to develop and evaluate remedial alternatives intended to protect human health and the environment. An addendum to the FS was submitted to the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) in April 2015 (Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2015). The addendum specifically reevaluated source area treatment in light of new remediation technologies and approaches that may be able to destroy source area contamination or increase the rate of contaminant mass removal. This FS is intended to address both potential human health and environmental exposures to contaminated media and source removal and containment of groundwater. More specifically, remedial action objectives are identified to prevent:

- 1) Ingestion of groundwater with contaminant levels exceeding drinking water standards,
- 2) contact with, or inhalation of volatile organic compounds, from contaminated groundwater, and
- 3) discharge of contaminants to surface water.

Soil remedial and soil vapor remedial action objectives are identified to mitigate impact to public health for soil vapor exposure and to prevent:

- 1) Ingestion/direct contact with contaminated soil and
- 2) inhalation of or exposure from contaminants volatilizing from

contaminants in soil, and

3) migration of contaminants that would result in groundwater or surface water contamination.

Ongoing remedial actions at the Site (groundwater extraction, treatment, and discharge to publicly owned treatment works) in addition to groundwater use limitations and monitoring are protective of human health and provide a remediation strategy for affected media (groundwater).

Technologies were identified and screened to assess their effectiveness in removing or treating contaminated on-site groundwater in the contaminant source areas and provide protection to off-site receptors. Three alternatives were selected for further evaluation:

• Alternative 1, Groundwater Extraction, involves no further action to reduce

groundwater contamination beyond operating the existing groundwater extraction and treatment system and was developed as a baseline against which to compare the other remedial alternatives.

- Alternative 2, Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells, includes installation of up to two horizontal groundwater extraction wells, continued long-term groundwater monitoring, and operation, maintenance, and monitoring of the groundwater extraction system. One horizontal well would be installed along an east-west alignment and would target the source areas beneath the manufacturing building and near monitoring well B-17. A second well, if deemed necessary, would be installed along the western property boundary in a north-south alignment to aid in groundwater capture and control. The inclusion of horizontal groundwater extraction wells would accelerate the removal and treatment of remaining groundwater contamination.
- Alternative 3, Hydraulic Fracturing and Additional Groundwater Extraction Wells, would use hydraulic fracturing, commonly referred to as fracking, to increase groundwater flow through the bedrock fractures and increase contaminant mass removal. Fracking uses pressurized fluid to open and develop fractures within bedrock. Alternative 3 consists of fracking the shallow bedrock zone along three alignments within the contaminant source area, installation of one vertical groundwater extraction well within each fractured alignment, long term groundwater monitoring, and operation, maintenance, and monitoring of the enhanced groundwater extraction system. Fracking the shallow bedrock zone and expanding the network of groundwater extraction wells is intended to accelerate the removal and treatment of remaining groundwater contamination. As part of the evaluation of Alternative 3, Arch contracted Nothnagle Drilling, Inc. (Nothnagle) to perform a hydraulic fracturing pilot test in September 2012. The objective of the pilot test was to observe if hydraulic fracturing would improve the bulk permeability and connectivity of fractures within a historically low yield portion of the shallow bedrock. Overall, the pilot test demonstrated inconsistent results at improving bedrock permeability between wells and has not resulted in increased performance at extraction wells within the pilot test area, PW-14 and PW-15.

All remedial alternatives were retained for detailed analysis. As a result of the detailed analysis and comparison of alternatives, it is recommended that Arch and the NYSDEC select Alternative 2, Install Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells, as the preferred remedy for the Site. While Alternative 3 is comparable in nature and cost to Alternatives 1 and 2, the hydraulic fracturing pilot test demonstrated inconsistent results at increasing connectivity between wells on site. Furthermore, the pilot test did not increase groundwater extraction rates from wells PW-14 and PW-15, suggesting limited potential for Alternative 3 to increase mass removal rates from the shallow bedrock zone. Alternative 3 would offer limited benefit at a comparatively higher cost. While Alternative 2 is similar to Alternative 1 in approach, Alternative 2 would allow for installation of hundreds of additional feet of well screen in zones of contamination while only requiring the installation and costing in this report would be further refined as part of the design phase based on a more detailed evaluation of field conditions. Overall, Alternative 2 provides the best balance of all the evaluation criteria and offers the best opportunity to increase source area contaminant mass

removal and protect human health and the environment in the most cost-effective manner.

To address potential exposure to contaminants in soil, soil vapor, and groundwater on-site, Arch will provide for institutional controls. These institutional controls will be documented in a Site Management Plan and would be consistent with the recommended Alternative S2 that was identified in the 2000 FS (Arch Chemicals Inc., 2000).

Specifically, institutional controls in the form of an environmental easement for the property will consist of the following elements:

- a periodic certification of institutional and engineering controls in accordance with Title 6 of New York Codes, Rules and Regulations Part 375-1.8 (h)(3);
- allow the use and development of the property for industrial use as defined by Part 375-1.8(g);
- restrict the use of groundwater as a source of potable or process water, without necessary water quality treatment as determined by the New York State Department of Health (NYSDOH) or County DOH; and
- require compliance with a Site Management Plan to be approved by the NYSDEC.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This report presents the findings of a Feasibility Study (FS) conducted for the Arch Chemicals, Inc. (Arch) manufacturing facility in Rochester, New York (the Site). Arch Chemicals is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lonza, a leading supplier to the global life sciences, healthcare and pharmaceutical industries headquartered in Basel, Switzerland. Arch performed this FS to evaluate remedial alternatives capable of destroying or removing on-site source area contamination as well as containing the off-site migration of these contaminants to protect human health and the environment. The primary contaminants of concern (COCs) in the source area include chloropyridines and volatile organic compounds (VOCs).

Arch initially completed an FS in January 2000 (Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2000) to fulfill part of the requirements of the Consent Order between the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) and Olin (Index No. B8-0343-90-08), dated 23 August 1993. That FS developed and evaluated remedial alternatives intended to protect human health and the environment. Alternatives protected human health and the environment by controlling, treating, or removing contaminated soil and groundwater. The recommended alternatives primarily addressed off-site groundwater through hydraulic control of contamination using extraction systems, treatment, discharge to publicly owned treatment works (POTW), and groundwater monitoring.

In the January 2000 FS, more aggressive approaches to destroy source area contamination were not recommended due to the infeasibility of oxidizing, degrading, or volatilizing chloropyridines. A draft FS Addendum (Arch Chemicals Inc., 2015) was prepared to specifically reevaluate source area treatment in light of new remediation technologies and approaches that may have been able to destroy source area contamination or increase the rate of contaminant mass removal. In accordance with NYSDEC Division of Environmental Remediation (DER)-10's (NYSDEC, 2010) preferred hierarchy of remediating contaminant sources, the alternatives evaluated in the FS Addendum emphasized removal and/or treatment of grossly contaminated on-site groundwater to the greatest extent feasible. This FS is intended to address both removal and/or treatment and containment of groundwater to protect human health and the environment.

1.1 Purpose of Report

This FS Report presents changes to the conceptual site model since the January 2000 FS, identifies a complete set of Remedial Action Objectives (RAOs) to protect public health and the environment, and presents remedial alternatives to satisfy the RAOs.

1.2 Site Background

The Site includes a chemical manufacturing plant located at 100 McKee Road, Rochester, Monroe County, New York (**Figure 1-1**). The plant property occupies approximately 19.5 acres (see **Figure 1-2**).

The Site has been the subject of various environmental investigations since the early 1980s, including, but not limited to, a groundwater investigation conducted in 1990, a two-phase remedial investigation (RI) conducted in 1994-96, and an FS conducted in 2000. A prior Consent Order was executed in August 1993, between Olin Corporation (the former owner) for the implementation of an RI and FS. Arch implemented a portion of the previously recommended remedial alternative in the 2000 FS for the Site after Arch entered into a new Consent Order with the NYSDEC to implement the requirements of the NYSDEC's Record of Decision (ROD) in August 2003. The recommended remedial alternative included groundwater extraction and treatment to maintain hydraulic control of groundwater at the property boundary. Groundwater extraction system operations, maintenance, and upgrades have occurred as needed from August 2000 to the present. Extracted groundwater is conveyed by pipeline to a treatment system prior to discharge to the Monroe County Pure Waters POTW. The recommended remedial alternative also included a provision for installing and operating a downgradient extraction well near the Dolomite Products quarry on Buffalo Road; however, subsequent monitoring and an updated risk evaluation have demonstrated that potential exposure risks at the guarry are below levels of concern. The NYSDEC has indicated that installation of the downgradient extraction well is no longer required (MACTEC, 2005).

1.3 Report Organization

Arch structured this FS report in general accordance with NYSDEC DER-10 (NYSDEC, 2010) guidance for remedy selection. The following is an outline and summary of the FS report sections:

Section 2.0 Physical Setting:

Section 2.0 briefly summarizes the physical characteristics of the Site as presented in the 2000 FS (Arch Chemicals Inc, 2000).

Section 3.0 Nature and Extent of Contamination:

Section 3.0 briefly summarizes the nature and extent of contamination as presented in the 2000 FS along with an update to the understanding of the nature and extent of contamination. This update is based on sampling and monitoring programs from January 2000 to May 2018.

Section 4.0 Contaminant Fate and Transport:

Section 4.0 briefly summarizes the fate and transport of the site contaminants.

Section 5.0 Human Health Risk Assessment:

Section 5.0 summarizes previous risk evaluations for human health and the environment and presents a qualitative human health risk assessment for current and future land use.

Section 6.0 Development of Remedial Action Objectives and General Response

Actions:

Section 6.0 presents the RAOs and General Response Actions targeted in this FS.

Section 7.0 Identification of Technologies and Alternatives:

Section 7.0 identifies potential remedial technologies and alternatives. This FS does not repeat the conventional FS process of comprehensively identifying and screening technologies, combining retained technologies into remedial alternatives, and then screening those alternatives. In part, this FS uses the 2015 FS Addendum to help screen out technologies that were deemed infeasible, allowing the FS to focus on a limited number of technologies and alternatives that have the potential to reduce source area contamination and protect human health and the environment.

Section 8.0 Development and Preliminary Screening of Alternatives:

In **Section 8.0**, technologies retained from Section 7 are assembled into potential sitespecific remedial alternatives capable of achieving the RAOs. Alternatives that cannot achieve RAOs are screened out.

Section 9.0 Detailed Analysis of Alternatives:

Section 9.0 presents the detailed analyses of remedial alternatives for the Site. The detailed analysis provides decision-makers with relevant information to aid in selecting a supplementary Site remedy.

Section 10.0 Comparative Analysis of Alternatives:

In **Section 10.0**, the relative performance of each alternative is evaluated using the same criteria from the detailed analysis of alternatives. The comparative analysis identifies advantages and disadvantages of each alternative relative to one another to aid in selecting a supplementary Site remedy.

Section 11.0 Recommended Alternative:

Section 11.0 summarizes the conclusions of the comparative analysis and presents the recommended alternative.

Section 12.0 Glossary of Acronyms and Abbreviations:

Section 12.0 defines acronyms and abbreviations used in the text of this report.

Section 13.0 References:

Section 13.0 lists the references used in the preparation of this report. Supporting information is included in the Appendices attached to this Report.

2.0 SITE PHYSICAL SETTING

The physical characteristics especially relevant to remediation of the contamination source area are presented in this section. Additional information on site physical characteristics is available in the 2000 FS.

2.1 Geology

Glacially deposited sands and silty sands constitute local surface geology. Local fill, interpreted as recompacted glacial sediments, covers the sand and silty sands. This report refers to the undisturbed sediment and fill as overburden. Overburden thickness ranges from approximately 10 to 20 feet.

Lockport Dolomite bedrock underlies the overburden. The bedrock surface elevation ranges from approximately 520 to 530 feet above mean sea level. A fractured upper bedrock zone ranges in thickness from 11 to 40 feet (or 27 to 54 feet below ground surface [bgs]). Fractures within the upper zone appear to be primarily near-horizontal. Below the upper zone, the bedrock becomes less fractured and more competent.

2.2 Hydrogeology

Groundwater flow occurs primarily in the saturated portions of the overburden and the uppermost 10 feet of bedrock. No significant barrier to flow between the overburden and the upper bedrock has been identified. However, the degree of hydraulic communication between the overburden and bedrock units varies locally due in large part to heterogeneities in the shallow bedrock.

The groundwater table in the overburden is generally less than 10 feet bgs throughout the property. Overburden groundwater exists beneath the site but is absent in areas west and southwest of the site in the direction of the Erie Barge Canal. The presence of a drainage area along the railroad right-of-way just east of the Arch site serves as a significant recharge area for groundwater that results in a mound along the eastern property boundary. This is the primary feature that controls overburden and bedrock groundwater flow at the Site. Other factors that influence flow include: bedrock surface topography, the location of the canal, the nature and distribution of water-bearing fractures, and flow direction in bedrock.

Historical piezometric contours indicate that overburden groundwater flows primarily west and south from the plant toward the Erie Barge Canal and Buffalo Road. An easterly and southeasterly flow component is also present along the east and the southeast corner of the site. Groundwater in shallow and deeper bedrock flows primarily west and south toward the Dolomite Products Quarry in the Town of Gates. Groundwater discharges into quarry the along vertical bedrock seepage faces. The driving force for groundwater appears to be ongoing dewatering in the quarry.

Historical overburden piezometric contours suggest a southerly horizontal component of flow near the southern boundary of the plant. However, when compared to shallow bedrock

piezometric contours, the data also indicate a strong downward vertical gradient beneath the plant, suggesting a downward flow path for overburden groundwater.

Hydraulic conductivity estimates calculated from the Phase I RI for the water bearing zones range as follows:

- Overburden: 1.9 x 10⁻⁵ to 7.7 x 10⁻³ centimeters per second (cm/sec)
- Shallow bedrock: 4.0 x 10⁻⁵ to 1.17 x 10⁻² cm/sec
- Deeper bedrock: 1×10^{-6} to 2.4×10^{-4} cm/sec.

While the overburden and shallow bedrock ranges are similar, experience with pumping well operations at this site over the past 25 to 30 years indicates that the transmissivity of the shallow bedrock is noticeably greater than the saturated overburden zone.

3.0 NATURE AND EXTENT OF CONTAMINATION

This section summarizes the results of the field investigations performed at the Site prior to the FS and the current nature and extent of contamination. Summarized results are provided for treatment and containment alternatives analyzed in this FS. For more detailed characterization of off-site media, refer to the 2000 FS.

3.1 Surface Soil

Surface soil samples were collected from several areas at the facility as part of the RI. Analytical results were presented in **Table 4-2** as part of that report (ABB, 1995).

Constituents exceeding site cleanup objectives (SCOs) or background levels included metals, semi-volatile organic compounds (SVOCs including chloropyridine isomers), and one VOC (chloroform). The location of the maximum concentration of chloroform and many of the SVOCs (including chloropyridines) was in the Well B-17 Area, shown on **Figure 3-1**. SVOCs exceeding SCOs were noted sporadically in surface soils and mercury was detected in the former Lab Sample Disposal Area in surface soil within a small central portion of the Site. These locations are currently under asphalt pavement or part of an existing railway bed located on site.

3.2 Subsurface Soil

Soil boring samples were collected across the Site as part of the RI from over 25 soil borings. Subsurface soil investigation was focused on six different potential source areas, shown on **Figure 3-1**:

- Well B-17 Area
- Former Lab Sample Disposal Area
- Sodamide Area
- Former Tank Farm Area
- TDA Area
- Well BR-5 Area

The highest concentrations of VOCs, chloropyridines, and other SVOCs in soil were detected in the paved alcove located immediately east of the main plant building in the Well B-17 Area. This was noted as the main source area of groundwater contamination as the result of underground sewer leaks from the main plant. Most of the soil contamination is confined to depths between 8 and 18 feet bgs. Given this result and several plant expansions over the years, it is most likely that contamination extends beneath the footprint of the main plant. **Table 3-1** provides a summary of analytical results for key chemical

constituents (chlorinated VOCs and chloropyridines) in soil from each of these areas. The approximate limits of the Well B-17 source area are shown on **Figures 3-1 and 3-2**.

3.3 On-site Groundwater

SVOCs (mainly chloropyridines), VOCs, and inorganic analytes were detected in overburden and bedrock groundwater beneath the Site. Chloropyridines were the most frequently detected organic chemicals in both overburden and bedrock groundwater. The distribution of chloropyridines is believed to represent the greatest extent of site-derived constituents in the groundwater and is considered representative of SVOC distribution at the Site – further references in the report to the extent of SVOC contamination will simply refer to the extent of the chloropyridines.

Figures 3-1 and 3-2 show the extent of VOC and chloropyridine contamination in groundwater based on the May 2018 sampling event. Refer to the full Spring 2018 Groundwater Monitoring Report (Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2018) for a current summary of contaminant concentrations and distributions.

In general, maximum chloropyridine and VOC concentrations are near the main plant building in both overburden and shallow bedrock wells. Total chloropyridine concentrations are lower in deep bedrock wells than in adjacent shallow bedrock wells.

3.4 Off-site Groundwater

Sampling completed as part of the Phase II RI in the 1990's in addition to ongoing monitoring of downgradient wells, seeps, and surface water provides data to support an understanding of the distribution of chemicals that have migrated off site. The bulk of dissolved VOC and chloropyridines in groundwater migrate into bedrock groundwater to the west and southwest and toward the Dolomite Products Quarry in the Town of Gates.

Ongoing monitoring indicates that VOCs in overburden and shallow bedrock groundwater extend a few hundred feet off site from the plant. Chloropyridines are present in overburden and shallow bedrock in the area of the Site but have migrated into deep groundwater along a migration pathway that ends at a seep at the Dolomite Products Quarry. The driving force for chloropyridines moving to the quarry appears to be ongoing dewatering in the quarry. The migration pathway to deeper zones in bedrock may be caused by preferential pathways due to fracture patterns. Alternatively, it could be the result of historical groundwater pumping at locations between the Site and the quarry that have drawn groundwater to the southwest. **Figure 3-3** from Spring 2018 shows the interpreted groundwater flow for deep bedrock groundwater and the location of the quarry seepage face.

At the Dolomite quarry, sampling has been conducted since the mid-1990's from the quarry seep where groundwater discharges along the eastern face of the quarry wall (see **Figure 3-3**). Sampling has also been conducted from water discharged from the quarry.

A time-series plot for total chloropyridines representing the sum of 2-chloropyridine, 2,6dichloropyridine, 3-chloropyridine, 4-chloropyridine, p-fluoroaniline, and pyridine for the quarry seep is provided on **Figure 3-4**. The time-series plot also shows the total volume of groundwater extracted from on-site wells each year since 2000. The chart provides an indicator of the impact of groundwater extraction over the years.

3.5 Soil Vapor

Soil gas sampling was performed as part of the Phase 1 RI (the analytical results of which can be found in **Table 4-1** of that report). The results of the sampling suggested that the concentration of VOCs in soil gas mimicked the distribution of VOCs in the overburden groundwater (ABB, 1995). Additional on- and off-site soil vapor sampling was performed in 2006 to evaluate the impacts to indoor air at the Site and adjacent properties.

On-site indoor air was evaluated at three locations: the Office Area, the Warehouse Area, and the Production Area. Each area had contaminants present in indoor air that pose cancer risks in excess of the New York State Department of Health (NYSDOH) point of departure $(1x10^{-6})$, but comparison of soil vapor and indoor air data suggested that the primary source of indoor air contamination is not soil gas (Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2006a). Chloropyridine compounds are produced in the facility, acting as another potential source.

Off-site indoor air was evaluated at the neighboring American Recycling and Manufacturing and Firth Rixon buildings. Potential complete vapor migration pathways were identified in both facilities, but again, comparison of soil vapor and indoor air sample suggest that soil gas is not the sole, or even the primary source of indoor air contamination (Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2006b). Additional information from the facility owners would be necessary to determine whether the compounds identified are present in indoor air as a result of current occupational uses.

4.0 CONTAMINANT FATE AND TRANSPORT

This section summarizes the fate and transport of source area contaminants as presented in the 2000 FS (Arch Chemicals Inc., 2000).

4.1 Fate of VOCs and Chloropyridines

The physical-chemical properties of VOCs and chloropyridines were previously evaluated to assess the importance of biodegradation, adsorption, volatilization, and dissolution as fate processes. Dissolution and degradation were identified as the most significant fate processes for VOCs. Biodegradation, photo-oxidation, and to a lesser degree volatilization were identified as the most important fate processes for pyridines, although in general chloropyridines are more persistent than pyridine and increasing the number of halogen substituents increases the persistence of the pyridine ring (ABB, 1995).

Given the high dissolved phase concentrations of VOCs and chloropyridines in on-site wells, Arch cannot discount the possibility that residual dense non-aqueous-phase liquid (DNAPL) may exist in bedrock fractures and prior to the 1990s separate phase product was observed in two bedrock wells. However, routine semiannual screening of groundwater monitoring and extraction wells continues to show no accumulation of DNAPL in the on-site wells. DNAPL may also be present within bedrock as a result of matrix diffusion.

4.2 Migration of VOCs and Chloropyridines

Based on the physical-chemical properties of site-related constituents presented in the Phase I RI Report, dissolved-phase transport in groundwater is considered the primary migration pathway.

The active groundwater extraction and treatment system limits off-site migration of contamination in groundwater. With the exception of well BR-127, located near the eastern property boundary, all of the bedrock recovery wells extract groundwater from the primary source area or from along the site boundary to the west of this area, intercepting the primary contaminant migration pathway.

Although contamination is also present in the overburden, the comparatively low permeability of this unit and the observed strong downward vertical gradients minimize the potential for significant off-site migration within the overburden. In addition, there is an absence of saturated overburden to the west of the Site.

Contaminants have migrated to the bedrock beneath the facility and are acting as an ongoing source for the groundwater contamination; no barrier to flow between the overburden and the upper bedrock has been identified (ABB, 1995). As discussed in **Section 3.3**, chloropyridines have also migrated to the Dolomite Products Quarry east of the Site. The quarry serves as the endpoint for the chloropyridine plume where groundwater cascades down into a holding pond that mixes with stormwater that is then pumped to a surface ditch that discharges into the Erie Canal.

5.0 HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT

Potential human health risks at the Site were identified in the 2000 FS and Phase I and Phase II RI Reports as follows:

- populations of humans that may be present at and in the vicinity of the Site were identified;
- exposure pathways by which those humans may be exposed to Site contamination were identified; and
- the significance of exposure that may occur through the potential exposure pathways were evaluated.

The results of the previous human health risk assessment are used to establish site-wide RAOs that were utilized in the selection of the remedial action for the site. Where applicable, those risks are assessed in **Section 9** of this report, along with other factors, such as effectiveness in accomplishing contaminant mass reduction, technical and administrative implementability, and cost.

A quantitative exposure assessment was conducted as part of the Phase I RI and was summarized in the 2000 FS. A qualitative human risk exposure assessment is provided as part of this FS. The purpose of a qualitative human risk exposure assessment is to evaluate and document how people might be exposed to site-related contaminants and to identify and characterize the potentially exposed populations now and under the reasonably anticipated future use of the Site.

Site-related chemicals (VOCs and chloropyridines) have been detected in on-site samples of soil vapor, surface soil, subsurface soil, and in both on-site and off-site groundwater. The distribution of these constituents is believed to be the result of leaching of chemicals from materials at the plant by infiltrating precipitation or former percolation of materials through the unsaturated overburden to the groundwater. The highest concentrations of the contaminants have been observed in on-site groundwater in the shallow bedrock zone. Concentrations in groundwater have historically been high enough that they suggest the presence of DNAPL, and a separate phase liquid was observed in two bedrock wells prior to the 1990's, but none was been observed during the Phase I and II RIs in the 1990's or during routine monitoring since that time.

The fate and transport analysis provided in the Phase I RI identified dissolved-phase transport in groundwater as the primary mode of transport for contaminants; soils are not expected to migrate off-site, and only one sample of soil vapor was observed slightly above the air standard within the facility. Within the shallow bedrock zone, groundwater flows primarily south and west, but is strongly influenced by bedrock pumping wells located at the boundaries of the Site.

Given the location and behavior of the contaminants and the industrial/commercial use of the Site, the 2000 FS identified a limited number of potential exposure pathways: on-site

facility and non-facility commercial/industrial workers may contact contaminated surface soils; older children and adult recreational boaters/swimmers and adult recreational anglers may be exposed to surface water in the Erie Barge Canal, a major surface water feature where chloropyridines have historically been observed at levels just above or below the detection limit; and workers at the Dolomite Products Quarry, located downgradient of the Site where chloropyridines have historically been observed, may be exposed to groundwater seeps. Future use of the Site and the surrounding properties are anticipated to be the same as current use; future exposure pathways may include on-site construction workers exposed to surface soil and overburden groundwater, off-site construction workers exposed to overburden groundwater, and off-site commercial/industrial workers who may be exposed to groundwater used as industrial process water.

Based on additional investigations and monitoring conducted since the 2000 FS, the anticipated routes of exposure have changed. On-site subsurface soils still exceed standards, criteria, and guidance (SCG) values (presented in **Appendix A**) but are located below pavement near the soil/bedrock interface. A potential exposure pathway exists for commercial/industrial and construction workers in the event that future construction activity unearths the contaminated soil, allowing for direct contact and incidental ingestion.

Contaminants have been observed in both on- and off-site groundwater exceeding SCG values, but the site and surrounding area are served by public water that is unaffected by this contamination. The groundwater is otherwise not potable and the downgradient properties potentially affected by the off-site contamination are all commercial and industrial, so it is unlikely that a private well will be installed that would expose residents or workers to contaminants at the Erie Barge Canal, which is no longer believed to be a potential exposure pathway, and a risk assessment was performed at the Dolomite Products Quarry that determined that there was no risk to quarry workers from exposure to the quarry seep (MACTEC, 2005). However, there does still exist a potential exposure pathway for commercial/industrial and construction workers who may have direct contact with groundwater in the event of future construction work that excavates below the water table at the Site.

Soil vapor sampling has been conducted at the western and southern edges of the Site annually from 2006 to 2009, and an off-site soil vapor intrusion study was performed in 2006 on the American Recycling and Manufacturing and Firth Rixson facilities. Elevated concentrations of contaminants have been observed in on-site soil vapor, but indoor air sampling has not identified concentrations exceeding Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Permissible Exposure Limits (PELs) for occupational exposure. Offsite soil vapor samples did identify several contaminants resulting in 1x10⁻⁶ or greater excess lifetime cancer risk or a hazard index of 1 or greater for non-cancer risks, calculated consistent with United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) guidance. However, soil vapor intrusion was not definitively identified as the sole or primary source of contamination and the observed concentrations were well below OSHA PELs (Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2006b). This monitoring suggests there is no current risk to off-site workers because indoor air concentrations both on- and off-site were observed below applicable

Feasibility Study Report — Arch Chemicals, Inc. NYSDEC — Site No. 828018a AMEC E & E (PC). Project No. 3616196075

OSHA PELs. However, there is still a potential for inhalation of contaminants for commercial/industrial and construction workers who may be exposed due to future construction activity or change in use of the buildings.

The results of this qualitative human health exposure assessment are summarized in **Table 5-1**.

6.0 DEVELOPMENT OF REMEDIAL ACTION OBJECTIVES, AND GENERAL RESPONSE ACTIONS

6.1 Identification of Remedial Action Objectives

RAOs are the specific goals that must be achieved by the remedial actions evaluated in this FS. RAOs therefore form the basis for identifying remedial technologies and developing remedial alternatives. Remedial alternatives are intended to restore the Site to pre-disposal conditions to the extent feasible and to conform to promulgated standards and criteria that are directly applicable or that are relevant and appropriate. Selection of remedies is influenced by their ability to achieve RAOs and to conform to applicable standards and criteria and must take into account appropriate standards, criteria, and guidance (hereafter called SCGs). NYSDOH and NYSDEC have developed media-specific SCGs to identify whether contaminant concentrations pose a risk to the environment; they are included as **Appendix A**.

Conventionally, RAOs are medium-specific or operable unit-specific goals established to protect public health and the environment. The RAOs are risk-based in that they are selected to address specific potential exposure pathways for each of the identified media of concern, as identified in the risk assessment. This FS has developed RAOs that represent a comprehensive set of goals to evaluate alternatives for the protection of public health and the environment.

Soil RAOs

- Prevent ingestion/direct contact with contaminated soil
- Prevent inhalation of or exposure from contaminants volatilizing from contaminants in soil
- Prevent migration of contaminants that would result in groundwater or surface water contamination.

Groundwater RAOs

- Prevent ingestion of groundwater with contaminant levels exceeding drinking water standards
- Prevent contact with, or inhalation of volatiles, from contaminated groundwater.
- Prevent the discharge of contaminants to the surface water
- Remove the source of ground or surface water contamination.

Soil Vapor RAOs

• Mitigate impacts to public health resulting from existing, or the potential for, soil vapor intrusion into buildings at the Site

Implementation of the selected remedial alternative(s), along with institutional controls are planned to control risks for potential exposure to contaminants in soil, soil vapor, and groundwater on site. Institutional controls will be documented in a Site Management Plan and will be consistent with the recommended Alternative S2 that was identified in the 2000 FS (Arch Chemicals, Inc, 2000).

Specifically, institutional controls in the form of an environmental easement for the controlled property will consist of the following elements:

- a periodic certification of institutional and engineering controls in accordance with Title 6 of the New York Codes, Rules and Regulations (NYCRR) Part 375-1.8 (h)(3);
- allow the use and development of the property for industrial use as defined by Part 375-1.8(g);
- restrict the use of groundwater as a source of potable or process water, without necessary water quality treatment as determined by the NYSDOH or County DOH; and
- require compliance with a Site Management Plan to be approved by the NYSDEC.

6.2 Identification of General Response Actions

General response actions describe those actions that will satisfy the RAOs (USEPA, 1988). General response actions may include treatment, containment, excavation, disposal, institutional actions, or a combination of these. Like RAOs, general response actions are medium-specific. General response actions include those applicable to human health and environmental exposure as well as groundwater source control and migration at the Site. The following general response actions would address the RAOs identified for the Site:

- no further action continued groundwater containment, extraction, and treatment (groundwater migration)
- enhanced extraction (groundwater migration with source control)
- in-situ groundwater treatment (groundwater source control)
- institutional controls (soil, soil vapor, and groundwater exposure)

No further action would involve no additional measures beyond operation and maintenance of the current system to extract and treat contaminated groundwater. Enhanced extraction would extract more contaminated groundwater using additional pumping wells to supplement the existing extraction and treatment system. In-situ groundwater treatment would treat contaminated groundwater in-place, within the saturated overburden and bedrock.

6.3 Extent of Media Requiring Remedial Action

This subsection identifies the extent of contaminated media to which the RAOs and general response actions identified above, and the remedial alternatives to be developed in **Section 8.0**, will apply. Due to lower VOC concentrations off site, the horizontal extent of VOC contamination targeted by the active portions of remedial action focuses on the areas on site having the highest VOC mass (e.g. in the Well B-17 Area and other areas on site). These areas are generally within the 1,000 microgram per liter (μ g/L) concentration contour as shown on **Figure 3-1**. Other media and areas where on-site groundwater concentrations are greater than SCGs (presented in **Appendix A**) outside of the 1,000 μ g/L concentration contour of concern for VOC contamination include wells PZ-106, PZ-107, PW-15, PW-17 and B-17.

The horizontal extent of chloropyridine contamination targeted by the active portions of remedial action focuses on the areas of highest chloropyridine mass. These areas are generally within the 10,000 μ g/L concentration contour as shown on **Figure 3-2**. Areas of on-site groundwater concentrations greater than SCGs (presented in **Appendix A**) outside of the 10,000 μ g/L concentration contour will be addressed with institutional controls to prevent exposure. Specific locations of concern for chloropyridine contamination include wells B-17, BR-8, PW-15, PW-16, and PZ-106.

The vertical extent of groundwater contamination for both VOCs and chloropyridines extends throughout the saturated zone and into bedrock. Remedies will generally target the saturated overburden and the first five to ten feet of underlying bedrock. The significant fracturing of this upper zone of weathered bedrock contains the majority of bedrock contamination.

The horizontal extent of soil contamination subject to RAOs for both VOCs and chloropyridines is shown on **Figures 3-1 and 3-2**. In the RI, the extent of soil contamination was evaluated in six different potential release areas indicated on **Figure 3-1**, but active treatment alternatives focus on what has been identified as the main source area by well B-17. Soil contamination outside the source area will be addressed with institutional controls to prevent exposure.

The vertical extent of soil contamination for both VOCs and chloropyridines is primarily confined to depths between 8 and 18 feet below ground surface as identified in the RI (ABB, 1995). Active remedy components will target this interval; contaminated soils outside of the treatment interval will be addressed with institutional controls to prevent exposure.

Soil gas sampling performed as part of the RI suggested that concentrations of VOCs in soil vapor mimicked the distribution of VOCs in the overburden groundwater (ABB, 1995). Subsequent indoor air and subslab sampling identified that soil vapor potential migration

Feasibility Study Report — Arch Chemicals, Inc. NYSDEC — Site No. 828018a AMEC E & E (PC). Project No. 3616196075

pathways were present in on- and off-site buildings but that soil vapor was not the sole or primary source of indoor air contamination (Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2006b). As a result, no immediate risk is posed by soil vapor, which will be addressed by institutional controls to prevent exposure.

Remedial alternatives will be developed in **Section 8.0** with consideration for the horizontal and vertical distribution of the contaminants.

7.0 IDENTIFICATION AND SCREENING OF TECHNOLOGIES

This section describes the identification and screening of potential remedial technologies. Technologies are identified for the purpose of attaining the RAOs established in **Subsection 6.1**. Identified technologies correspond to the categories of general response actions described in **Subsection 6.2**.

Following identification, candidate technologies are screened based on applicability to siteand contaminant-limiting characteristics. Potential technologies representing the range of general response actions are considered. The screening produces an inventory of suitable technologies that can be assembled into remedial alternatives capable of mitigating actual or potential risks at the Site.

The 2000 FS (Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2000) and subsequent indoor air sampling on and off site (Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2006a) has shown that there is no risk posed by soil vapor unless workers are disturbing the building slab. Rather than generate several candidate technologies for screening, institutional controls was selected as the presumptive technology to address soil vapor.

7.1 Technology Identification

Remedial technologies presumed to be effective at treating common contaminant groups were identified to generate the list of applicable remedial technologies and associated process options presented in **Table 7-1**.

7.2 Technology Screening

The technology screening process reduces the number of potentially applicable technologies and process options by evaluating factors that may influence process-option effectiveness and implementability. This overall screening is consistent with guidance for developing and evaluating remedial alternatives for an FS under DER-10 (NYSDEC, 2010). Effectiveness and implementability are incorporated into two screening criteria: waste- and site-limiting characteristics. Waste-limiting characteristics consider the suitability of a technology based on contaminant types, individual compound properties (e.g., volatility, solubility, specific gravity, adsorption potential, and biodegradability), and interactions that may occur between mixtures of compounds. Site-limiting characteristics consider the effect of site-specific physical features on the implementability of a technology, such as site topography and geology, the location of buildings and underground utilities, available space, and proximity to sensitive operations. Technology screening serves the two-fold purpose of screening out technologies whose applicability is limited by waste- or site-specific considerations while retaining as many potentially applicable technologies as possible.

Table 7-1 presents the technology-screening process. Technologies and process options judged ineffective or prohibitively difficult to implement were eliminated from further consideration. Among those technologies in this table that were eliminated from further

Feasibility Study Report — Arch Chemicals, Inc. NYSDEC — Site No. 828018a AMEC E & E (PC). Project No. 3616196075

evaluation was in-situ treatment which was evaluated and considered in the FS Addendum (Arch Chemicals Inc., 2015). The technologies retained following screening represent an inventory of technologies considered most suitable for remediation of soil at the Site and may be used alone or integrated with other technologies to develop remedial alternatives.

8.0 DEVELOPMENT AND PRELIMINARY SCREENING OF ALTERNATIVES

The retained technologies identified in **Table 7-1** are considered technically feasible and applicable to the waste types and physical conditions at the Site. These medium-specific technologies were assembled into potential site-specific remedial alternatives capable of achieving the RAOs for the contaminated soil, groundwater and soil vapor requiring remediation.

8.1 Development of Remedial Alternatives

The retained remedial technologies for groundwater have been composed into the following remedial alternatives:

- Alternative 1: Groundwater Extraction
- Alternative 2: Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells
- Alternative 3: Hydraulic Fracturing and Additional Groundwater Extraction Wells

Institutional controls would be required for and be a component of each alternative to mitigate potential exposure to other contaminated media (i.e., soil and soil vapor).

8.1.1 Alternative 1: Continued Groundwater Extraction

Alternative 1 was developed as a baseline against which to compare the other remedial alternatives. This alternative involves no further action to reduce groundwater contamination beyond operation, maintenance, and monitoring of the existing groundwater extraction and treatment system.

As discussed in the 2000 FS, Arch has operated a groundwater extraction system since 1983 to intercept and contain contaminants on site. Initially the extraction system addressed on-site overburden groundwater, but was subsequently expanded to capture on-site shallow bedrock groundwater as well. Presently, nine pumping wells are operated within the site property boundary: BR-5A, BR-7A, BR-9, PW-13, PW-14, PW-15, PW-16, PW-17, and BR-127. The average total extraction flow rate from these wells generally ranges from 25 to 30 gallons per minute (gpm). Extracted groundwater is treated by granular activated carbon prior to discharge to the Monroe County Pure Waters POTW.

Arch personnel operate the existing groundwater extraction system, performing periodic or as-needed maintenance. Long-term monitoring activities include collection of groundwater samples from 28 on-site monitoring and extraction wells, 17 off-site groundwater monitoring wells, and three off-site surface water sample points for VOC and/or SVOC laboratory analysis. Semiannual reports are prepared describing the results of the long-term monitoring.

Institutional and management controls would be put in place to prevent exposure to on-site contaminated soil and soil vapor. Arch institutes a safety plan that protects workers

engaging in activities where exposure is a risk, but further institutional controls restricting access to contaminated media will be needed under this alternative to eliminate potential exposure pathways. These controls would be developed as part the site management plan to be implemented once the final remedy is in place.

8.1.2 Alternative 2: Install Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells

Alternative 2 consists of:

- installation of up to two horizontal groundwater extraction wells
- long-term groundwater monitoring
- operation, maintenance, and monitoring of the groundwater extraction system
- institutional and management controls

Alternative 2 includes installation of up to two horizontal groundwater extraction wells to improve groundwater capture at the western property boundary and to increase contaminant mass removal rates. The use of horizontal extraction wells as part of an expanded network of groundwater extraction wells will accelerate the removal and treatment of remaining groundwater contamination.

Figure 8-1 shows the conceptual layout of the proposed horizontal groundwater extraction wells. One horizontal extraction well would be oriented approximately east-west to improve contaminant mass removal by targeting areas of high chloropyridine concentrations generally found between monitoring well PZ-106 and the rear of the main operating facility building near monitoring well B-17. Historically, extraction well PW-10 operated near well B-17 but ceased to be productive and no longer extracts groundwater; replacing this well with capture influence from a horizontal well would be consistent with previous efforts to capture contaminants near well B-17, which historically has exhibited the highest chloropyridine concentrations. Installing the well near PZ-106 would target an area of high chloropyridine concentrations and target the high concentrations of VOCs in that area, and would supplement former extraction well PW-14, which was taken out of service due to poor performance, and BR-127 which is intended to capture groundwater to the east. The horizontal well would extract groundwater from beneath the Arch facility and directly target the suspected chloropyridine source area. This well would be a 6-inch diameter screened well along an interval of approximately 400 feet and installed approximately 5 feet below the top of bedrock, or approximately 25 feet bgs.

If deemed necessary, a second well would be oriented north-south along the western property boundary to better intercept groundwater flow off the site and to improve contaminant mass removal by targeting high concentrations of chloropyridines near well BR-8. This alternative assumes a 6-inch diameter screened well along an interval of approximately 370 feet and installed approximately 5 feet below the top of bedrock, or 20-30 feet bgs. The well would be installed by drilling a pilot bore through an entrance point approximately 125 feet from the start of the well screen, allowing a five-to-one slope for the boring from ground surface to target well depth. The pilot bore would proceed along the

target well depth and length before ascending to the ground surface, again at a five-to-one ratio. Walkover locating technology would track the location of the drill head throughout installation of the boring. The permanent high density polyethylene well screen and casing would then be pulled through the exit point back to the entrance, and a 50 gpm submersible pump would be installed in the well screen. **Appendix B** provides calculations for estimated early time groundwater yield in the extraction well and pump sizing to deliver extracted groundwater to a groundwater treatment system. Early time flow estimates were calculated assuming a drawdown of 5 feet at flow rates of 20, 30 and 50 gpm. While these flow rate estimates may not be valid for longer term steady-state flow, they are useful in providing baseline estimates for a single horizontal well with the given dimensions. Longer term flow rates for a single horizontal well intended to achieve hydraulic capture would not be expected to exceed the range of early time flow estimates (20 to 50 gpm).

The east-west well may be more challenging to install than the north-south well. Walkover location technology would be difficult to use due to interference from piping, control circuits, and other industrial infrastructure present on top of the well path. This would require use of a navigation system such as a gyroscopic steering tool, in turn requiring a larger rig to support use of the tool. The surface obstructions to setting up both entrance and exit points for the east-west well would likely require this well to be installed blind, using a single well-end. Blind wells are technically more challenging to install than double-ended wells.

The well lengths, sizes, and locations proposed above are for purposes of evaluation and costing in this report. Actual dimensions and locations would need to be finalized as part of the design phase. These design details would be based on a more detailed evaluation of field and geologic conditions than is within the scope of this report.

The addition of the horizontal wells may either supplement or eliminate the need for the current array of extraction wells. Therefore, a new or upgrade of the current groundwater treatment system has been assumed using two granular activated carbon (GAC) vessels in series to accommodate increased flow. Usage rates and change out frequencies are assumed to be similar to current system usage for costing purposes. Given the higher yield expected for each extraction well, it is assumed that approximately 500 feet of new above ground discharge piping would be required to transport water from the well pumps to the on-site treatment plant. Operation, monitoring, and maintenance of the groundwater extraction system would be similar to that described for Alternative 1.

Additional groundwater monitoring wells may be added to the existing network of locations that are sampled semiannually. Average daily extraction flow rates would also be recorded to evaluate extraction well performance. This combination of flow and analytical data would allow Arch to estimate increased contaminant mass removal rates. Long-term monitoring and reporting would be similar to that described for Alternative 1.

Similar to Alternative 1, institutional and management controls would be put in place to prevent exposure to on-site contaminated soil and soil vapor.

8.1.3 Alternative 3: Hydraulic Fracturing and Additional Groundwater Extraction Wells

Alternative 3 consists of:

- hydraulic fracturing along three alignments within the contaminant source area
- installation of one groundwater extraction well within each fractured alignment
- long term groundwater monitoring
- operation, maintenance, and monitoring of the enhanced groundwater extraction system
- institutional and management controls

Alternative 3 includes hydraulic fracturing, commonly referred to as fracking, of shallow bedrock along three alignments within the contaminant source area. Fracking uses pressurized fluid to open and develop fractures within bedrock to increase flow through the fractures. Hydraulic fracturing offers a significant advantage over the use of explosives at the Site because it can be used in close proximity to structures and operational areas with less risk of adverse (structural) impacts.

Fracking for this alternative would use water injected at low volumes and lower pressures to further open and develop existing fractures in bedrock, contrasted with fracking associated with the oil and natural gas industries, which typically uses chemical additives at greater depths under higher fluid volumes and pressures. Fracking for this alternative more closely resembles a packer test than the fracking done by the oil or natural gas industries. High pressure buildup is assumed to be unlikely given the shallow fracking depth into weathered bedrock. It is assumed that health and safety concerns would be minimal given the low fluid volume and pressure.

To assist with the evaluation of the feasibility of hydraulic fracturing at the Site, Arch contracted Nothnagle Drilling, Inc. (Nothnagle) to conduct a hydraulic fracturing pilot test. The objective of the pilot test was to observe if hydraulic fracturing would improve the bulk permeability and connectivity of fractures within a historically low yield portion of the shallow bedrock. From September 17 through September 27, 2012, Nothnagle installed 12 shallow bedrock borings on site, as shown on Figure 8-2. At each of these 12 locations, Nothnagle drilled a boring at a depth ranging from 35 to 40 feet and installed a packer system to segregate a portion of the bedrock for testing. Nothnagle then performed packer testing and hydraulic fracturing to observe how the local bedrock formation would respond and if communication occurred at other nearby wells or borings. Pumping rates and pressures were increased incrementally at each well from 10 pounds per square inch (psi) up to typically 40 psi to observe possible communication with other wells and how well yield increased with pressure. Select wells were then pumped at lower pressures again to observe if the higher pressures had increased the formation's permeability. Drilling forms, field notes, and a table summarizing the observations during fracking field activities are provided in Appendix C.

The results of the pilot test suggest that hydraulic fracturing at the Site could improve communication between existing and future groundwater extraction wells and that hydraulic fracturing could improve the pumping yield for groundwater extraction wells on site. However, the heterogeneous nature of the existing fractures in shallow bedrock creates uncertainty in terms of how effective hydraulic fracturing will be at any given well point. Of the 12 borings, six demonstrated communication with other nearby wells when drilling and testing. Tests at borings HF-5, HF-7, HF-10, HF-11, and HF-1 in particular resulted in strong and sometimes violent reactions at nearby wells; however, this may have been due to pre-existing fractures in the shallow bedrock zone. **Figure 8-3** shows the extent of influence observed at each boring. Of the five borings installed that were retested at lower pressures after fracturing, four indicated a likely increase in formation permeability. Boring HF-5 pumping rates increased by 41%, Boring HF-1 and boring HF-3 pumping rates increased by 50%, and boring HF-12 pumping rates increased by 76%. One boring, HF-6, showed a likely decrease in permeability with a pumping rate drop of 25%.

Despite the increase in pumping rates during the pilot test, the fracturing appears to have had no observable effect on the performance of pumping wells PW-14 (no longer in use as of Spring 2016) and PW-15, both located adjacent to the fracked borings. **Figures 8-4** and 8-5 show weekly pumping quantities for wells PW-14 and PW-15 from December 2008 to May 2014. The fracking pilot test in September 2012 did not increase pumping rates at wells PW-14 and PW-15 above historical trends since December 2008. In addition, well PW-17, which was installed to help control migration of groundwater in the fractured zone during the pilot test, has performed poorly since installation, averaging less than 1 gpm throughout its operation history. Operations and maintenance issues related to pumps, well scaling, etc., historically have and continue to influence extraction rates more than poor connectivity within the bedrock, and the fracking pilot test has likely played little or no part in affecting groundwater extraction performance.

Overall, the pilot test suggests that hydraulic fracturing on site could improve hydraulic communication between bedrock wells and possibly improve the performance of the groundwater extraction system. However, the lack of improved performance at PW-14 and PW-15, combined with the inconsistent results within the pilot test borings themselves, create uncertainty in estimating how individual wells or borings would respond to fracking. Also, it is not feasible to control the propagation of fractures, and there is the potential of increasing vertical flow within bedrock that could lead to possible increases in off-site migration of site contaminants through deeper fracture zones in the rock. This alternative would require a high factor of safety in estimating how many fracturing points are required to achieve improve well yields and hydraulic communication in the target extraction zones, which could increase the risk of vertical fracturing and potentially increased off-site migration.

For the conceptual design of a hydraulic fracturing program, two new alignments would be proposed: a northern alignment on a 125-foot east-west lateral along well B-17 and a middle 125-foot alignment west of the pretreatment building. The pilot test alignment would serve as a third alignment approximately between wells BR-3 and PZ-106. **Figure 8-6** shows the conceptual design layout for Alternative 3. Based on the inconsistent influence observed in

the pilot test at 20-foot intervals, a spacing interval of 10 feet would be used in the preferential east-west groundwater flow direction for the north and middle alignments. The target depth for fracking is the upper 10 to 15 feet of weathered bedrock, where groundwater flow is already higher due to existing fractures. Temporary coreholes would be installed and fracked along the additional alignments. New groundwater extraction wells would be installed within each alignment to capture groundwater from these fractured zones.

This expanded network of fractured coreholes and groundwater extraction would be intended to accelerate the removal of remaining groundwater contamination. New extraction wells would be installed in bedrock as 6-inch diameter corehole wells to an average depth of 30 feet into bedrock, or 50 feet total below ground surface.

It is assumed that the on-site treatment plant capacity will not have to be expanded to accommodate these three new wells. Operation, monitoring, and maintenance of the enhanced groundwater extraction system would be similar to that described for Alternative 1.

Three additional groundwater extraction wells will be added to the existing network of locations that are sampled semiannually. Average daily extraction flow rates would also be recorded to evaluate extraction well performance. This combination of flow and analytical data will allow Arch to estimate increased contaminant mass removal rates. Long-term monitoring and reporting would be similar to that described for Alternative 1.

Institutional and management controls would be institutued to prevent exposure to on-site contaminated soil and soil vapor and would be similar to those described for Alternative 1.

8.2 **Preliminary Screening of Alternatives**

This Subsection presents a preliminary screening of the developed remedial alternatives. Consistent with DER-10, the developed remedial alternatives are screened on the basis of whether they are technically implementable (Implementability) for the Site and whether they can meet the RAOs (Effectiveness). Additionally, based upon available information, the relative cost of each remedial alternative is also evaluated. Those remedial alternatives which are not technically implementable, would not achieve RAOs, or would incur costs significantly higher than other remedial alternatives without providing greater effectiveness or implementability are not evaluated further in the FS.

Screening of remedial alternatives is presented in **Table 8-1**. The No Further Action alternative is not evaluated according to the screening criteria; it passes through screening to be evaluated during the detailed analysis as a baseline for other retained alternatives.

Alternative 2: One or two horizontal groundwater extraction wells would be effective in the long-term at reducing the concentration of chloropyridines and VOCs in the contaminant source area and at property boundaries. and Historically, the groundwater extraction system has removed significant quantities of contaminant mass. For example, approximately 82 pounds of VOCs and 2,400 pounds of chloropyridines were removed between December

2017 and June 2018 (Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2018). This alternative uses similar methods as the current remediation system at the Site and would have limited impact on facility operations. Technical issues with implementing this alternative primarily include the installation of the horizontal wells to capture groundwater in bedrock with predominantly horizontal fractures. Since the wells and fractures would need to intersect on the same horizontal plane, it is possible a horizontal well could miss significant water bearing zones. In effect the vertical capture zone is likely to be limited by the vertical hydraulic conductivity, which is expected to be lower than horizontal conductivity in shallow bedrock.

There is an inherent risk of bore-hole collapse when installing a horizontal well and this is particularly the case for single-ended wells since the hole is left unprotected between borehole completion and well screen/casing installation.

Costs associated with installing horizontal groundwater extraction wells are expected to be moderate.

Alternative 3: Hydraulic Fracturing and Additional Groundwater Extraction Wells would be effective in the long term at reducing the concentration of chloropyridines and VOCs, although the potential benefit of hydraulically fracturing bedrock within the contaminant source area is difficult to evaluate. This alternative would also continue to extract contaminated groundwater from the existing extraction wells. While a successful fracturing program could achieve significant short-term increases in contaminant mass removal, the pilot test indicates uncertainty with respect to the effectiveness of hydraulic fracturing. There is also a risk of increased vertical fracturing, which could lead to unwanted pathways for off-site migration of site contaminants through deeper bedrock fractures. This alternative could be readily implemented, as it uses known and readily available technology along with the existing extraction and treatment system; however, existing facility infrastructure would limit the amount of site area that could be accessed for hydraulic fracturing. Costs associated with this alternative are relatively moderate with a high contingency risk based on the uncertain number of hydraulic fracturing wells required to achieve communication between the developed bedrock fractures and the new extraction wells.

The remaining remedial alternatives have been retained for detailed analysis in **Section 9.0** to at least provide an estimated cost analysis comparison between the alternatives.

DETAILED ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES 9.0

This section presents the detailed analyses of remedial action at the Site. The detailed analysis is intended to provide decision-makers with the relevant information needed for selection of a site remedy. The detailed description of technologies or processes used for each alternative includes, where appropriate, a discussion of limitations, assumptions, and uncertainties for each component. The descriptions provide a conceptual design of each alternative and are intended to support alternatives-comparison and cost-estimation.

The detailed analysis of each alternative includes evaluation using the first eight evaluation criteria identified in DER-10 (NYSDEC, 2010) and §375-1.8(f) (New York State [NYS], 2006), as presented in the following paragraphs.

Compliance with Standards, Criteria, and Guidance. Compliance with SCGs considers whether or not a remedy will meet applicable environmental laws, regulations, standards, and guidance. SCGs for the Site are identified along with a discussion of whether or not the remedy will achieve compliance. For those SCGs that will not be met, a discussion and evaluation of subsequent impacts and whether waivers are necessary is presented. Location- and Action-specific SCGs are identified for each alternative in this Section and in Table 9.1, and chemical-specific SCGs are presented in Appendix A.

Overall Protection of Public Health and the Environment. This criterion is an evaluation of the remedy's ability to protect public health and the environment, assessing how risks posed through each existing or potential pathway of exposure are eliminated, reduced, or controlled through removal, treatment, engineering controls, or institutional controls. The remedy's ability to achieve each of the RAOs is evaluated.

Short-term Effectiveness. The potential short-term adverse impacts and risks of the remedy upon the community, the workers, and the environment during the construction and/or implementation are evaluated. How the identified adverse impacts and health risks to the community or workers at the Site will be controlled, and the effectiveness of the controls, are considered. Engineering controls that will be used to mitigate short term impacts (e.g., dust control measures) are described. The length of time needed to achieve the remedial objectives is estimated.

Long-term Effectiveness and Permanence. This criterion evaluates the long-term effectiveness of the remedy after implementation. If wastes or treated residuals remain on site after the selected remedy has been implemented, the following items are evaluated:

- 1. magnitude of remaining risk
- 2. adequacy of the engineering and institutional controls intended to limit the risk
- 3. reliability of these controls
- 4. ability of the remedy to continue to meet RAOs in the future.

Reduction of Toxicity, Mobility, or Volume with Treatment. The remedy's ability to

reduce the toxicity, mobility or volume of site contamination is evaluated. Preference should be given to remedies that permanently and significantly reduce the toxicity, mobility, or volume of site wastes.

Implementability. The technical and administrative feasibility of implementing the remedy is evaluated. Technical feasibility includes the difficulties associated with remedy construction and the ability to monitor the remedy's effectiveness. For administrative feasibility, the availability of the necessary personnel and material is evaluated along with potential difficulties in obtaining specific operating approvals, access for construction, or other issues.

Land Use. The current, intended, and reasonably anticipated future land uses of the Site and its surroundings will be considered in the evaluation of remedial alternatives.

Cost. Capital and Operation, Maintenance and Monitoring costs are estimated for the remedy and presented on a present worth basis.

9.1 Cost Analysis Procedures

Costs presented in this FS are intended to be within the target accuracy range of minus 30 to plus 50 percent of actual cost (USEPA, 1988). Costs are presented as a present worth and as a total cost for a 30-year period.

A summary of the costs for each alternative identifying capital and net present worth (NPW) as originally estimated in 2015 are included in each alternative's cost description. In order to update these costs to 2019 dollars, a total inflation factor of 6.5 percent should be applied over these 4 years. This factor is calculated based on financial requirements for hazardous waste management facilities (NY State 6 CRR-NY 373-2.8) using Implicit Price Deflator for Gross National Product published by the U.S. Department of Commerce in its Survey of Current Business.

Each cost estimate includes a present worth analysis to evaluate expenditures that occur over different time periods. The analysis discounts future costs to a NPW and allows the cost of remedial alternatives to be compared on an equal basis. NPW represents the amount of money that, if invested now and disbursed as needed, would be sufficient to cover costs associated with the remedial action over its planned life. A discount rate of 5 percent was used to prepare the cost estimates per NYSDEC guidance (USEPA 1988).

Consistent with USEPA FS cost estimating guidance (USEPA, 2000), the remedial alternative cost estimates include costs for project management, remedial design, construction management, technical support, and scope contingency.

Project management includes planning and reporting, community relations support during construction or operations and maintenance (O&M), bid or contract administration, permitting (not already provided by the construction or O&M contractor), and legal services outside of institutional controls.
Remedial design applies to capital cost and includes services to design the remedial action. Activities that are part of remedial design include pre-design collection and analysis of field data, engineering survey for design, treatability study/pilot-scale testing, and the various design components such as design analysis, plans, specifications, cost estimate, and schedule.

Construction management applies to capital cost and includes services to manage construction or installation of the remedial action, except any similar services provided as part of regular construction activities. Activities include review of submittals, design modifications, construction observation or oversight, engineering survey for construction, preparation of O&M manual, documentation of quality control/quality assurance, and record drawings.

Technical support during O&M includes services to monitor, evaluate, and report progress of remedial action. This includes oversight of O&M activities, update of O&M manual, and progress reporting and is generally between 10 percent and 20 percent of total annual O&M costs depending on complexity of the remedial action (USEPA, 2000).

Scope contingency represents project risks associated with the feasibility-level of design presented in this Report. This type of contingency represents costs, unforeseeable at the time of estimate preparation, which are likely to become known as the remedial design proceeds. Scope contingency ranges from 10 to 25 percent, with higher values appropriate for alternatives with greater levels of cost growth potential (USEPA, 2000).

Project management, remedial design, and construction management costs presented in this Report are based upon the following matrix presented in the USEPA FS cost estimating guidance (USEPA, 2000).

Professional and Technical Costs as Percentage of Direct Costs							
Indirect Cost	< \$100K	\$100K-\$500K	\$500K-\$2M	\$2M-\$10M	>\$10M		
	(%)	(%)	(%)	(%)	(%)		
Project	10	8	6	5	5		
Management							
Remedial	20	15	12	8	6		
Design							
Construction	15	10	8	6	6		
Management							

The following subsections present a conceptual design and cost estimate for each of these remedial alternatives and a discussion of each alternative relative to the evaluation criteria as set forth in NYCRR Part 375 (NYS, 2006).

9.2 Alternative 1: Continued Groundwater Extraction

This alternative would continue to operate the existing groundwater extraction and treatment system.

Compliance with Standards, Criteria, and Guidance. This alternative does not meet chemical-specific SCGs in the short term because it does not address all groundwater contamination in excess of 6 NYCRR Parts 700-706 Water Quality Standards (NYSDEC, 1998). However, in the long term this alternative is expected to ultimately achieve class GA groundwater standards.

Overall Protection of Public Health and the Environment. The existing groundwater extraction and treatment system already provides protection of human health and the environment by controlling migration of groundwater contaminants from the source area and eliminating and controlling potential exposure pathways through removal and treatment of contaminated groundwater. Institutional and management controls will mitigate risks for contaminants in soil and soil vapor that are above SCGs. This remedial alternative is expected to achieve the RAOs in the long term.

Short-term Effectiveness. This alternative does not include construction or other activities that would result in potential short-term adverse impacts and risks to the community, workers, or the environment during implementation. Due to the complexity of the hydrogeologic setting, fate and transport models are not likely to be effective in projecting remediation timeframes, particularly for chloropyridines, which are not expected to naturally attenuate over time, and have therefore not been attempted as part of this FS.

Long-term Effectiveness and Permanence. This remedy is only expected to meet RAOs for VOCs with continued extraction of contaminant mass; this is supported by the observed reduction of the VOC plume over time. Once the groundwater has met RAOs for VOCs, it is unlikely to rebound. Management controls will remain in place to eliminate the potential for exposure to contaminants for future site use, including during construction activities at the Site, but the potential for off-site exposure to contaminated groundwater exists. The Site and surrounding areas are served by public water and the groundwater is otherwise not potable, so it is unlikely that a downgradient site installs a private well and creates an exposure pathway, but it remains a possibility.

Reduction of Toxicity, Mobility, or Volume with Treatment. This alternative would reduce the mobility and volume of contaminants through groundwater extraction and exsitu treatment with granular activated carbon.

Implementability. No additional actions would be conducted. Therefore, there are no added technical difficulties associated with this alternative.

Land Use. Given the existing management controls, groundwater containment, and anticipated continued operation of the chemical manufacturing facility, this alternative would be compatible with current and foreseeable future land use.

Cost. Alternative 1 has no additional capital costs. Expected annual operation, maintenance, and monitoring costs related to the extraction wells total approximately \$325,000, assuming that 2013 O&M costs and annually budgeted monitoring costs represent future system costs. The NPW of this Alternative is \$4,996,000. A summary of

the costs associated with this alternative is presented in **Table 9-2**. These costs assume 30 years of further operation. Detailed cost analysis backup is provided in **Appendix D**.

9.3 Alternative 2: Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells

Alternative 2 consists of the following components:

- design and installation of up to two horizontal groundwater extraction wells
- long-term groundwater monitoring
- operation, maintenance, and monitoring of the groundwater extraction system
- institutional and management controls

Design and Installation of up to Two Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells. In order to improve hydraulic control at the western property boundary and increase contaminant mass removal rates at the source area, the current network of groundwater extraction wells would be replaced or expanded with the addition of up to two new horizontal wells as shown on Figure 8-1. Based on early time flow estimate calculations for a conservative well screen length of 500 feet (Appendix B) and current total extraction rates of up to 40 gpm for the site, flow rates ranging from 20 to 50 gpm are expected along the western property line. To conservatively estimate equipment sizing and cost, this alternative assumes that equipment should be sized to handle flows of up to 50 gpm per well, or up to 100 gpm total. Prior to design of the wells, a pre-design investigation including packer testing and borehole geophysical logging of open corehole wells BR-9, BR-102, PW-16, BR-8, PW-13, and BR-7A would be completed for the north-south well alignment. Similarly, logging and packer tests would be completed for wells BR-127, PW-15, and PW-17 along the east-west alignment. Additional bedrock boreholes may also be needed to evaluate the bedrock surface topography. These investigations would serve to identify the primary water bearing zones and support decision making for final elevation of the horizontal wells.

Long Term Groundwater Monitoring. The new groundwater extraction wells will be incorporated into the existing network of wells that are monitored and sampled semiannually. Additional vertical monitoring wells will be installed to perform long term monitoring - the exact number and placement of the wells will be decided during design. Groundwater samples will be analyzed for VOCs and chloropyridines. Average daily extraction flow rates will be recorded to evaluate extraction well performance. This combination of data will be used to estimate the increased contaminant mass removal from the source area. Semiannual reports will be prepared detailing the results of the long-term monitoring.

Operation, Maintenance, and Monitoring of the Groundwater Extraction Wells. While it may be possible to connect the new wells to the existing on-site treatment plant, this alternative conservatively assumes that separate piping and treatment systems will be installed. New above ground piping would convey extracted groundwater from the wells to GAC vessels for treatment prior to sewer discharge. While the availability of space for new GAC vessels in an existing on-site building or for a newly constructed treatment building is

unknown, this alternative assumes that a new building will be constructed on site. Opportunities to reduce system footprint and costs by using the existing on-site buildings and treatment equipment would be evaluated during the design phase. In addition, the high anticipated flow rates from the horizontal wells may result in a substantial decrease in flow from the existing vertical extraction wells. For the purposes of this evaluation, it is assumed that the flow from existing wells will be reduced by 50 percent, resulting in a decrease in operating costs for the existing GAC treatment system.

Institutional and Management Controls. The risk evaluation determined that there are no current exposure pathways to contaminated media on site; the purpose of the institutional and management controls is to eliminate potential exposure pathways (Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2000). Controls may include continued adherence to the plant's existing health and safety policies and implementation of deed restrictions, but the exact scope of the controls will be documented in a Site Management Plan after remedy implementation.

Compliance with Standards, Criteria, and Guidance. Similar to Alternative 1, this alternative does not meet chemical-specific SCGs in the short term because it does not address all groundwater contamination in excess of 6 NYCRR Parts 700-706 Water Quality Standards (NYSDEC, 1998). However, in the long term this alternative is expected to achieve class GA groundwater standards.

Overall Protection of Public Health and the Environment. This remedial alternative protects public health and the environment by controlling migration of groundwater contaminants from the source area and eliminating and controlling potential exposure pathways through removal and treatment of contaminated groundwater and institutional controls for soil and soil vapor. This remedial alternative is expected to achieve the RAOs for groundwater, soil, and soil vapor in the long term.

Short-term Effectiveness. This alternative includes activities that would result in potential short-term adverse impacts and risks to workers during installation of the new extraction wells. However, proper health and safety practices can control these risks. The time period to fully implement this alternative is estimated to be approximately one year, but the complexity of the hydrogeologic setting and the nature of the contaminants make it difficult estimate remediation time frames (as in Alternative 1). The increased extraction rate should decrease the time required to meet RAOs, so the length of time needed to achieve remedial objectives is expected to be shorter than Alternative 1.

Long-term Effectiveness and Permanence. This remedy is expected to meet RAOs in the future due to enhanced extraction of contaminant mass and improved hydraulic containment of the contaminant plumes; this is supported by the observed reduction of the VOC plume over time. The ability of Alternative 2 to extract groundwater directly from the areas of highest contaminant concentration should reduce the time to meet RAOs and the remaining risk before meeting RAOs. Once the groundwater has met RAOs for VOCs, it is unlikely to rebound. Institutional and management controls will be put in place to eliminate the potential for exposure to contaminants for future site use, including during construction activities at the site, but the potential for off-site exposure to contaminated groundwater

Feasibility Study Report — Arch Chemicals, Inc. NYSDEC — Site No. 828018a AMEC E & E (PC). Project No. 3616196075

from a private well remains, as in Alternative 1.

Reduction of Toxicity, Mobility, or Volume with Treatment. This alternative would reduce the mobility and volume of contaminants through groundwater extraction and exsitu treatment with granular activated carbon.

Implementability. The continued operation, maintenance, and monitoring of the groundwater extraction system would not be technically difficult to implement. Issues with implementing this alternative primarily include the installation of one or two horizontal wells. Drilling rates in fractured rock can be slow, and the possibility of borehole collapse exists both for fractured zones and for heterogeneous glacial till in the overlying soils. Installation of an east-west well would be difficult due to the existing industrial infrastructure overlying the proposed well path and limited space for well entrance and exit points. In addition, since the wells and fractures would need to intersect on the same horizontal plane, it is possible a horizontal well could miss significant water bearing zones.

Land Use. Given the existing management controls, groundwater containment, and anticipated continued operation of the chemical manufacturing facility, this alternative would be compatible with current and foreseeable future land use.

Cost. The capital cost of Alternative 2 is \$1,094,000, for the installation of twonew horizontal groundwater extraction wells and a groundwater treatment system. Annual operation, maintenance, and monitoring costs related to the new extraction wells total approximately \$452,000 for years 1 through 20, assuming that 2010 operations and maintenance costs and annually budgeted monitoring costs represent future system costs, and \$97,000 for years 21 through 30, assuming that extraction could be shut down after 20 years and only semiannual monitoring costs remain. Assuming that the horizontal wells yield a 50% reduction in flow from the existing wells, operations and maintenance costs of the existing system have been reduced to one carbon changeout per year instead of two. The NPW of this Alternative is \$7,011,000. A summary of the costs associated with this alternative is presented in **Table 9-3**. Remediation timeframes are difficult to accurately estimate for the complex hydrogeologic setting and the mixture of contaminants at the site; RAOs will not necessarily be achieved after that time, but using 20 years as an assumed O&M duration for the cost estimate should project a relative cost difference reflective of the anticipated difference between alternatives 1 and 2, which is anticipated to have a shorter duration due to the increased contaminant mass extraction. Detailed cost backup is provided in Appendix D.

9.4 Alternative 3: Hydraulic Fracturing and Additional Groundwater Extraction Wells

Alternative 3 consists of the following components:

- hydraulic fracturing along two alignments within contaminant source area
- design and installation of one groundwater extraction well per alignment

Feasibility Study Report — Arch Chemicals, Inc. NYSDEC — Site No. 828018a AMEC E & E (PC). Project No. 3616196075

- long-term groundwater monitoring
- operation, maintenance, and monitoring of the enhanced groundwater extraction system
- institutional and management controls

Hydraulic Fracturing Along Two Alignments within Contaminant Source Area. To increase groundwater flow through the contaminant source area and facilitate increased contaminant mass removal rates, the hydraulic fracturing pilot test would be expanded with two alignments fracked within the contaminant source area. A northern alignment would extend approximately 125 feet eastward from well PW10. A southern alignment would extend approximately 125 feet west from pretreatment building. The proposed alignments target the areas of highest VOC and chloropyridine concentration that are both accessible by a drill rig and do not obstruct facility activities. Boreholes will be drilled 10 feet into bedrock along each alignment, spaced at the most cost-effective interval determined from the pilot test. This FS assumes a distance of 10 feet would be used in the preferential eastwest groundwater flow direction for the north and middle alignments. Proposed fracturing alignments are shown in **Figure 8-6**.

Design and Installation of Groundwater Extraction Wells for each Alignment. To increase contaminant mass removal rates at the source area, the current network of groundwater extraction wells would be expanded with three new wells located at the western and hydraulically downgradient end of each fracking alignment. The northern alignment well would be adjacent to well PW10, the middle alignment well would be adjacent to well PW10, the southern alignment well would be adjacent to well PW-15, and the southern alignment well would be adjacent to well BR-3. Assuming that fracking increases groundwater flow through the source area, the three extraction wells would increase contaminant mass removal near both the VOC and chloropyridine source areas, including contamination underneath the facility. 6-inch diameter corehole wells would be installed to a depth of 50 feet below ground surface. Well yield rates are assumed to be slightly higher than previous wells installed in this part of the Site due to the fracturing, and are estimated to range from 5 to 10 gpm each. Proposed groundwater extraction well locations are shown in **Figure 8-6**.

Long-Term Groundwater Monitoring. The new groundwater extraction wells will be incorporated into the existing network of wells that are monitored and sampled semiannually. Groundwater surface elevation measurements and groundwater samples will be taken semiannually; groundwater samples will be analyzed for VOCs and chloropyridines. Average daily extraction flow rates will be recorded to evaluate extraction well performance. This combination of data will be used to estimate the increased contaminant mass removal from the source area. Semiannual reports are prepared detailing the results of the long-term monitoring.

Feasibility Study Report — Arch Chemicals, Inc. NYSDEC — Site No. 828018a AMEC E & E (PC). Project No. 3616196075

Operation, Maintenance, and Monitoring of the Enhanced Groundwater Extraction Wells. It is assumed that the on-site treatment plant will not have to be expanded or modified to accommodate the new extraction wells. While the pumping and conveyance system at sump P-WT-30 may need to be modified to increase its pumping capacity. This alternative assumes that the pumping and conveyance system will also not have to be expanded or modified to accommodate the new extraction wells.

Institutional and Management Controls. The risk evaluation determined that there are no current exposure pathways to contaminated media on site; the purpose of the institutional and management controls is to eliminate potential exposure pathways (Arch Chemicals Inc., 2000). Controls may include continued adherence to the plant's existing health and safety policies and implementation of deed restrictions, but the exact scope of the controls will be determined during remedial design.

Compliance with Standards, Criteria, and Guidance. Similar to Alternatives 1 and 2, this alternative does not meet chemical-specific SCGs in the short term because it does not address all groundwater contamination in excess of 6 NYCRR Parts 700-706 Water Quality Standards (NYSDEC, 1998). However, in the long term this alternative is expected to achieve class GA groundwater standards.

Overall Protection of Public Health and the Environment. This remedial alternative protects public health and the environment through controlling migration of groundwater contaminants from the source area and eliminating and controlling potential exposure pathways through removal and treatment of contaminated groundwater and institutional controls for soil and soil vapor. This remedial alternative is expected to achieve the RAOs for groundwater, soil, and soil vapor in the long term.

Short-term Effectiveness. This alternative includes activities that would result in potential short-term adverse impacts and risks to workers during the fracking program and installation of new groundwater extraction wells. However, proper health and safety practices can control these risks. There is also the potential that hydraulic fracturing could create additional pathways for off-site migration of contaminated groundwater, resulting in short-term increases in contaminant concentrations in downgradient areas. The time period to fully implement this alternative is estimated to be approximately one year, but the time period required to meet RAOs is difficult to predict, especially considering the inconsistent and uncertain results of the pilot test. Assuming the fracturing is able to achieve some measure of increased extraction, the time period is expected to be shorter than Alternative 1 and may be similar to or longer than Alternative 2.

Long-term Effectiveness and Permanence. This remedy is expected to meet RAOs in the future due to increased extraction of contaminant mass and improved hydraulic containment of the contaminant plumes; this is supported by the observed reduction of the VOC plume over time. However, the location of the contamination beneath the building and the limited access to initiate fractures inhibit the ability of the remedy to target the source area, increasing the estimated treatment time and the remaining risk. As in Alternative 2, institutional and management controls will be put in place to eliminate the potential for

exposure to contaminants for future site use, including during construction activities at the site, but the potential for off-site exposure to contaminated groundwater from a private well remains, as in Alternative 1. In addition, there is the potential of increasing vertical flow within bedrock that could lead to possible increases in off-site migration of site contaminants through deeper fracture zones in the rock. There is no way to eliminate the risk of uncontrolled fracturing, as there is no way to control the propagation of fractures, but it can be mitigated by being conservative in estimating the necessary number of fracture points to increase connectivity in the area.

Reduction of Toxicity, Mobility, or Volume with Treatment. This alternative would reduce the mobility and volume of contaminants through groundwater extraction and exsitu treatment with granular activated carbon.

Implementability. Fracking the shallow bedrock on site, installing new extraction wells, and continued operation, maintenance, and monitoring of the groundwater extraction system would not be technically difficult to implement, although it is limited to accessible areas of the Site.

Land Use. Given the existing management controls, groundwater containment, and anticipated continued operation of the chemical manufacturing facility, this alternative would be compatible with current and foreseeable future land use.

Cost. The capital cost of Alternative 3 is \$224,000 for hydraulic fracturing of bedrock and new groundwater extraction wells. Annual operation, maintenance, and monitoring costs related to the new extraction wells total approximately \$325,000 for years 1 through 25, assuming that 2010 operations and maintenance costs and annually budgeted monitoring costs represent future system costs, and \$97,000 for years 26 through 30, assuming that only semiannual monitoring costs remain. The NPW of this Alternative is \$4,805,000. A summary of the costs associated with this alternative is presented in **Table 9-4**. These costs assume 25 years of further operation, maintenance and monitoring, and an additional 5 years of semiannual monitoring after that. Remediation timeframes are difficult to accurately estimate for the complex hydrogeologic setting and the mixture of contaminants at the site; RAOs will not necessarily be achieved after that time, but using 25 years as an assumed O&M duration for the cost estimate should project a relative cost difference reflective of the anticipated difference between Alternatives 1, 2, and 3, which is anticipated to have a shorter duration than Alternative 1 due to the increased contaminant mass extraction, but potentially longer than Alternative 2 due to the inconsistent results of the fracking pilot test. Detailed cost backup is provided in Appendix D.

10.0 COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES

This section presents a summary of the relative performance of each of the candidate alternatives based on the criteria evaluated in **Section 9**. The purpose of the comparative analysis is to identify the advantages and disadvantages of each alternative relative to one another to aid in selecting an overall remedy for the Site.

The comparative analysis includes a narrative discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the alternatives relative to one another with respect to each criterion, and how reasonable variations of key uncertainties could change the expectations of their relative performance, as applicable. The comparative analysis presented in this document uses a qualitative approach to comparison, with the exceptions of comparing alternative costs and the required time to implement each alternative.

A comparison of the capital and long-term costs associated with the remedial alternatives is presented in **Table 10-1**. Detailed cost analysis backup is provided in **Appendix D**.

10.1 Comparative Analysis of Remedial Alternatives

The following paragraphs present a comparison of the remedial alternatives which were evaluated in detail in **Section 9.0**, relative to the following evaluation criteria (an assessment of Community Acceptance will be made after the public comment period is complete, as part of the Responsiveness Summary). The comparative analysis is also presented in tabular form in **Table 10-2**.

Compliance with Standards, Criteria, and Guidance. None of the alternatives would meet chemical-specific SCGs for the Site in the near term because they do not remove or treat all Site contamination which exceeds applicable SCG values. Instead, these alternatives are compared with respect to their ability to accelerate the reduction of contaminant mass in the short term for the source area and to achieve SCGs in the long term for residual on-site contamination.

Alternatives 1, 2, and 3 would not meet chemical-specific SCGs in the short term for groundwater contamination. However, by removing source area contamination they would help satisfy chemical-specific SCGs in the long term. Qualitatively, Alternative 2 would satisfy chemical-specific SCGs more rapidly than Alternative 1 by accelerating mass removal through increased groundwater extraction. The results of the hydraulic fracturing pilot test do not suggest hydraulic fracturing may have limited effectiveness at improving mass removal, and Alternative 3 therefore ranks below Alternative 2 in compliance with SCGs.

Implementation of the alternatives would be conducted in accordance with applicable municipal, state, and federal guidance and regulations. **Table 9-1** presents a summary of location- and action-specific SCGs associated with the alternatives evaluated in this Section.

Overall Protection of Public Health and the Environment.

In all alternatives, protection of public health and the environment is accomplished principally through the operation of a groundwater extraction and treatment system on site along with implementation of institutional and management controls for potential exposure to contaminants in each media (soil, soil vapor and groundwater). Therefore, under this criterion the alternatives vary only in how long they rely on groundwater containment to provide the necessary protection of public health and the environment, with Alternative 1 requiring the most time to achieve SCGs site wide, and Alternative 2 potentially requiring the least time. Existing controls and health and safety practices would also continue to be implemented until RAOs were met for all three alternatives.

Short-term Effectiveness. Because no actions would be taken, Alternative 1 would not result in short-term adverse impacts and risks to the community, site workers, and the environment.

Alternatives 2 and 3 include activities that would result in potential short-term adverse impacts and risks to workers during implementation. However, the risks could be mitigated through coordination and communication with the facility personnel, erosion, sedimentation and dust control where applicable, preparation and implementation of a comprehensive contractor health and safety plan, and continued adherence to existing health and safety practices at the facility. It is estimated that Alternatives 2 and 3 could be fully implemented in less than one year.

Long-term Effectiveness and Permanence. Alternatives 1 and 2 are expected to meet RAOs in the future due to increased extraction of contaminant mass and improved hydraulic containment of the contaminant plumes, although the time period required to meet RAOs is difficult to predict. Remaining contamination would pose a low risk to human health and the environment, and existing health and safety practices on-site would further mitigate residual risks. Alternative 2 is more effective than Alternative 1 in the long term by accelerating contaminant mass removal and targeting the areas of highest contaminant concentration for removal and treatment. Alternative 2 is also considered to be more effective than Alternative 3 based on the hydraulic fracturing pilot test results, which suggest hydraulic fracturing may have limited benefit. Alternatives 2 and 3 also create the potential for increased off-site migration of contaminated groundwater as a result of uncontrolled vertical fracturing, which could increase connectivity to deeper fractures.

Reduction of Toxicity, Mobility, or Volume with Treatment. Alternatives 1, 2, and 3 would reduce the mobility and volume of contaminants on site through groundwater extraction and ex-situ treatment with granular activated carbon. All three of these alternatives would likely achieve similar levels of reduction.

Implementability. No additional actions would be conducted under Alternative 1; therefore there are no technical difficulties associated with this alternative. As Alternative 1 is an existing remedy, no new administrative obstacles or concerns are anticipated other than implementation of institutional and management controls.

Alternative 2 includes the installation of up to two horizontalextraction wells and continued operation, maintenance, and monitoring of the groundwater extraction system. This alternative would include technical challenges. Drilling rates in fractured rock can be slow, and the possibility of borehole collapse does exist both for fractured zones and for heterogeneous glacial till in the overlying soils. As discussed in **Section 8**, installation of an east-west well would be difficult due to the existing industrial infrastructure overlying the proposed well path and limited space for well entrance and exit points. However, based on conversations with horizontal well drillers and engineering experience with horizontal well installation, these challenges can be addressed through the use of appropriate drilling methods and practices. As an implementation of the existing remedy, administrative obstacles or concerns are not anticipated.

Alternative 3 includes hydraulic fracturing of the shallow bedrock on site, installing new extraction wells, and continued operation, maintenance, and monitoring of the groundwater extraction system. This alternative would not be technically difficult to implement. As an enhancement of the existing remedy, administrative obstacles or concerns are not anticipated. Because the hydraulic fracturing to be used in this alternative is different from the fracturing used in the petroleum industry in that it only uses clean water as a fracturing medium with no chemical additives, regulatory approvals are not expected to be a major issue.

Land Use. The current and reasonably anticipated future land use of the Site is for continued commercial and industrial use. Alternatives 1, 2, and 3 would be compatible with current land use and with reasonably anticipated future land use, given the existing management and engineering controls.

Cost. A comparison of estimated capital and long-term costs associated with the remedial alternatives is presented in **Table 10-1**. In general, Alternatives 1 and 3 have similar net present worth costs, since the bulk of the cost is associated with the long-term operation, monitoring, and maintenance of the existing groundwater extraction and treatment system. Alternative 2 has higher capital costs than Alternatives 1 and 3 and higher annual O&M costs due to the assumed expansion of groundwater treatment capacity. These higher costs are partially offset by the shorter assumed duration of operation, but Alternative 2 remains the most expensive alternative considered.

11.0 RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVE

Based on the detailed analysis and comparison of alternatives, it is recommended that Arch and the NYSDEC select Alternative 2, Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells, as the preferred remedy. As with each of the other alternatives, this alternative includes institutional and management controls to prevent human health and environmental exposure to contaminants in groundwater and other media. The use of horizontal wells in Alternative 2 allows for hundreds of additional feet of well screen to intercept areas of contaminant migration and source areas. The additional influence of a horizontal groundwater extraction well or wells will improve hydraulic control and accelerate contaminant mass removal more effectively than using vertical wells alone as with Alternative 1 or using technologies of uncertain effectiveness in Site-specific conditions as with Alternative 3. Although Alternative 2 is more expensive than the other alternatives, this is outweighed by the likelihood for improved containment and capture of contaminant mass and the shorter expected timeframe to achieve RAOs.

Alternative 3 is not recommended at this time due to uncertain performance. The pilot test did not convincingly demonstrate that fracking technology could be effectively applied to the site's specific conditions. The pilot test demonstrated inconsistent results with no long-term benefit observed to date from the existing extraction wells in the vicinity of the test.

Based on these considerations, Alternative 2 provides the best balance of all the evaluation criteria. Alternative 2 continues using a proven extraction system that has removed contaminant mass and controlled contaminant migration within the source area, introduces a new extraction technology to improve existing hydraulic control and contaminant source removal, and does not risk the uncertainty of new technologies that did not perform convincingly on-site during the pilot tests.

12.0 GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Arch	Arch Chemicals, Inc.
bgs	below ground surface
cm/sec	centimeter(s) per second
COC	contaminant of concern
DER DNAPL	Division of Environmental Remediation dense non-aqueous phase liquid
FS	Feasibility Study
GAC	granular activated carbon
gpm	gallon(s) per minute
µg/L	micrograms per liter
Nothnagle	Nothnagle Drilling, Inc.
NPW	net present worth
NYCRR	New York Codes, Rules and Regulations
NYS	New York State
NYSDEC	New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
NYSDOH	New York State Department of Health
O&M	Operation and Maintenance
OSHA	Occupational Safety and Health Administration
PEL	Permissible Exposure Limit
POTW	Publicly Owned Treatment Works
psi	pounds per square inch
RAO	Remedial Action Objective
ROD	Record of Decision
RI	Remedial Investigation
SCO	site cleanup objective
Site	Arch Chemicals, Inc. manufacturing facility in Rochester, NY
SCG	standards, criteria and guidance values
SVOC	semi volatile organic compound
USEPA	United States Environmental Protection Agency
VOC	volatile organic compound

13.0 REFERENCES

- ABB, 1995. ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES), Final Phase I Remedial Investigation Report; Prepared for Olin Chemicals Group, Rochester Plant Site, Rochester, New York; Portland, Maine; August 1995.
- Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2018. Surface Water and Groundwater Monitoring Program Spring 2018 Monitoring Report. Prepared by Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc., for Arch Chemicals, Inc. August 2018.
- Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2015. Draft Feasibility Study Addendum Report, Site No. 828018a. Prepared by Amec Foster Wheeler Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. for Arch Chemicals, Inc., April 2015.
- Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2000. Feasibility Study Report. Prepared by Harding Lawson Associates for Arch Chemicals, Inc. January 2000.
- Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2006a. 2006 Onsite Vapor Intrusion Sampling. Prepared by MACTEC Engineering and Consulting, Inc. for Arch Chemicals, Inc. May 2006.
- Arch Chemicals, Inc., 2006b. Vapor Intrusion Sampling at Firth Rixson and ARM. Prepared by MACTEC Engineering and Consulting, Inc. for Arch Chemicals, Inc. June 2006.
- MACTEC Engineering and Consulting, Inc. (MACTEC), 2005. Letter to John Swierkos (Dolomite Products, Inc.) from Jeffrey Brandow (MACTEC) "Dolomite Quarry Sampling Program"; June 2005.
- New York State (NYS), 2006. New York Codes, Rules, and Regulations, Title 6, Part 375- Inactive Hazardous Waste Disposal Sites Remedial Program. Amended December 2006.
- New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC), 2010. DER-10, Technical Guidance for Site Investigation and Remediation. May 2010.
- NYSDEC, 1998. Class GA Groundwater Quality Guidance Values from the Division of Water Technical and operational Guidance Series 1.1.1 "Ambient Water Quality Standards and Guidance Values", 1998.
- NYSDEC, 2019. Record of Decision, Arch Chemicals, Inc. Inactive Hazardous Waste Site Rochester, Monroe County, Site No. 828018A. March 2019.
- United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), 2000. "A Guide for Developing and Documenting Cost Estimates During the Feasibility Study"; EPA 540-R-00-002, OSWER 9355.0-75; U.S. Environmental Protection Agency; Washington, D.C., July 2000.
- USEPA, 1988. Guidance for Conducting Remedial Investigations and Feasibility Studies under CERCLA (Interim Final); EPA/540/G-89/004. October 1988.

FIGURES















Prepared by: jar Reviewed by: nmb













TABLES

Chem Class	Parameter	Area	Units	Detects	Samples	Mean*	Maximum
SVOCs	2-Chloropyridine	Well B-17 Area	MG/KG	13	19	37	300
		Lab Sample Area	MG/KG	5	10	1.5	3.4
		Sodamide Area	MG/KG	2	8	0.49	2.8
		Tank Farm Area	MG/KG	2	10	0.11	0.11
		TDA Area	MG/KG	5	5	26	67
		Well BR-5 Area	MG/KG	2	10	0.094	0.081
	2,6-Dichloropyridine	Well B-17 Area	MG/KG	17	19	12	170
		Lab Sample Area	MG/KG	0	10	0.08	ND
		Sodamide Area	MG/KG	4	8	0.13	0.24
		Tank Farm Area	MG/KG	4	10	0.13	0.49
		TDA Area	MG/KG	5	5	3.8	9.5
		Well BR-5 Area	MG/KG	5	10	0.101	0.32
	3-Chloropyridine	Well B-17 Area	MG/KG	6	19	4.1	2.9
		Lab Sample Area	MG/KG	0	10	ND	ND
		Sodamide Area	MG/KG	1	8	0.89	0.038
		Tank Farm Area	MG/KG	0	10	ND	ND
		TDA Area	MG/KG	0	5	ND	0.89 0.038 ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND 222 4,200
		Well BR-5 Area	MG/KG	0	10	ND	ND
VOCs	Carbon tetrachloride	Well B-17 Area	MG/KG	11	19	222	4,200
		Lab Sample Area	MG/KG	1	10	0.002	0.0023
		Sodamide Area	MG/KG	4	8	0.04	0.14
		Tank Farm Area	MG/KG	2	10	0.003	0.0092
		TDA Area	MG/KG	1	5	0.08	0.0056
		Well BR-5 Area	MG/KG	1	10	0.002	0.0014
	Chloroform	Well B-17 Area	MG/KG	12	19	21	380
		Lab Sample Area	MG/KG	0	10	ND	ND
		Sodamide Area	MG/KG	3	8	0.06	0.49
		Tank Farm Area	MG/KG	2	10	0.008	0.06
		TDA Area	MG/KG	3	5	0.34	1
		Well BR-5 Area	MG/KG	1	10	0.002	0.0013
	Methylene chloride	Well B-17 Area	MG/KG	6	19	0.60	2.4
		Lab Sample Area	MG/KG	0	10	ND	ND
		Sodamide Area	MG/KG	1	8	0.012	0.0092
		Tank Farm Area	MG/KG	2	10	0.002	0.0026
		TDA Area	MG/KG	3	5	0.615	2.8
		Well BR-5 Area	MG/KG	3	10	0.004	0.011

Table 3-1: Soil Data Summary

Mean concentration calculated using 1/2 of detect limit for non-detects MG/KG = milligrams per kilogram

Bold number reflects highest mean or maximum concentration among the 6 areas

Environmental Media & Exposure Route	Human Exposure Assessment
Direct contact with surface soils (and incidental ingestion)	 The public is not coming into contact with contaminated surface soils because access to the site is restricted by fencing. People can come into contact with contaminated surface soils if they trespass on the site. Workers can come into contact with uncovered contaminated surface soils.
Direct contact with subsurface soils (and incidental ingestion)	• Workers can come into contact if they complete ground-intrusive work at the site; however, the Arch Plant has a mandatory policy that requires the use of PPE in hazardous conditions.
Ingestion of groundwater Direct contact with groundwater	 Contaminated groundwater is not being used for drinking water because bedrock groundwater is non-potable due to high concentrations of salts, sulfide, and dissolved gasses The area area is served by the public water supply and is required for new developments of more than five houses. There are no known domestic water supply wells in the area. Workers can come into contact if they complete ground-intrusive work at the site; however, the Arch Plant has a mandatory policy that requires the use of PPE in hazardous conditions. People can come into contact if private wells are installed in the area; however, bedrock groundwater is non-potable and public water is available and required in new developments of more than five houses.
Direct contact with surface water (and incidental ingestion)	• Anyone wading or swimming in the Erie Barge Canal downgradient from the site can come into contact with surface water.
Inhalation of air (exposures related to soil vapor intrusion)	 The public is not coming into contact with soil vapor on-site because access to the site is restricted by fencing. Workers can come into contact with contaminated soil vapor; however, only one soil gas sample slightly exceeded the air standard and was considered to pose no substantial health risk by the prior risk assessment.

Table 5-1: Qualitative Human Health Exposure Assessment

Table 7-1: Identification and Screening of Remedial Technologies

Environmental Media	General Response Action	Remedial Technology	Process Option	Applicability to		Screening Status	Comments	
Wicula	Response Action	reemology		Site-Limiting Characteristics	Waste-Limiting Characteristics			
Groundwater	No Further Action	Groundwater Extraction and Treatment	Extraction by groundwater pumps and treatment by granular activated carbon.	Not Applicable	Not Applicable	Retained.	Retained to be carried through detailed analysis of alternatives for comparison to alternatives that satisfy RAOs.	
Enha Extra	Enhanced Extraction	Blasted Bedrock Trench	Extraction wells.	Limited surface access due to site buildings and features. Further, the proximity of the contaminant source areas to the facility buildings my prohibit the use of explosives and the applicability of blasted bedrock trenching.	None.	Eliminated.	Initial evaluation of the site and source area contamination by a blasting contractor advised that this technology would not be feasible for this site. There is insufficient clearance from the site buildings to employ explosives without risking disturbance or damage to facility structures or operations.	
		Hydraulic Fracturing	Extraction wells.	Limited surface access due to site buildings and features.	None.	Retained.		
		Groundwater Extraction Wells	Extraction wells.	Limited surface access due to site buildings and features. Surface access issues may be mitigated through the installation of horizontal wells.	None.	Retained.	Given the known effectiveness and limitations of vertical wells on-site, alternatives using groundwater extraction wells will evaluate the use of horizontal groundwater extraction wells where practicable.	
	In-Situ Treatment	Biological Treatment	Enhanced Biodegradation	Surface access for injections may be difficult given presence of actively used buildings and facility components. Distribution of applied biodegradation materials into bedrock matrix may be difficult and ineffective. The variable fractures in the bedrock could make uniform distribution of bioremediation materials unlikely.	Would not effectively treat relatively high concentrations of VOC contaminants or chloropyridines. Presently, results of groundwater monitoring do not demonstrate chloropyridines are readily biodegrade at this site. Treatability tests would be required to demonstrate if chloropyridines can be readily biodegraded.	Eliminated.	No evidence of biodegradation of chloropyridines on-site.	
		Physical Treatment	Permeable Reactive Barrier	Installation of a permeable reactive barrier would be severely restricted due to the chemical manufacturing equipment and facility buildings, as well as the treatment depth required into bedrock.	Treatability tests may be required to demonstrate if chloropyridines could be immobilized and then degraded by a permeable reactive barrier.	Eliminated.		
			Air Sparging	Limited surface access for sparging and recovery wells due to site buildings and features.	Would removes VOC contaminants from the soil in the saturated zone and bedrock, but may require additional technology to treat off-gases. Relatively low volatility of chloropyridines suggests this technology would not be effective at treating both contaminant groups	Eliminated.		

Table 7-1: Identification and Screening of Remedial Technologies

Environmental	General	Remedial	Process Option	A		Screening	Commonto
Media	Response Action	Technology		Site-Limiting Characteristics	Waste-Limiting Characteristics	Status	Comments
		Thermal Treatment	In-Situ Thermal Desorption	May not be cost-effective for the extensive horizontal extents of contamination (i.e. more probe points required to heat media). Site buildings and features would restrict installation locations. Installation locations are not recommended for any use except the treatment system throughout treatment, potentially preventing facility activities in the treatment area. Infeasibility of cutting off groundwater flow to source area may inhibit effectiveness due to heat required to boil off water before heating contaminants to higher temperatures, or else require the installation of steam wells upgradient to preheat water before it arrives in the treatment area. Could not treat underneath building without disrupting building operations or raising indoor air temperatures to nearly unbearable levels.	Requires capture of off-gases for contaminants that are not destroyed by heating. Low volatility and high solubility of chloropyridines may restrict technology's ability to reduce contamination to the low parts per million range.	Eliminated.	Reviewed technology is patented by Terratherm.
		Chemical Treatment	Oxidation/Reduction	Surface access for injections may be difficult given presence of actively used buildings and facility components. Distribution of applied reagent into bedrock matrix may be difficult and ineffective. The variable fractures in the bedrock could make uniform distribution of bioremediation materials unlikely.	Chloropyridines did not respond to chemical oxidation using Fenton's reagent and potassium permanganate in previous FS. Catalyzed persulfate may prove effective, but treatability tests would be required to demonstrate effectiveness.	Retained.	Will test treatment approach with alkaline activated sodium persulfate, patented by VeruTEK.

FS Report — Arch Chemicals, Inc. NYSDEC — Site No. 828018a AMEC E E, PC Project No. 3616176061

Remedial Alternative	Effectiveness	Implementability	Cost
Alternative 1: No Further Action: Continued Groundwater Extraction	Not evaluated.	Not evaluated.	No cost.
Alternative 2: Install Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells	In the long term, this alternative would be effective at reducing the concentration of chloropyridines and VOCs near existing extraction wells and new extraction wells in the contaminant source area. In the short term, this alternative would achieve significant additional mass removal in the source area.	Technical issues with implementing this alternative primarily include the installation of a horizontal well to capture groundwater in bedrock with predominantly horizontal fractures. Since the wells and fractures would need to intersect on the same horizontal plane, it's possible a horizontal well could miss significant water bearing zones. Additional implementability concerns include drilling in fractured bedrock, which carries the risk of boring collapse. Drill bit navigation may be difficult due to the facility infrastructure at the site's gorund surface. Identifying entrance/exit points for the wells that won't interfere with facility operations will also be difficult.	Costs associated with this alternativ primary cost items include bedrock above ground pipe installation, grou installation, and continued operatio monitoring of the extraction system given the long horizontal runs of the production rates in bedrock compar
Alternative 3: Hydraulic Fracturing and Additional Groundwater Extraction Wells	In the long term, this alternative would be effective at reducing the concentration of chloropyridines and VOCs in hydraulically fractured bedrock within the contaminant source area. In the short term, this alternative could achieve significant additional mass removal from the source area.	Technical issues with implementing this alternative include the unknown effectiveness of hydraulic fracturing in the weathered bedrock. The pilot test results suggest uncertainty with the potential effectiveness of this technology, raising concerns that the varied fractures in bedrock could affect implementability.	Costs associated with this alternative cost items include the fracking pilot bedrock extraction well installation maintenance, and monitoring of the system. However, these costs would risk based on the uncertain number required to achieve communication bedrock fractures and the new extra
Alternative 4: In-Situ Source Treatment - Chemical Oxidation	This alternative would not effectively oxidize groundwater contaminants in the short term. While VOC and chloropyridine degradation was successfully demonstrated during laboratory bench test analyses, the pilot study indicated oxidant transport and dispersion did not promote sufficient contact and oxidant permanency to target contamination within the fracted bedrock matrix, and contaminant concentrations were reduced either inconsistently or ineffectively in observed monitoring wells.	In-situ chemical oxidation can be implemented using readily available technologies. Depending on the chemical used, its dosage, and ability for chemical distribution, this alternative can provide relatively quick results. Technical issues with implementing this alternative derive from the limited surface access given the active facility, as well as the varied fractures in bedrock which would likely limit contact between the chemical oxidant and the contaminants.	Costs associated with this alternative cost items include the chemical oxid and the chemical oxidant injection j costs would carry a high contingend uncertain ability to contact contami

Table 8-1: Preliminary Screening of Remedial Alternatives

	Comments
	Retained as a baseline for
	comparison.
ve are moderate. The a extraction well installation, undwater treatment system ons, maintenance, and h. Drilling costs may be high he wells and the lower red to other soils.	Retained.
ve are moderate. The primary of test, fracking program, and long term operations, e enhanced extraction d carry a high contingency of hydraulic fracturing wells a between the developed action wells.	Retained.
ve are moderate. The primary idant bench test, pilot study, program. However, these cy risk based on the inants with the oxidant.	Eliminated.

Requirement	Consideration in the Remedial Response Process
29 CFR Part 1910.120 - Hazardous Waste Operations	Applicable to implementation of Health and Safety implementation,
and Emergency Response	enforcement, and emergency response.
6 NYCRR Part 371 - Identification and Listing of	Applicable to the characterization, handling, transportation, and
Hazardous Wastes (November 1998)	treatment/disposal of soils to be removed from the Site.
6 NYCRR Part 372 - Hazardous Waste Manifest	Applicable to the handling, transportation, and treatment/disposal
System and Related Standards for Generators,	of soils to be removed from the Site.
Transporters and Facilities (November 1998)	
6 NYCRR Part 375 - Environmental Remediation	Applicable to the development and implementation of remedial
Programs (as amended December 2006)	programs.
6 NYCRR Part 376 - Land Disposal Restrictions	Applicable to disposal of hazardous wastes. Identifies those wastes
	that are restricted from land disposal.
6 NYCRR Part 750 through 758 - Implementation of	Applicable to construction in and adjacent to water bodies and
NPDES Program in NYS ("SPDES Regulations")	discharge of treated wastewater.
DER-10 Technical Guidance for Site Investigation	Applicable to the development and implementation of remedial
and Remediation	programs.
Citizen Participation in New York's Hazardous	Applicable to the development and implementation of remedial
Waste Site Remediation Program: A Guidebook	programs.
(June 1998)	
TOGS 1.1.1 - Ambient Water Quality Standards &	Applicable to discharge of treated wastewater.
Guidance Values and Groundwater Effluent	
Limitations	
Solidification/Stabilization and its Application to	Applicable to disposal of wastes generated during implementation
Waste Materials	of remedial program.

Table 9-1: Applicable Location- and Action-Specific Standards, Criteria, and Guidance

Table 9	-2. Cost	Summary fo	or Alternative	1 - Continued	Groundwater	Extraction
Table 2	-2. CUSI	Summary I	JI AILEI HALIVE	1 - Commueu	Groundwater	Extraction

ITEM	COST
DIRECT CAPITAL COSTS	
Direct Cost Subtotal	\$ -
INDIRECT CAPITAL COSTS	
Project Management (@ 10 Percent)	\$ -
Remedial Design (none included)	\$ -
Construction Management (none included)	\$ -
Contingency (@ 15 Percent)	\$ -
Indirect Cost Subtotal	\$ -
TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS	\$ -
ANNUAL OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE COSTS	
OM&M of the Existing Groundwater Extraction System (years 1-30)	\$ 228,000
Semiannual Monitoring and reporting (years 1-30)	\$ 97,000
PRESENT WORTH OF ANNUAL AND PERIODIC COSTS (30 yrs)	\$ 4,996,000
TOTAL PRESENT WORTH OF ALTERNATIVE 1 (30 vrs)	\$ 4,996,000

Costs have been rounded to the nearest thousand. Costs based on annual inspection and reporting.

ITEM	COST
DIRECT CAPITAL COSTS	
General Conditions	\$ 39,000
Extraction Well Installation	\$ 685,000
Direct Cost Subtotal	\$ 724,000
INDIRECT CAPITAL COSTS	
Project Management (@ 6 Percent)	\$ 44,000
Remedial Design (@ 12 Percent)	\$ 87,000
Contingency (@ 15 Percent)	\$ 58,000
Contingency (@ 25 Percent)	\$ 181,000
Indirect Cost Subtotal	\$ 370,000
TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS	\$ 1,094,000
ANNUAL OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE COSTS	
Annual Groundwater Extraction System OM&M (1-25)	\$ 355,000
Semiannual Monitoring (Years 1-30)	\$ 97,000
PRESENT WORTH OF ANNUAL AND PERIODIC COSTS (30 yrs)	\$ 5,917,000
TOTAL PRESENT WORTH OF ALTERNATIVE 2 (30 yrs)	\$ 7,011,000

Table 9.3: Cost Summary for Alternative 2 – Install Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells

NOTES: Costs have been rounded to the nearest thousand.

4.1 Tables 10.1, 9.2-9.5 Costs_2015-03-24_mg
Table 9 4. Cost Summary	v for Alternative 3 .	Hydraulic Fract	turing and Additiona	l Groundwater	Extraction Wells
Table 7.4. Cost Summar	y for Anernauve 5 -	Ilyuraulic Frac	tui ilig allu Auuliiolla	ii Grounuwater	Extraction wens

ITEM	COST
DIRECT CAPITAL COSTS	
Hydraulic Fracturing Field Program	\$ 64,300
Extraction Well Installation	\$ 77,982
Direct Cost Subtotal	\$ 142,282
INDIRECT CAPITAL COSTS	
Project Management (@ 8 Percent)	\$ 11,000
Remedial Design (@ 15 Percent)	\$ 21,000
Contingency (@ 15 Percent)	\$ 14,000
Contingency (@ 25 Percent)	\$ 36,000
Indirect Cost Subtotal	\$ 82,000
TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS	\$ 224,282
ANNUAL OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE COSTS	
Annual Groundwater Extraction System OM&M (1-20)	\$ 228,000
Semiannual Monitoring (Years 1-30)	\$ 97,000
PRESENT WORTH OF ANNUAL AND PERIODIC COSTS (30 yrs)	\$ 4,581,000
TOTAL PRESENT WORTH OF ALTERNATIVE 3 (30 yrs)	\$ 4,805,000
NOTES	

NOTES:

Costs have been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Costs based on annual inspection and reporting.

		Al	ternative	Alternative	Alternative
Item	Description		1	2	3
1	Capital Costs	\$	-	\$ 1,094,000	\$ 224,282
2	Present Worth of Annual and Periodic Costs	\$	4,996,000	\$ 5,917,000	\$ 4,581,000
3	Total Present Worth (Item 1 plus 2)	\$	4,996,000	\$ 7,011,000	\$ 4,805,000
4	Annual Costs Years 1 through 15 Contingency (@ 15 Percent)	\$	325,000	\$ 452,000	\$ 325,000
5	Annual Costs Years 16 through 20	\$	325,000	\$ 452,000	\$ 325,000
6	Annual Costs Years 21 through 25	\$	325,000	\$ 97,000	\$ 325,000
7	Annual Costs Years 26 through 30	\$	325,000	\$ 97,000	\$ 97,000
8	Remedial Timeframe (yrs) (Note 3)		30	30	30

Table 10.1: Summary of Remedial Alternative Costs

Notes:

1. Present Worth costs shown above are based upon the assumed Remedial Timeframe.

2. Annual and Periodic Costs (Item 2, 4 - 7) presented are non-discounted (future) costs.

3. Estimated costs presented in this table are intended to be within the target accuracy range of minus 30 to plus 50 percent of actual cost.

<u>Alternative Descriptions:</u>

1 = Continued Groundwater Extraction

2 = Install Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells

3 = Hydraulic Fracturing and Additional Groundwater Extraction Wells

FS Report — Arch Chemicals, Inc. NYSDEC — Site No. 828018a AMEC E E, PC Project No. 3616176061

Table 10-2: Comparative Analysis of Remedial Alternatives

Remedial Alternative	Alternative 1: Continued Groundwater Extraction	Alternative 2: Install Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells	Alternative 3 Additional G
Compliance with New York State SCGs	Alternative 1 does not meet chemical-specific SCGs in the short term because it does not remove or treat groundwater contamination in excess of 6 NYCRR Parts 700-706 Water Quality Standards (NYSDEC, 1998). However, in the long term this alternative will assist remediating groundwater to meet class GA groundwater standards.	Alternative 2 does not meet chemical-specific SCGs in the short term because it does not remove or treat groundwater contamination in excess of 6 NYCRR Parts 700-706 Water Quality Standards (NYSDEC, 1998). However, in the long term this alternative will assist remediating groundwater to meet class GA groundwater standards faster than Alternatives 1 or 3.	Alternative 3 does in the short term be groundwater contan Parts 700-706 Wat 1998). However, in assist remediating g groundwater standa technology suggest at reaching SCGs s 1 alone.
Overall Protection of Human Health and the Environment	Alternative 1 protects public health and the environment through controlling migration of groundwater contaminants from the source area and eliminating and controlling potential exposure pathways through removal and treatment of contaminated groundwater. This remedial alternative may achieve the RAOs for groundwater in the long term.	Alternative 2 protects public health and the environment through controlling migration of groundwater contaminants from the source area and eliminating and controlling potential exposure pathways through removal and treatment of contaminated groundwater. This remedial alternative may achieve the RAOs for groundwater in the long term and would likely achieve RAOs faster than Alternatives 1 or 3.	Alternative 3 prote environment throug groundwater contai eliminating and con pathways through in contaminated groun may achieve the RA term, but would lik Alternative 2 and v
Short-term Impacts and Effectiveness	Alternative 1 does not include construction or other activities that would result in potential short-term adverse impacts and risks to the community, workers, or the environment during implementation.	Alternative 2 includes activities that would result in potential short-term adverse impacts and risks to workers during installation of the new extraction wells. However, proper health and safety practices can control these risks. It is estimated that this alternative could be fully implemented in approximately one year.	Alternative 3 inclue potential short-term workers during the program, and instal extraction wells. H practices can contra- this alternative cou approximately one

8: Hydraulic Fracturing and roundwater Extraction Wells

not meet chemical-specific SCGs ecause it does not remove or treat mination in excess of 6 NYCRR ter Quality Standards (NYSDEC, n the long term this alternative will groundwater to meet class GA ards. The pilot test results for this t this alternative may be ineffective significantly faster than Alternative

ects public health and the gh controlling migration of minants from the source area and ntrolling potential exposure removal and treatment of ndwater. This remedial alternative AOs for groundwater in the long cely not achieve RAOs faster than would be comparable to Alternative

des activities that would result in n adverse impacts and risks to e fracking pilot test, fracking llation of new groundwater lowever, proper health and safety rol these risks. It is estimated that ild be fully implemented in year. FS Report — Arch Chemicals, Inc. NYSDEC — Site No. 828018a AMEC E E, PC Project No. 3616176061

Remedial Alternative	Alternative 1: Continued Groundwater Extraction	Alternative 2: Install Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells	Alternative 3 Additional Gi
Long-term Effectiveness and Permanence	Alternative 1 may meet RAOs in the future due to natural attenuation of contaminants and continued extraction of contaminant mass, although the time period required to meet RAOs is likely significant. Remaining contamination would pose a low risk to human health and the environment, and existing health and safety practices on-site further mitigate the residual risks.	Alternative 2 may meet RAOs in the future due to natural attenuation of contaminants and continued extraction of contaminant mass, although the time period required to meet RAOs is likely significant. Remaining contamination would pose a low risk to human health and the environment, and existing health and safety practices on-site further mitigate the residual risks. This remedial alternative would likely achieve RAOs faster than Alternatives 1 or 3 due to increased contaminant mass extraction rates.	Alternative 3 may r natural attenuation extraction of contar period required to r Remaining contami human health and th health and safety pr residual risks. This achieve RAOs con ineffective pilot tes
Reduction of Toxicity, Mobility, and Volume	Alternative 1 would reduce the mobility and volume of contaminants on-site through groundwater extraction and ex-situ treatment with granular activated carbon.	Alternative 2 would reduce the mobility and volume of contaminants on-site through groundwater extraction and ex-situ treatment with granular activated carbon.	Alternative 3 would of contaminants on extraction and ex-si activated carbon.
Implementability	Alternative 1 does not include additional actions. Therefore, there are no technical difficulties associated with this alternative. As the existing remedy, regulatory approval of this alternative is not anticipated to be difficult.	Alternative 2 includes the installation of new extraction wells and continued operation, maintenance, and monitoring of the groundwater extraction system. This alternative would not be technically difficult to implement. As an enhancement of the existing remedy, regulatory approval of this alternative is not anticipated to be difficult.	Alternative 3 includes shallow bedrock on wells, and continue monitoring of the g alternative would n implement. As an e remedy, regulatory anticipated to be di
Land Use	Alternative 1 would be compatible with current and foreseeable future land use given the existing institutional controls, groundwater containment, and anticipated continued use of the land as an active chemical manufacturing facility.	Alternative 2 would be compatible with current and foreseeable future land use given the existing institutional controls, groundwater containment, and anticipated continued use of the land as an active chemical manufacturing facility.	Alternative 3 would foreseeable future 1 institutional control anticipated continu- chemical manufacto

3: Hydraulic Fracturing and roundwater Extraction Wells

meet RAOs in the future due to of contaminants and increased minant mass, although the time meet RAOs is likely significant. ination would pose a low risk to the environment, and existing practices on-site further mitigate the s remedial alternative would likely mparably to Alternative 1 due to the st results.

d reduce the mobility and volume -site through groundwater itu treatment with granular

des hydraulic fracturing of the n-site, installing new extraction ed operation, maintenance, and groundwater extraction system. This not be technically difficult to enhancement of the existing approval of this alternative is not fficult.

d be compatible with current and land use given the existing ols, groundwater containment, and ned use of the land as an active turing facility.

APPENDIX A

MEDIA-SPECIFIC STANDARDS, CRITERIA, AND GUIDANCE

Constituent	Groundwater SCG^a (ppb)^b	Soil SCG ^c (ppm) ^d	Surface Water SCG^e (ppb) ^b
VOCS	•		
Carbon Tetrachloride	5	0.76	ND
Chlorobenzene	5	ND	ND
Chloroform	7	0.37	ND
1,1-Dichloroethene	ND	0.33	ND
Methylene Chloride	5	0.05	ND
Tetrachloroethene	5	1.3	ND
Trichloroethene	5	0.47	ND
SVOCs			
2,6-dichloropyridine	NS	NS	NS
2-chloropyridine	NS	$0.9^{\rm f}$	NS
3-chloropyridine	NS	0.8^{f}	NS
4-chloropyridine	NS	NS	ND
p-fluoroaniline	NS	ND	ND
Pyridine	50	ND	ND
Benzo(a)pyrene	ND	1	ND
Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene	ND	11	ND
Inorganics			
Mercury	ND	5.7	ND

Appendix A: Media-Specific Standards, Criteria, and Guidance

a - Ambient Water Quality Standards and Guidance Values (TOGs 1.1.1), 6 NYCRR Part 703: Surface Water and Groundwater Quality Standards, and Part 5 of the New Tork State Sanitary Code (10 NYCRR Part 5)

b - ppb: parts per billion, which is equivalent to micrograms per liter, ug/L, in water

c - Part 375-6.8(b), Restricted Use Soil Cleanup Objectives for the Protection of Groundwater

d - ppm: parts per million, which is equivalent to milligrams per kilogram, mg/kg, in soil

e - Ambient Water Quality Standards and Guidance Values (TOGs 1.1.1), and 6 NYCRR Part 703: Surface Water and Groundwater Quality Standards

f - As used in March 2002 ROD

NS - no standard of guidance value

ND - Constituent not detected in media

APPENDIX B

CALCULATIONS

Job No. Job Name	3616146046 Arch Chemicals FSA		amaco	
Ву	Nelson Breton	Date 1/8/15	anieu]
Checked By	Brandon Newman	Date 1/14/15	511 Congress Street	ļ
			Portland, ME 04101	ļ
			+1 (207) 775-5401	ļ

Purpose:

Estimate the yield of a 500' long horizontal groundwater extraction well installed at the Arch Chemicals Facility in Rochester, NY.

(4)

Method:

Steady-State Solution

While a vertical well drains a cylindrical colume, a horizontal well of length L drains an ellipsoid (Figure 1). The zone of influence is elliptical, with endpoints of the well constituting the foci of the ellipse. The area of the drainage ellipse, A_{z} , is:

$$A_a = \pi R_{ac} a \tag{1}$$

in which R_{eu} is the effective drainage radius of a vertical well in the same aquifer, and a is half the major axis of the ellipse (Fritz et al., 1991)

$$a = \sqrt{(L/2)^2 + R_{es}^2}$$
(2)

In order to compare the drainage area of a horizontal wall with that of a vertical well, the drainage radius of horizontal well, R_{st} , measured in the plane that contains the well, is defined such that the corresponding circular area A_z equals the elliptical drainage area A_z of the well

$$A_e = A_e = \pi R_{eh}^2 \tag{3}$$

Combining Equations 1, 2, and 3 and solving for a

$$c = (L/2) \left[0.5 + \sqrt{0.25 + (2R_{eh}/L)^4} \right]^{0.5}$$

A formula for estimating a steady-state flow to a horizontal well is given as (Borisov, 1964; Giger, 1985; Joshi, 1985) $\begin{aligned}
Q_h &= \frac{2\pi KB\Delta s}{\log \left[\frac{s+\sqrt{a^2-(L/2)^2}}{L/2}\right] + (B/L)\log [B/(2r_G)]}
\end{aligned}$ (5) where $\begin{aligned}
Q_h &= -\text{flow rate}, \\
\Delta s &= -\text{drawdown},
\end{aligned}$

 $\log() = natural \log \log_{10}$

Assumptions: Homogeneous isotropic conditions with no other hydraulic influences.

Constants and Inputs: Rising Head Slug Tests - Phase I RFI

BR-101 2.20E-03 cm/s

Job No. Job Name By Checked By	3616146046 Arch Chemical Nelson Breton Brandon Newn	s FSA	Date Date	1/8/15 1/14/15		511 Congress Street	amec
						+1 (207) 775-5401	
	BR-102	4.90E-03 cm/s					
	BR-103	2.00E-04 cm/s					
	BR-104	1.90E-03 cm/s					
	BR-105	3.90E-05 cm/s			1.70E-02	2 max cm/s	
	BR-106	1.70E-02 cm/s			3.55E-03	8 median cm/s	
	BR-107	1.10E-02 cm/s			1.70E-04	max m/sec	
	BR-108	1.60E-02 cm/s			3.55E-05	i median m/sec	
	а	300	91.44 m	based on 500 ft long	screen w/ variat	ole drawdown radius	
	R _{eh}	100	30.48 m	Drawdown radius =	50)	
	S	5	1.524 m				
	L	500	152.4 m				
	R _w	0.5	0.1524 m				
	К	0.00017	3.55E-05 m/s o	ı 0.00355 cm/s	median K	3.07E+	00
	В	10	3.048 m				
References:	http://info.ngwa	a.org/gwol/pdf/9201560	009.pdf				
Calculations:	Expected flow	/ using K _{median} :					
						264.2 gal/m3	
	Q _h =	0.00155 m ³ /s		0.001036115		0.017 min/sec	
		24.6 gpm		0.668414206			Unit conv factor
				0.00155011	m3/sec x 264	gal/m3 / 0.017 min /sec =	15847
	Expected flow	/ using K _{max} :					
	Q _h =	0.00742 m ³ /s 118 gpm					
C:\Users\brand Arch HDD Well	on.newman\AppData\Loca Flow Rate Calculation 14	al/Temp\ E14AF					Page 2 of 3

Job Name	Arch Chemicals FSA			amar
Ву	Nelson Breton	Date 1/8/15		DITICL
Checked By	Brandon Newman	Date 1/14/15	511 Congress Street	
			Portland, ME 04101	
			+1 (207) 775-5401	

Conclusion:

Using a median value of hydraulic conductivity for 8 on-site bedrock wells, expected flow for a 500 foot long trench are approximately 25 gallons per minute. Flows up to 118 gpm were estimated assuming a maximum uniform hydraulic conductivity from BR-106. While actual flow rates will likely not approach 118 gpm due to variation in conductivity values along the well alignment, an intermediate flow rate of 50 gpm should be assumed to conservatively size and price the extraction and treatment equipment. Design flow rates will need to be informed by pre-design packer testing along the proposed alignments. Also, note that initial flow rates may be much higher when the system is first turned on to meet the drawdown objective.

PIPE RUN NO.			0-1		1-2			1				
RUN LENTH (FT.)			1000	-	0 50							
PIPE SIZE (IN.)		3		2								
PIPE I.D. (IN.)			2.9		1.656							
VELOCITY (FL/S) REYNOLDS NUMBER			2.43		102789.45			-				
FLOW REGIME			transition		transition							
FRICTION FACTOR (SMOOTH PIPE)		K	0.0200881	Lif	0.0177657	Цf	No	⊔f	No	Lif	No	⊔f
90° ELLS STANDARD		0.9	6	0.4946479	NO.	0	NO.	0	NO.	0	NO.	0
90° ELLS MEDIUM SWEEP		0.75		0		0		0		0		0
90° ELLS LONG SWEEP		0.6		0		0		0		0		0
90° MITER BEND (WITHOUT VANES)		1.1		0		0		0		0		0
90° MITER BEND (WITH VANES)		0.2		0		0		0		0		0
TEE-STRAIGHT		0.9		0		0		0		0		0
CLOSE RETURN BEND		2.2		0		0		0		0		0
SQUARE-EDGED ENTRANCE		0.5		0		0		0		0		0
REENTRANT ENTRANCE		0.8	1	0 002748		0		0		0		0
PIPE EXIT		1		0.002110		0		0		0		0
ORIFACE PLATE (1.5 TO 1 AREA RATIO)		0.85	1	0.0778612		0		0		0		0
ORIFACE PLATE (2 TO 1 AREA RATIO) ORIFACE PLATE (4 TO 1 AREA RATIO)		3.4		0	-	0		0		0	-	0
GENERAL CONTRACTION (30° INCLUDED A	NGLE)	0.02		0		0		0		0		0
GENERAL CONTRACTION (70° INCLUDED A	NGLE)	0.07		0		0		0		0		0
REDUCER (2 TO 1 AREA RATIO) REDUCER (5 TO 1 AREA RATIO)		0.25		0		0		0		0		0
REDUCER (10 TO 1 AREA RATIO)		0.46		0		0		0		0		0
INCREASER (1 TO 2 AREA RATIO)		0.25		0		0		0		0		0
INCREASER (1 TO 10 AREA RATIO)		0.81		0		0		0		0		0
VALVE-GATE FULLY OPEN		0.2	2	0.0366406	-	0		0		0		0
VALVE-GATE HALF OPEN		5.6		0		0		0		0		0
VALVE GATE ONE GOARTER OF EN		6.4		0		0		0		0		0
VALVE-GLOBE HALF OPEN		9.5		0		0		0		0		0
VALVE- BALL FULL OPEN		0.05		0		0		0		0		0
VALVE -SWING CHECK FULLY OPEN		2.5		0		0		0		0		0
VALVE - 3-WAY STRAIGHT THROUGH		0.51	2	0 0459007		0		0		0		0
VALVE- CHECK TOTAL FITTING HEAD (FT.)		0.25	2	0.6576985		0		0		0		0
TOTAL PIPE LENGTH (FT.)				1000		0		0		0		0
CALCULATED C VALUE FROM FRICTION FA	CTOR			151.41298		155.56289		#DIV/0!		#DIV/0!		#DIV/0!
C VALUE USED IN HAZEN-WILLIAMS PIPE FRICTION HEAD (FT.) (HAZEN-WILLIAM	MS)		÷	8.8116133		0		#DIV/0!		#DIV/0!		#DIV/0!
CONTROL VALVE FRICTION HEAD (FT.)	-1			0		0		0		0		0
EQUIPMENT FRICTION HEAD (FT.)			•	0 4602118		0		0 #DIV/01		0 #DIV/01		0 #DIV//01
CUMULATIVE FRICTION HEAD (FT.)				9.4693118		9.4693118		#DIV/0! #DIV/0!		#DIV/0! #DIV/0!		#DIV/0! #DIV/0!
FLUID			HEAD				•					
	water	%BD	+ DISCHARGI	E STATIC		545.00	FT.	PUMP	Arch Horizo	ntal Extractio	on Wells - Ty	pical
SOLIDS	unknown	78	= NET STATIO			35.00	FT.	NPSHa/MIN	I SUCT HEA	D		
MAX. PARTICLE SIZE	unknown		+ SUCTION F	RICTION		9.47	FT.					
	unknown	-	+ DISCHARGI	E FRICTION		0.00	FT.	+SUCTION VI	ESSEL PRESS			FT. ABS
TEMPERATURE	45	°F	- SUCTION VE	ESSEL PRESS		0.00	FT. ABS	+ SUCTION S	TATIC			FT.
	7.5		+ DISCHARG	E VESSEL PRE	SS	0.00	FT. ABS	- SUCTION FI	RICTION			FT.
KINEMATIC VISCOSITY	1E-05	+T^2/SEC	= TOTAL PRE PUMP TOH	:55		0.00	FT.	= NPSHA				⊢ Γ.
CAPACITY								SUBMERGEN	ICE			FT.
SOLIDS FLOW		BDT/D										
VOLUME FLOW			1									
	- 10	USGPM										
ALLOWANCE	- 10 -	USGPM %										
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW	- 10 - 10	USGPM % USGPM										
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW	- 10 - 10	USGPM VSGPM										
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW		USGPM % USGPM										
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW		USGPM % USGPM										
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW	10 10	USGPM % USGPM										
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW	10 10	USGPM % USGPM										
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW		USGPM % USGPM										
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW		USGPM % USGPM										
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW	10 10	USGPM % USGPM										
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW		USGPM % USGPM										
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW		WUSCPM % USCPM										
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW		WUSOPM % USOPM						2/19/2015 DATE	BPN		aft	СНК. ВУ
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW	 	WUSOPM % USOPM							BPN BY	Dr	aft TUS	CHK. BY
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW		USGPM % USGPM						2/19/2015 DATE	BPN BY EC Enviro	Dr Dr STA	aft TUS nfrastruct	CHK. BY
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW		USGPM % USGPM						2/19/2015 DATE AN PROJECT	BPN BY EC Enviro	Dr STA	aft TUS nfrastruct	CHK. BY
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW		USGPM % USGPM						2/19/2015 DATE AN PROJECT 329313533.	BPN BY EC Enviro 4100.41000	Dr STA	aft TUS nfrastruct	CHK. BY
ALLOWANCE TOTAL VOLUME FLOW		USGPM % USGPM						2/19/2015 DATE PROJECT 329313533.	BPN BY EC Enviro 4100.41000	Dr Dr STA	aft TUS nfrastruct	CHK. BY

APPENDIX C

HYDRAULIC FRACTURING PILOT TEST FIELD FORMS, NOTES, AND OBSERVATIONS

Packer Testing at Lonza Manufacturing Facility Rochester, New York

During the period of September 17 through September 27, 2012, AMEC Environment and Infrastructure, Inc. (AMEC) oversaw the installation of 12 shallow bedrock borings at the Lonza Manufacturing Facility (Lonza) in Rochester, New York. The borings were installed by Nothnagle Drilling, Inc. (Nothnagle) of Scottsville, New York. The objective of the borings was to increase the bulk permeability and connectivity of fractures within the shallow bedrock to improve the performance of a groundwater containment extraction system. The locations of the borings identified as HF-1 through HF-12 and as shown on Figure 1, coincide with the areas of highest groundwater contamination levels. This area has also historically exhibited low yields or rapidly declining yields in the nearby extraction wells.

The 12 borings were installed as shown on Figure 1 to produce an East-West alignment extending to the west from PZ-106. The borings were placed at roughly 22-foot intervals. Because of the location of an existing building, borings HF-11 and HF-12 were offset approximately 12 feet south of the alignment of the other borings. Also, Lonza will be constructing a new wastewater treatment building, containment dike, and covered ramp as shown on Figure _____. Accordingly, borings HF-1 through HF-7 were placed where the proposed new building will be located.

At each of the 12 boring locations, Nothnagle used 4-1/4" inside diameter hollow stem augers to drill down to the top of bedrock. Using the augers as a temporary casing, bedrock borings 3-3/4" in diameter were air hammered to approximately 20 feet into the bedrock (approximately 35' – 40' below ground surface). Rates of drilling, noted fracturing or depths exhibiting soft drilling, as well as other observations were recorded on field sheets as each boring was advanced. These sheets are included in Appendix A. Once termination depths were obtained, a packer system was installed into the bedrock borehole to segregate a portion of the borehole in which packer testing and hydraulic fracturing were performed. Typically, a single packer was installed prior to conducting the test, with the packer placed at top of what was interpreted as being the most competent section of borehole. With the packer inflated to segregate the test section of bedrock, water was pumped at increasingly higher rates of pressures to observe how the formation responded as well as to see if the bedrock could be hydraulically fractured. A rule of thumb for the hydraulic pressures needed to produce fractures in bedrock is that one pound per square inch of pressure is needed for each foot below ground surface. Therefore, for depths of up to 30 feet below ground surface, hydraulic pressures of at least 30 pounds per square inch would be necessary to initiate fracturing in the bedrock. The intent of the pressure testing was to either initiate new fractures

or to increase the conductivities of the existing fractures in the shallow bedrock to improve total groundwater movement and potential contaminant movement to any existing or proposed pumping wells. Only at HF-5 were two packers used; these were installed to segregate an approximately six foot section of bedrock from 22' to 28' below ground surface. Field forms were completed to identify the testing parameters, and these forms are included in Appendix B. Actual test results were recorded in the field notebook which has been photocopied and included in Appendix C. After the testing was performed, all borings were backfilled with pea stone from termination depths to the ground surface. Temporary piezometers were installed in the shallow bedrock and overburden interface in the HF-4 and HF-8 locations. These temporary piezometers were installed to observe water level fluctuations or signs of hydraulic communication as the other borings were installed.

At the completion of the drilling and packer testing, two piezometers were installed in bedrock at the HF-12 and HF-8 locations and were completed with flush-to-ground protective road boxes. These piezometers (identified as PZ-110 and PZ-111, respectively) were placed to monitor the shallow bedrock. The two piezometer diagrams are included in Appendix D. Additionally, an open-hole bedrock boring was installed at the HF-10 location, this being identified as PW-17. This well was completed with an above ground protective stick up casing. The installation diagram for this well is also included in Appendix D.

A summary of the drilling and testing observations are presented in Table 1.

DETAILS AND OBSERVATIONS OF PACKER BORINGS LONZA MANUFACTURING FACILITY ROCHESTER NEW YORK

Location ID	Date of Installation	Date of Packer Testing	ID of Installed Piezometer or Well	Depth to Top of Bedrock (ft. bgs)	Depth to Bottom of Borehole (ft. bgs)	Single (S) or Double (D) Packers	Packer Test Interval (ft. bgs)	Observed Communication With Other Borings or Wells?	Notes, Observa
	0/17/2012	0/10/2012	-	12'	22'	c	25' 22'	-	packer tests at: 10 psi = 4.2 gpm; 25 psi = 9 gmp; 4
пг-2	9/17/2012	9/16/2012		13		3	20-33		packer tests at: 10 psi = 0.4 gpm; 25 psi = 1.4 gmp
			-					-	apparent increase of permeability as seen in the 10
HF-3	9/18/2012	9/18/2012		14.2'	35'	S	28'-35'		pumping time of 14 minutes
			_					in first 5' of drilling HE-4 notice reaction	packer tests at: 10 psi = 0 gpm; 25 psi = 0.4 gpm; 4
HF-4	9/18/2012	9/18/2012		12.8'	33'	S	26'-33'	in HF-3	minutes
								water violently shoots out of HF-4	packer tests at: 10 psi = 2.2 gpm; 25 psi = 6.8 gpm
	0/40/0040	0/40/0040	-	4 51	051			piezometer when drilling at depths of 15'	apparent increase of permeability as seen in the 10
HF-5	9/19/2012	9/19/2012		15'	35	D	22'-28'	and 34° In HF-5	pumping time of 12 minutes
HF-6	9/19/2012	9/19/2012	-	16'	36'	S	25'-36'	-	reduction of permeability seen in the two 10 psi tes
			-					when drilling at around 18' in HF-7, water and air shoots out of HF-4 and HF-	numerous pressures applied during testing: packet psi = 9.2 gpm, then turn off pump and notice water after water pump shut off; then, conducted tests ag = 24.8 gpm, and water still comes back from forma
HF-7	9/20/2012	9/20/2012		15.6'	36'	S	28'-36'	6	showing this feature: total pumping time of 21 minu
HF-8	9/20/2012	9/20/2012	PZ-111	16.4'	36'	S	28'-36'	-	time of 20 minutes
HF-9	9/24/2012	9/24/2012	-	15.4'	36'	S	26'-36'	-	packer tests at: 10 psi = 5.1 gpm; 25 psi = 8.3 gpm 105 psi and formation took as much water as could
HF-10	9/24/2012	9/24/2012	PW-17	17'	37'	S	27'-37'	while drilling down to 20° in HF-10, have water and air coming out of HF-9, HF-8 and HF-7; also lot of air and muddy water coming out of PW-15	packer tests at: 10 psi = 6+ gpm; 25 psi = 10.3 gm pumping time of 17 minutes
HF-11	9/24/2012	9/25/2012	-	13.7'	34'	-	-	during the drilling of HF-11, have water and air coming out of HF-8, HF-9, HF- 10, and PW-15	packer testing not performed in this boring due to p potential to damage/lose packer from loose rocks f
HF-12	9/25/2012	9/25/2012	PZ-110	18.7'	39'	S	29'-39'	-	packer tests at: 10 psi = 2.5 gpm; 25 psi = 3.9 gpm at 10 psi = 4.4 gpm: apparent increase in permeab time of 20 minutes
HF-1	9/26/2012	9/26/2012	-	12.5'	33'	s	25'-33'	around 17', noticed sometimes violent reactions in HF-2, HF-3, HF-4, HF-5, and a 14" dia. well located 15' north of HF-1; drilling of HF-1 caused most observed reactions in other borings	packer tests at: 10 psi = 0.3 gpm; 25 psi = 0.4 gpm gpm; then again at 25 psi = 0.6 gpm: total pumping

"-" = not applicable or not observed

tions, Comments

40 psi = 14.8 gpm: total pumping time of about 10

p; 40 psi = 2.3 gpm; then 10 psi again = 0.6 gpm: 0 psi tests of before and after higher psi's: total

40 psi = 0.4 gpm; 100 psi = from a low of 3 up to mation take much water: total pumping time of 12

n; 40 psi = 10.4 gpm; and 10 psi again at 3.1 gpm: 0 psi tests before and after higher psi's: total

n; 40 psi = 12 gpm; and 10 psi again = 3.8 gpm: st results: total pumping time of 11.5 minutes er tests at: 10 psi = 2.3 gpm; 25 psi = 5.8 gmp; 40 r released back into the boring from the formation gain at 10 psi = 3.2 gpm; 60 psi = 17.2 gpm; 90 psi ation after water pump shut off; this is only boring utes

40 psi = 5.6 gpm; 80 psi = 9.7 gpm: total pumping

n; 40 psi = 12.7 gmp; bumped pump up to approx. Id be pumped: total pumping time of 16 minutes

np; 40 psi = 13.3 gpm; 62 psi = 18.9 gpm: total

poor seal at top or rock caused by poor rock quality; falling into hole above packer n; 40 psi = 7.8 gpm; 60 psi = 13.8 gpm; then again

ility based on the two 10 psi tests: total pumping

n; 40 psi = 0.6 gpm; 63 psi = 1 gpm; 80 psi = 13.6 g time of 22 minutes

Date Drilled:	9-17-12		Gen'l
Driller:	Neal	Short	
Time Chart	11.11	Drilling Technique Ark Hammer	
Time Start: Time End:	14:49	Rig: CME-75	
			
Time	Depth	Drilling Observations, Etc.	
1 346	13	STATE 13 m Rock 20+13= 33 TAREOT AND	L.
	14.5	FRACTURE : PID=0.0 ppm	
13:54	~18	ADD 5' Road (15-23) Steunte ODOR TO Returns	,
14:00		18.5 bis + I x 18 bis : STOP (14:00 to add rubber bands,	4
14:08	18.5'	START ACAN TOL	ng
14:13	23521	STOP - ADD Rob (23-28-X 21-26-)	
14:22	And 21'.	57MT 50FT CN24/2-25	
14:30	26	STOP. Smull FRAC. 0 29 24 : ADD ROD (25-31) (FRA	Ċ
14:33	26	\$ TART (21'-31') Set	low
14:41	31	END Rein ; will add Rod	JAN
14:47	31'	STUDIE @ 31-33-	
14:49	33'	END (2 33-	
		- Get Realy to FRAME ~23 - 33 gone =	
		bottom 10° of HOLE	
DRIVER	HAS	3" \$ 3"4" O.D. dr. M bits (corring bits) & 3"4" AIR HAMMER	
Span A	laens to	13 on Rock	

Borehole ID:	HF-3	Drill Firm: Nothnagle	_	
Date Drilled:	9-12-13	Dia Of Borehole (in): $\sqrt{3\frac{3}{4}}$		
Driller:	Neal	Short	-	
Time Starts	nau 2	Drilling Technique AIN HAM MER		
Time Start:	10:14	Rig: CME-75		
			•	
		34.2'= TARGET, SAY 35	٦	
Time	Depth by s	Drilling Observations, Etc.	-	
09:43		STANT AT 14.2 : GOING TO IT ENG OF	sel	
0944	15	AT 15'	- ·	
09:47	16.5'	Sturre FRACI	-	
09:48	17	END - WILL AND 5' Rod		
09:50	17'	5 MART 17-22' RUN		
0953	18'	SWAL FRACTURE; 19.2		
0955	19.2'	PRACTURE		
0957	21.5	FRACTURE 0958 END RUN E 22'		
0959	22'	START 22-27		
1002	23.5	FRANK		
10:02:30	24'	SOFT & FRAC.		
10:04	25	FRAC, 25.8 FRAC. 26.5" FRAC, SOFT:		
10:06	27'	END RAN ' START 27- 32'D (0:08	Set both	~ ~
10:13	31'	PRAC SOFT-DILLEO FAST	parteer	0 28
10:14:30	32	END RUN ADD ROD		
10:16	32'	STAT NEXT RUN	•	
10:18:30	34.51	34.5" Soft		
10:19	35	END ZUN	1	
			1	
L	l		1	

Notes:

Augurs (4.25=) drilled to 14.2" onto Rock

Driller: <u>Neal Sho</u> Time Start: <u>/3:43</u> Time End: <u>I4: 24</u>	Dia. Of Borehole (in.): <u>34 weach: 8 w</u> soil Drilling Technique <u>IISA w Soil: Are Hammer we</u> Big: CME-15
Time Start: <u>/3:43</u> Time End: <u>/4: 14</u>	Drilling Technique <u>HSAin Soil: AIX HAMMer in p</u> Rig: CME-15
Time End: <u>14: 14</u>	
7	ALGOT = 13.8 + 20 = 32.8 BAY 33'
Time Depth	Drilling Observations, Etc.
13:,	14-5/3:15 Spin aregers to Pock @ 12.8 by 3
13:43 12.8 5	TART @ 12.8' Wy air hemmer
13:46 15 4	STUP TO ADD 5' Rod
13:49 16	STOP TO ADD 5' ROD
13:52 17-	Furcaure
13:55 18.5	FRAZIMO
13:57 21	END RUN: ADD 5' ROD
13:59 21-	START 21-26' RUN
14:02 23	FRACTURE
14:03 24	FRACTURE
14:05 25.5	FRACTURE
14106130 26 1	END RUN proh
14:07 26-	Begin next Run to 31"
14:15 29.5'	FRACTURE
H!16 30.5' St	mall Forceso
14:17 31° E	ND RUN
14:19 31' G	To 33'
14:24 33	END C 33 : 45T 0.2 Very Solft

orehole ID: ate Drilled:	-++ F-	5 Drill Firm: Nothnagle
Drillor	Nool	Dia. Of Borehole (in.): <u>374 w Rock</u>
Dimer.	Incal	Drilling Technique Aric Hanner
Time Start: Time End:	08:28	<u> B</u> Rig: CME-75
	lana	TARGET = 15+20 = 35
Time	Depth	Drilling Observations, Etc.
0828	15	START DRILLING in Rock
0832	16.5	END 16.5" AOD ROD HF-4 Bubbles
0835	16.5	STWEET RUN from 16.5-
A835+	17.5	EPAcinge : have malaine lot of water
0837	18'	FIZNERURE / Dr SOFT
0838	20.5	PRACTICE / SUFT
0840	21.5'	BND Run: ADD ROD FOR 245th 41.5- 26.5
0842		STNET RUN
0843	22.2	PT2AE MARE / SUFT
0844	231	FRACTURES E, 23.8
0847	26'	FMCrupe/Supr
0848	74.51	END Run: ADD Pod hr 31.5"
1	27.5	FRANKE/SOFT
	30.5'	FRACTURE / JOFT
0856	31 -	FRACTURE / SOFT
0852	31.5	END RUN
0859	31.5 -	START 31.5-35 Rm
0906	34.5	AT 34.5 Att Bubbles
0908	351	END DRiving here
ξι σ A	1.1.1.4	Last and
M.C. 17	· arilled "	TO KOMP & 15 64.5
Water :	Shoots ant	- of PIEZO. in HF-4 when drilling 15-16.5 in HF-5: Then Not Again
Hole H	F-4 bub1	bling @ 0903 VIOLENTLY ! @ 33.5 TO 35 34, then stups
Bubblin	in HF.	- 4 noted about doilling in HF-5 @ 2 Depths of 15-16 5- 2 33.5
	d	

В	orehole ID:	HF-6	, 1_	Drill Firm:	Nothnagle	
Ŀ		<u> </u>	Chart	Dia. Of Borehole (in.):	324" in Rock	
•	Driller:	Ineal	5non	Drilling Technique	ATR HAMMER	
	Time Start: Time End:	14.3	<u> </u>	Rig :	CME-75	
			Thea	itt = 16+20 = 36'		
	Time	Depth		Drilling Observations, Etc.		
	14:34	13-	START	- 1st Run		
	14:42	16"	Very	Soft drilling to 16" need to	advance augers to 16 To	,
			Case	the borohole: bearsh opporently C.	16, yest 13'	
	15:12	16'	START	- Hommerity	,	
	15:18	17.5-	FRSEP	UKe		
	15:20	19.5	PRACIN	el la		
	15:22	20.8	PRACINA	ie \$ 21.7 FRACTURE	an a	
	15:23	~22'	END 0	offun		
	15:05	22'	Begin	Next Run		
	15:28	23.5	FARETUR	2E ? 24.3 FRACTURE \$ 25		
	15:32	26.5	END 0	rf kun		
	15134	26.5	START N	sept Run		
	15:35	28.5	PRACTY	LE		
	157.40	32.5	END of	= fun g		
	15:42	32.5'	sthat	west how		
	15:46	33.51	FRACTU	PE		
	15:47	34.51	FRACE	pe le	······································	
	15:51	36-	END H	lene		

Notes:

H.S. A. drilled to Rick @ 13' 555

	Arch Chemicals, Rochester, NY Drilling Progress Hydrofracking Test Boreholes	
Borehole ID: <u>HF-7</u>	Drill Firm: Nothnagle	
Date Drilled: <u>9-20-1</u>	Dia. Of Borehole (in.): $3\frac{3}{4}$ in Pock	
Driller: Neal	Short	
Time Start: 09:02	Dhining Fechnique	
Time End: /0:07	Rig: CME 75	
	TANGET 20 + 15.6 = 35.6 312 36	
Time Depth	Drilling Observations, Etc.	
0809:02 15.6	S THET LAMMERING	
0905 14.5	Grop - need to check on compressor of Shop about oil use	
	18 - have connecting w/ HF-4 ? HF-Clair/water	venting
	20.5' FRATAINER/ SUFF	U U
	21' FRIETURE / SOFT	
0942 21.5	END-ADD Rod	
0943 21.5	START Run	
0944 22.5	PRATURE/SUFT	
0946 24	FRACTURE / SOLT	
0947 24.8	<i>il</i> 4	
0949 26	" " Then END Run shorty after	
0952 24.6'	STUDT Run	
0953 27.2	FRANCIE Suft	20
0957 30.4		2.8
0958 31.6'	END Run	
10:00 31.6	START Ran	
10:03 33.5	FRACTURE/Supt	
10:04 34.3	er d	
10:07 36	END BORING	

Notes:

Augered 4.25 "HSA TO bedrock @~15.6'bgs 08.30-708.43 Will set bottom of Single packer @ 28'bys

В	orehole ID:	HF-8	Drill Firm: Nothnagle	
D	ate Drilled:	9-20	- 12 Dia Of Borehole (in): 3 ³⁷ 4° in padamak	******
	Driller:	Neal	Short	
	Time Start:	12-19	Drilling Technique Ann Hammer	
	Time End:	14:0	6 Rig : CME - 75	
			TARAVET = 16.4 +20 = 36.4	
	Time	Donth	544 = 37 36	
	13.19	1614	START HAMMERING	
	13:21	17	AT JUINT : ADD ROD	
	13:24	(7	STALT RUNS	
	13:26	17.5	Ferenuck/Soft	
	13:27	19.5	FAreTrue / Soft	
	13:29	20.5	FRAC / Soft	
	13:31	22-	ENO PAN	
	13:33	22	STALT	
	13:35	22.5	FRACTURI / 5.FT	
	13:37	24	ii ii	
	13:39	24.8	ų n	
	13:40	25.6	ų 1	
	(3)41	24.6	٤, 4 	
	13:42	27	END RUN	
	13:45	27-	START RUN	
	13:46	17.2'	FRAC./Sett	
	13153	32	END RUN	
ŀ	14:01	33.5'	PRAK. JOFT	
ļ	14:09	-34		
	14:04	35	<u>END</u> WAN STINGT	
L	1UINS	35 2512	FRACE /SOFT	
	14:06	36	END	
	4.25 H.	S.A.d. ill.	to bedrock @ 16,4'	
•		I - W I 11/2A		

Notes:

Borehole ID:	HF-9	Drill Firm: Nothnagle
Date Dhiled.	<u> </u>	Dia. Of Borehole (in.): 3 ³ 4 ⁻ n. Rock
Driller:	Neal	Drilling Technique AIR HAMMER
Time Start:	0748	
Time End:	0443	Rig: <u>CME- +5</u>
		11 veor = 20+15.4 = 35.4 : 3.44 36
Time	Depth	Drilling Observations, Etc.
0748	15.4'	START ORNING : = 8.82 B. NU.R. W. 44-0
0751	14.5	END: FRACTURE/SOFT ON16-11.5
0754	16.5	START RUN
0755	17-	FRICANE / SOFT
	17.5	i(
0759	19.2	n " \$19.9 \$ 30.2-
08:05	11.5	END RUN
08:07-	21.5	SINGRO-KUN
08:10	22-	FRACTIONO /SOFT: = 9.3 HF-8 (B.T.O.R.)
05:15	23.7-	FKtenno/SOFT: X = 9.4" HF-8
08:16	24.5-	4 4
08:18	25.2-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
68: 90	26.5	ENQ RUN: X = 9.47- HE-8
08123	26.5	STANT AUN
08:31	30.2	SONT/ FRACTURE : 3 = 9.55' HF-8
08:32	3(1	at ()
08:33	345	END RUN
08:34	31.5	START RUN
08:37	33.3	FRACTURE / SUPT : 29.65" ME. 8
08:338	342	15ND 1 7 = 9.75 HF-8
1150-	שוב הלהעול לד	

Borehole ID:	HF-10				Drill Firm:	No	thnagle	
Date Drilled:	<u> </u>			Dia. Of E	Borehole (in.):	33/4"	in Rock	
Driller:	Neal	Short		Drilli	ng Technique	Air	HAMMER	<u> </u>
Time Start: Time End:	15:06				Rig :	CME	-75	
	•		TARABO	T 17+20	5-37			
Time	Depth			Drilling Ob	servations, Et	С.		
<u> 11: 11</u>	17	STAR	Ain	HAMMER	ing			_
11:15	17.5-18	17.5	-18 Lo	nge PRA	cture - Con	minicate	es w/ HP-9	<u>,</u>
11:17	18.7-	FRACTU	NO-150F	T		' U	"/ 10 Ē	: ##
	20-	"	/ n	-OPPO	Assome his	4F-8 Se	Hes 3'm	mo
11:24	20.6/21.	5 4	<u> </u>	New York	1-Pt. in H	F7	المنام والفراق المراجع المن المراجع المن المن المن المن المن المن المن المن	
-	25-24'	<i>i</i> 4	ñ					
11:37	25.3	<i>ii</i>	У	à 26.	5 PRATING	SOFT		
11:40	27-	END	RUN					
11542	27-	START	RUN					
11:49	30.5	FRAN	ME / 50	FT				
11:52	32'	END	RUN	¥:	8.27 B.T.O.	Rù F	109	
11:55	32-	STHET	RUN					
11:56	32.2'	FRACT	NE Sof	T & 3	32.5' \$ 33	3 4	3316	
11:60	34.5-	11	11					
106,72700	37-	END D	Rilling	V	- = 8.38 B 1	70. P. W	PZ-109	_
					·····			、 、

Notes:

H.S. A. (4.25") to kock of 17 bgs TOP FRANTIQUES communicate of HF-9 + HF-8

Borehole ID:	HF-11	Drill Firm:	Noth	nagle
Date Drilled:	9-24-12	-	93,5-	1
		Dia. Of Borehole (in.): _	540	n Rock
Driller: _	Neal Short	Drillina Technique	AIR	HAMMER
Time Start:	15:00			
Time End:	15:44	Rig : _	CME	-75

		TARANT 13.7 +20 = 33.7 544 34
Time	Depth	Drilling Observations, Etc.
15:00	13.7'	STARE ATTR HAMMERING
15:07	17.2	FRAZINANS/SNFT
16:10	18.1	۷ ۹
15:12	19.5	11 <i>14</i>
161.13	20.6	11 EF
15:15	21.5	END RMN - START Getting water
15:20	22.5	KARETUNE/SUFT: BAd BOOR : PID=Brdeground
15:23	24'	n y
15:24	24.8	11 V
15:26	26.1	" " END RUN AT 26.5"
15:28	26.5"	START PLAN TO 31.5
15:33	29'	Phartupe / Soft
15:38	31.3	" " ; END RUNE 31.5
15:42	32.8	24 61
15:43	33.5	d 11
15:44	34	END BORING @ 34
/		

Notes:

H.S.A. drilled to top of Rock @~13.7'

Arch Chemicals, Rochester, NY **Drilling Progress Hydrofracking Test Boreholes** Borehole ID: <u>HF-12</u> Date Drilled: <u>9-25-12</u> Drill Firm: Nothnagle Dia. Of Borehole (in.): <u>3³4</u> n Hot Rock Driller: Neal Short Drilling Technique Ark Hammer Time Start: (2:58 Time End: 13159 Rig: CME-75 TAR-GETDEPTH = 20 + 18.7 =38.7, 544 39 Drilling Observations, Etc. Depth Time START AR HAMM BRING 12:58 18.7' 19.6 FRATURE/SOPT п И No NOTICEABLE COMMUNICATION of other birings 20.8 13.02 22 END RUN 13:04 n START RUN 13:06 FRACTURE / SOFT \$ 22.5 \$ 24.2' 13:08 22.2 A " \$ 26.3 25.0 13:13 271 END RUN 13.15 291 START RUN 13:17 FRATURE /Solt 27.5 13:19 30.5 w 13:25 10 32 END RUN 13:27 32' 13134 START FUN 13:37 PRACTURE /SOFT 335 234.8 235.7 33.6 ų. 4 13:39 37 3:43 END RUN 13:48 FRANCIE /SOFT 38.5 31 13:50 END

Notes:

H.S.A. dvilled to pock @ 18.7'

			Arch Chemicals, Rochester, NY Drilling Progress Hydrofracking Test Boreholes	
	Borehole ID:	4E-1	Drill Firm: Nothnagle	
	Date Drilled:	9-26-1		
	Driller:	Neal	Dia. Of Borehole (in.): <u>374 n Rock</u>	
	Time Start:	nas	Drilling Technique Air Hanne	
	Time End:	10:3	30 Rig:	
	_		TARGET: 12.5 + 20= 32.5 , 64 33	
	Time	Depth	Drilling Observations, Etc.	
	09:32	12.5	START FIRST RUN	
	09:37	(3.5	FRICOURY / SOFT	
	09:40	14-3	" " Dea stone in HF-2 settles entourlest	ľ:
			air molently comes out of HF-2 & PIEZO @ HF-4	
			I @ Well North of HF-1 (15 North) \$ HF-5; Att	
	09:48	16.3'	END of Run : All Locations of HF-2 through HF-5 are	
			reaction to drilling in HF-1, but P2-106 Not so much	
	09:53	17.5	Frenerice / Supt - water shoots up out of HF-4 Plezo.	
	6455	18'	FRANKE / Soft : reactions are gone	
	0957	19.2'		
	10:00	21'	ч и	
	10:00:30	21.3	EWD of RUN	,
	10:06	22.8 -	Perenue/SSFT	
î.			at ~ 26 driller notes odd odor: " different smell"	
	10:20	28'	Francinge/Supt	8
-	10:23	29.2	u u	
	10:26	31'	- îk 61	
	10:30	33'	END of bering	
			·	
Notes:	H.S.A. 7	10 12-5	Ter of Rock	
	In air h	mmmer i	ity from ~14 through 17.5 get visbent reactions	
	frm	HF-2, 1	HF-3, HF-4/ Plezo, HF-5 & well us north of HF-1.	
	P76	X6 demonst	trated v. little reaction, comparatively.	
¥	PW-14 di	d not bu	ubble up either -behave like PZ-106	



		Arch Singl	Chemicals, e Packer In	Rochester, NY jection Testing			
Date Drilled: Date of Test: Depth to Bottom of Packer(s) (ft/bas):	9-18-12 9-18-12 28 '		Height of F Above N Zc	Borehole ID: Dia. Of Borehole (in.): Pressure Gage (pump) Iid-Point of Injection one (ft.) (H-1):	HF-3 3.75* 31.54 3.5= 35'		
Static Water Level (ft. bgs)	1.55.0./1.	25 5.55	Length of Injection Interval (ft.): <u>28-35'= 7</u> Static Water Level to Mid-Point				
Dia. Of Plpe (in.): Height of Pump Above Ground Surface (ft)	1.5"/1.25 3.5'	4	of In	jection Zone (ft.) (H-2)	315 70 5.6= 25.9		
Pumping is On	Γ	Time:	Gage Pressure (psi):	Water Flow (gpm)	Water Level Above Top Packer (ft. BTOR)		
Start Time: 12:00 End Time: 12:16	·	12:02		START See pages 8 79 IN	5.6		
(ft. bgs) Top of Rock <u>: 4-2</u> Bottom of Borehole: <u>'3</u> 5		12:16		FIELD Book	5.5		
Packer:	- - -						
Pressure to Packer(s) (psi) /40.	- - -						
Set bottom poch	- L	ags.	<u> </u>	I	L		
Notes: @ 1.5" To 5457 Above Probur, then 1.25" drill RODS <u>I</u> =5.6" bgs @ 11:48 \$ 5.5" bgs @ 12:16							

in a construction of the second se

Arch Chemicals, Rochester, NY **Single Packer Injection Testing** 4F-4 23/10 ti Rock Borehole ID: Date Drilled: 9-18-12 Dia. Of Borehole (in.): Date of Test: 9-18-12 Height of Pressure Gage (pump) Above Mid-Point of Injection Depth to Bottom of 3.5+29.5= 33' 26' Zone (ft.) (H-1): Packer(s) (ft/bgs): 7 (33-26-) 29.5 mil Length of Injection Static Water Level (ft. NG Interval (ft.): bgs) Static Water Level to Mid-Point 1,5" \$ 1.25" Zme of Injection Zone (ft.) (H-2) Dia, Of Pipe (in.): 29.5-6=23.5 Height of Pump Above 3.51 Ground Surface (ft) Gage Water Level Above Pressure Top Packer (ft. (psi): Water Flow (gpm) BTOR) Pumping is On Time: Start Time: 15:03 SEE PARES End Time: 15:15 10 x 11 m Book (ft. bgs) Top of Rock: 12.8 Bottom of Borehole: 33 Packer: single double Pressure to Packer(s) (psi) 140. 33,24 PUTABLE water 3,5 5.5. TO I ~ 8.6" B.T. O. C. (Augers) PACKA Notes: `w ` niji da Rock 16



Ľ



		Arch Singl	Chemicals, le Packer In	Rochester, NY jection Testing		
Date Drilled: Date of Test:	9-20-12 9-20-12		-	Borehole ID: Dia. Of Borehole (in.):	HF-7 334= à Ruck	
Depth to Bottom of Packer(s) (ft/bgs):	28'		Height of F Above M Zo	ressure Gage (pump) lid-Point of Injection one (ft.) (H-1):	35+32'= 35.5	
Static Water Level (ft. bgs)	5.6 (m	НЕ-Чріс	ez.)	Length of Injection Interval (ft.):	36-28= 8	
Dia. Of Pipe (in.):	5" IN PAdhur 1.25" Al 3.6"	bove Pachar	of In	iection Zone (ft.) (H-2)	32-516= 26.4	
Pumping is On	[Time:	Gage Pressure (psi):	Water Flow (gpm)	Water Level Above Top Packer (ft. BTOR)	
Start Time: 10:36 End Time: 10:56	-	0		See p.p. 20 : 32 for readings	IN NUTE Book	
(ft. bgs) Top of Rock: <u>15.6</u> Bottom of Borehole: <u>36</u>				0		
Packer: single double				5-21.12		
Pressure to Packer(s) (psi) 40		<u></u>				
Notes: MID P	oint of e	justin	Zone: ?	36 28+4=32 <u>8</u> 8 ⁺ 2=4		
					······································	

Da Da		0 0	-		— • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1.1 7 6
Da	ate Drilled:	4-20-	12		Borehole ID:	<u>H+-D</u>
	IS OF LEST.	9-10-	12	- Height of F	Pressure Gade (num)	<u></u>
Depth to B Packer(s)	ottom of (ft/bgs):	28'		Above N	Nid-Point of Injection one (ft.) (H-1):	3.4 + 32 = 35,2
Static Water bgs	Level (ft.	7.5 (PP.	a PW-15)	_	Length of Injection Interval (ft.):	8'
Dia. Of Pi Height of Pu	pe (in.): mp Above	5" IN PAcker 1.25" ABove 3.4'	Pareter	Static Wa of In	ater Level to Mid-Point jection Zone (ft.) (H-2)	32-75=24.
Ground Su	nace (it)			-		
Dumning			Timo	Gage Pressure (psi):	Water Flow (apm)	Water Level Abov Top Packer (ft.
Pumping	is On		rime:		Water Flow (gpin)	a nu
Find Time:	14:53			-366	FAR READENCE	1. 37
	17102				100- 1001 MINGY	
	(ft. bgs)			1	/	
Top of Rock:	16.4'			Ka	0	
Bottom of Bo	rehole:				*/	
-	36					
Deeler						
racker:	× ✓					
dinuble_					¥	<u></u>
						\mathbf{X}
Pressure to	Packer(s) (psi)	-				
	146				· · ·	
		•				
_	Simon and State					

		Arch Singl	Chemicals le Packer Ir	, Rochester, NY ijection Testing	
Date Drilled:	9-20	1-12	-	Borehole ID: Dia Of Borehole (in.):	HR-9 3319 in Roch
Depth to Bottom of Packer(s) (ft/bgs):	26	<u> </u>	Height of F Above N Zo	Pressure Gage (pump) /id-Point of Injection one (ft.) (H-1):	3 4 + 31 = 34.4
ٌ Static Water Level (ft. bgs)	6.8 HIF.	8 8 07:00	_	Length of Injection Interval (ft.):	36-36=10
Dia. Of Pipe (in.): Height of Pump Above	5"in PAck 1.25" 34	ABONE PAcke	Static W of Ir	ater Level to Mid-Point njection Zone (ft.) (H-2)	±=31-6.8= 20
Ground Surface (ft)			Gage Pressure		Water Level Above Top Packer (ft.
Pumping is On Start Time: <u>Øgny</u> End Time: Øg: 3a	-	Time:	(psi):	Water Flow (gpm) See p-29 1N Freed Bosk for	BTOR)
(ft. bgs)	-			Reavings	
Bottom of Borehole:	-			Hoy	
Packer:					
double	-	·····			12
Pressure to Packer(s) (psi) i 40	\$ } _				<u> </u>
<i></i>	- -				
					5
A	point I	njectim	zone: 2	6-36=10:26+5=	31'
Notes:					

		Arch Singl	Chemicals le Packer Ir	, Rochester, NY jection Testing	14F-10
Date Drilled: Date of Test: Depth to Bottom of	9-24-	17- 17-	- Height of F Above N	Borehole ID: Dia. Of Borehole (in.): Pressure Gage (pump) Iid-Point of Injection	334" in Rock
Packer(9) (ft/bgs): Static Water Level (ft.	dit.	I while the	- Zo	one (ft.) (H-1): Length of Injection	34 + 32 = 35.4
bgs) Dia. Of Pipe (in.): Height of Pump Above Ground Surface (ft)	6.8 w 111- i'in Proper 1.25 AB 3.4'	ove preker	Static W of Ir	Interval (ft.): ater Level to Mid-Point ijection Zone (ft.) (H-2)	32-6.8 = 25.2
Pumping is On		Time:	Gage Pressure (psi):	Water Flow (gpm)	Water Level Above Top Packer (ft. BTOR)
End Time: <u>73:18</u> (ft. bgs)				See FIELD Book page 31 Fok Rottoincis	
Top of Rock <u>: 17</u> Bottom of Borehole: <u>37</u>		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		A	
Packer: single					9.24.0
Pressure to Packer(s) (psi) <i>IYs</i>					ranc
	е ^н				
Notes: Mip-Pr	INT IN S	TECTION Z	fone: 2	7-37 = 27 +5	= 32'
I = 9. Ser note	46 В.Т. 5 (р. 30)	D.R. in F Abunt	IF-8 PIES Commun	zo. (~7.3-bg5) Scution y PW-19	5


		Arch Singl	Chemicals, le Packer In	Rochester, NY jection Testing						
Date Drilled Date of Test	9-26-1	2	-	Borehole ID: Dia. Of Borehole (in.):	HF-12- 334+in Rock					
Depth to Bottom of Packer(s) (ft/bgs):	29'	1	Height of F Above N Zo	Pressure Gage (pump) Nd-Point of Injection one (ft.) (H-1):	4.3'+34'= 38.3'					
Static Water Level (ft. bgs)	7' (in HF-	8 piego.C i	07:30)	Length of Injection Interval (ft.):	29-39= 10					
Dia. Of Pipe (in.): Height of Pump Above Ground Surface (ft)	5° i Prehr 1.25* AB 4.3	ove Packer	Static W of In	ater Level to Mid-Point jection Zone (ft.) (H-2)	34-7=27					
Pumping is On	-	Time:	Gage Pressure (psi):	Water Flow (gpm)	Water Level Above Top Packer (ft. BTOR)					
Start Time: <u>(4:35</u> End Time: <u>(4:55</u>	-		Se	Page 31 in for reading.	Fredd book					
(ft. bgs) Top of Rock: <u>18.7</u> Bottom of Borehole: <u>39</u>	- -			the y						
Packer: single					25-12					
Pressure to Packer() (psi 										
	-									
Notes: Roch	18.7-3	19 20	·3´							
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	20.	3-+2=10	».1 ⁻						
		(8	.7+10.1=	28.8, 54229=M	10-point of Secondorn	Rock				
	MID-Port of injection zone: 29-39=10 29.15= 34									



re (±5~) and 10 Care and will 12 Budioch (30 with rock or 35-40 bys) at 13- Dir. L barrys along an alignment war where a k. TALE if off I not allered to wear fewely to of any kind - Not allered to wear fewely to Ather it off I way cose because an it and the it of the it of a start author it - 50 >> cree tong as trund glowes, can work here. Dear to 2 ANDWO H & S Briefing We will need to alabuse devily work & excaverior moses Work this week will welled drilling wite permulaility is the plackan bedrack to assist in pumping water for treatment at a ligher rate than presently cleir to do Amn U. J.J. 2 rich Nothingue arrives - we go glassigh Meet et Transiev TRubit : JOE FLORES Its hydro presture the party to increase Question an my mannue band-canit WIEW TRAIN NO VIDEO & THLE TEST. on site, other thun in office are. 08:00 Tom boyles in skitt - marciary 9-17-13 3616106029/202.01 Projects Lav Z.A. / ARCH CHEMICHES This back belongs TO: AMEC E & I 5/1 Congress ST1 POETLAND, ME OHIOI ATTN: JET- BRANDOW (24)828-3459 Job # 3616106029/02.01 Poches NET NY (201) 775-5401

mill with - time (25' 1 chaning I through 10 Bury on Separat Hales Jack. Lownians II i'r wull 34°01. A. R. 103 ~ 22 (740.) (see p. 32) la - M- Line by 2 10 or 3 34" O.R. AS Sheen, AL coring bits & HAMMER RUDU. "www.etc 349 5 \$ PZ-106 \$/ 6 1) 3 5 2 ţ۱ 25-5-224 224 HF-1 (Byte Face) à Will call havings HF-2 9-17-12 C.t... EXIST. BLOG ъ. unill be with Dir. (or 3"34") + 32 fine themas Meet & CAR Blog, to have the care 9-17-12 Lanza/Anch 36161060 29/,02.01 Mill chill by 4.25 # 5.4 to budrack grany 2 8 did boraked in 50. 15. Rach have PID = 11.7 eV LAMP # OG466 FROM PINE Meet Bob Schellinger - ENGLOBERING to check for indergramy - Ite is ok w/ plan except for logit in #5 which will be nore - 4/5 to the west; I will be able to use Low ZAS Correct ? TANES in site, HF-1 bearing is not realizes , permits any day c other Not working - PINE Will sand one cut to horze to tomarme muning delivery - Regulation PID Calibritian set up is Cotam Hun on Par - For Part Flor Accessible new - suil here to get them PRANCIEN inill be able to drembert of 5 Pin 43 = Februtine , with 0621 FB12 the Before off 2014 all others will be a shown on p.3 Pert # GP 11012 mound So, Set up @ HF-2 Flast. Calibrate Instrument 100,20m Hr. D. July send & grice So:

Oter it on Site Anews HES Brefing ? get wat leavent V B. R. O. C. 0 9- To 25/056 0729 I = 2.01 Relat 77 & Engers 5.6 8.74.5. 217 Detar of pale 8 25 B.C.S. Sitter Pre-Test of your of inflated predet but Stypich bud & more Tom bygy Amer . New SHORT'S INH Nothingle ry GPM (24) asserved "small true. @ 34 yarterley, Wentler, Rein, pitertiely herey at Times, w When Noter = Birdger Moter, Recordatin, Maler 35 Pressure Noter = Ashcreft, o - 2000 psi 52 want to get believe this wi prelier. 1-2-21 Tubuck and of area. Phe-Fax water test of your (water Meter Meter Dec Jol Places quies in a work purit 912.0.25 44. E1 445.1 10 95.3 952. 25 15 96.7 457.0 25 × 73 7 937. 10 943.9 10 al 1224 941.5 10 93.5 935. 10 Tures. who high 70's. of rethered on usy. 35.35 34.15 17.45 94.12 00:1 1,30 -18-13-6 5.5.1 5 5 0 erit -4:30 0.2 und J: N 3.6 Time 0.0 See L 1305 START Spirmy deges in HF-2 (Hypestor. 1) Sithly a look (- 13'; 34' air lat END driving @ 33' (13-33' Rule Hole) FAREWER @ 14.5' & 24' - NUIED BY DRIVER Lot nosi Au sit up to perform Rom & TOLD NER WE will FARING BUTTON 10 FRAC TPSTS - But drilles have to leave Drillers wont to hunch after put up to drill 9-17-12 Apertimes 3616 1060 29/02 .01 Switching ouse the air hermon - durgers site of tipop. M. So, will antime may be on party on 12 bys of hale : ~ 23 - 33 your Very Hand doiting a 6-10 Dillers in Sike egain (6: 10 GUA hids off site AT 4 6 55 (5) tomorren الإنطيم 1306 416 13(9 5

divillens varies 28 hrs-/day Jag 30 cel Nethnage Artis Jeff Says to proceed as planned = discus hear HF-3 gress later. Will sit parline 25 -hottomol pedar Will sit parline 226 -hottomol pedar \$ toke readings at Traved withouts (F 10:19 END AT 35 b35; Will switch mar to Part. Set up = this book her realings . At least UB43 31 Met Publicy sugges from HF-2 Use Continution of this book & FIELD SHEETS for the In gitting thydre fracking process. 1240 TAVE A BREAK - call Jeft B. - discuss AT HF-2, Junisted to drawns water s' at d'Alpeurt preserves i will verd teus in gpin oft of a visiter their meter. O'ROS START driving of bugars AT HF-3 7-13- ARCH/LENZA ZUNDESCA/.01.01 0943 START AIR HAMMERINE AT HF-3 For up to go of the Annual 1254 Mous to HF-3 bention AT Rock & 14.2. 645 M.C. Zy 2 - Davin Soil 10,00 90 TO 40 psc recepted water at different presences H. 2. 2 29.02 Moder ~ 14.86Pm 243674 was reach with # 5 2 = 5' BTOR Shurt all DEDE Henry Par 140 poil To Rittle bit dispersity Ment Read water Jarys a brokin il grand & go to rest baring baca ilor 51 °, Pr. c.e 40 151 12 of of redi Psc. ひと <u>,</u> 10, 1 3 122.4 40 14168 346 630 54.84 87-55 40 C 6 10:30-10: 036 F. 4.3 9-15-10-ELARON CALMS Teist 4.27 5:30 a:t 1 me 6:30 s: s 5:00 5:30 9:30 10:00 9:00 د. څ. ک 1. 30 5. 30 TUTAL Sus 10.22.4 C 1002.3 1010.0 966.3 4645 994.2 GPM LING. 8 9.35.3 いまし 940 520 14.8

V=5.5 bgs HF-3 SHEY 13 43 37427 412 Asmering from 12 8 in HF 4 14 END Are hannering 0 33 in HF 4 Set beady for Forching process but flushing Set a faw of ~ Orly paro 10 pse yais Will LU bog up Stone after puel aut 13:51 Mere Row up to HF-4 least on Row has leased to shares/mist/or sutury 13:04 Sinay HS.A. in HF-4 being ~ 1.4 gp. e 25, psc, med they him 13:15 Jaiming on Reck (2 12 5 675 17 20 Decrivery bready or 24THERED blar produce GND TEST HF'3 Then dryged back clean to 10 psi, 1 2 3.3 gpm Ce 40 psc. So get thous of a out grand 10 psi 9-18-12 Lewer Areit Bullo 6029/122,01 225 10 Ő. 2 5 END TESTING AT 4F-3 The Care) Topla Gas. 10675 10/cm to 1067.2 1066.3 1066.8 1240 13:30 5-4856-5 E. 4. 13,00 - 12:30 14:00 Ju 72 25 psi JE 40 DEL Gute le psu HF-3 A. O. Ly Turk Cons. PSI on Juge 10504 25 20 1052.0 25 1 6.0 Sel 25 1065.5 40 1052.9 10 3 2 10 55, 7 25 L' v 1058.4 10 1055.1 25 1057.7 40 1063.3.40 2 1259.9 41 1061.0 40 1062.2 40 1064.5 40 1056.6 40 1059.0 on Mater 1058.4 10 50 0 10537 1052.9 1057.3 12:02 5:30 ag:] e: 1 - 1 CARO WTER 00:2 ŝ 4.00 4:30 5:00 6.30 6:00 8.30 50.15 11:32 J.u. 7.00 1:30 This 2:30 10:00 9:00 9:30 10:30 9-18-12 3.5 2:30 0.49PM 1.46 P.M J. 36PM Ì

J.J. V B.T. a.C. 16:00 DRillars learn for the day at this point FRANCIEN has part PDF FILES of three rutes of FIELD FUKNIS through today's work to Jeff B. HF-4 Ì Had to So to 100 psi to get a good flaw Sarry Promuse 0 to 80 (140) did not mule the formation tale conter in a much injured number. It wan't sutil END TEST 15:23+12:30== 15:15 we purged wate to los pie that the FRANCIER has rearred thrugh today up This book of FIEDO FRANS TO HERE flew really goon eighty increased. Ż pse 100 200 200 100 100 100 Ś 10/201 0201 1.2801 theal t.940! 1073.5 10752 1075.3 FLOW Rial Ht-1 60:11 72 Loc: 11-4 28 4.9-05:30 - 10:307 DAC 05:01 -Elysin -15:15 2.9 38m 6: 20 40 psi 9-18-12 ARCH/LONZA SULLOGOZY/02.01 HF-4 60 2 100 psc 6 2 70 80 351 Go 70 60 % オート 40 70 35 psú B.6 5: 1127 Set bottom of predur @ 26 bys 5.45 12.2.2 in de la comercia de √ in HF+ = 3' bys The Ding Reed : 35 Water 01 3 ŝ N , v N N 3 J. Ş Ś 2 2. 7 2 6 65s 1077.5 6.440 t. of al 1071.4 ゆみにの 10690 0.04.0 1.0601 1070.3 1070.5 10/21.0 1069.0 I. ļ 10(-1.0 ELAPSED Juni 1 3.20 Sico 5:30 6:00 6:30 2:30 8:00 0.4GPV 4:30 1.00 ため 1.00 1:30 2:00 2:30 ~ 4:00 5 30 14:50 15:02 in this 0.498th 0.064 15:03 Ì

Witter is shorting up out of picqueter in HF-4 when drilling in HF-5 to Big' Breathing open good steady breeze from the liest 0857 JAACOR WARE Fac Chloroform @ 265-31.5 perm PIO in hore thing you = 0.0 ppm , up to 45 ppm $\widehat{\mathbb{C}}$ from buried draid pipes in area. Are ofter dot 05:47 PIO My TO 3.2 pour it spherinstand, Oppari Mond HF-5 becris ~ 3 WEST TO GET FARTHER reaction & HE-4 from air/Inilling set with 0925 Aprile to clean and At-5 - later withings in hale where yours in dor'lling HF-5 produced twickent helped graved on 5:3 cd Rock bits from Shallow parties of Rock DINCER THE FOR WAYL CHURIDE FOR MAN CO 45-5 Definite communication between HF-4 & HF-5 0903 HFry bubbles/ Shorts water violanty @ in which are appendented at autimes tub Set up to air hanner to 35 bys there being @ 15-16.55 \$ 33.5-34 08'10 Spinning augus on Rock Q ~ 15 by 5 07:58 START SPIMMIN Augus in HF-5 33.5 - 34 butu doilly AF-5 The O Ally Cuttings tule P exhaut 9-19-12 ei. E Warthur: Peulisted mostly Sumy, cut breezes, W/ Cal Gus, Rewling = 100 ppm B. D.B. = 31.5' BCS in HF-4 Pold drillers to set to Scen, 10 Risa in HF-4 : Screen 13-E, Riser 8- 2 Aus CAS - I we gran Je Souther with the 21 F 3 12 HF-4 piezo. HOLE IS losterfulled up PIEZa instaction up Soulen @ -13' - 8' bys, piser & to 2' ALS 9-19-12 Apply Conge Hillow 224/12.01 New Short & East with wigh whiters w Self 4: PVC Caldran PID #Olyle Plan Pive 225 Brehayment tin = 0.0 p. m - PEA STORE Then U. Byly Ion light & Daillers auter Site Brachfill ₹ = 6.5 Bas in HF-4 12.5 × × 1 = = × × × Good to 07/2016 12 DVL - 1 Nethneyle Drilling 0.010 St 1 Sincen Buch. ~ 33'-むねちゅう 070 3

Conducted fest in AF-5 from 13:0-+13:13 #F-5 Toint (est BEE RIELD Sheet & hust page for Want mid point of 25' bys Silvenetic of prolices for HF-5 TEST W grelers p ~ 28' 2 ~ 21 bys 6.2' 12 ي ق Parkir mill Point X Reaults Property of -19-13-L'Minh me can downe the top (5 or se) of bedrock is prostrand & lonnested from Cherry to Borry. Need Said (* I didn't Doller need to get fitty & hardword to HF.S 13:03 Denvers Skehn Sike by FITINGS To make first 5' of drilling, just av rem piu HF-4 mulie drilling HF-5. Elerent Entre Fore contain tetrachterie. This news set up the to partien . It's response in breathing you < 10000 retice I that in drilly HF-4, there was some peacher in HF-3 in the to rules up deable preder for testing. 9-19-12 ARCH/LOWZA 3616106 029/ 52.01 Ahm U. Ty devise putter gives <1.0 ppm result - talen w/ un Dorehole HF.S. Tell willers Baring by party of mildle partie of prior two had that allests we to of 10:15 TALK of Jey Branden' about this make up packed - 30 of side V = 5.7 by Hey V = 5.9' by Hey Cuttings from drilling question. Z=5.7' bys in HF.4 = let bys in HF-S 10:55 10:54 (11:03 10:41 E

F in HF-4 during preservent in HF-5 Their jura no movement in water levels relevance auger to 16 to case of Stated action 14:56 AT 16 : Scintal back to harmer. HF-6 egoprenently nut on 13.53 13 to Bereach - Switch our to at hum were to rest basilon - Getting PID Realizes in to 2.5 in breaching but typically 0.0 is norm. 15457 Innish Inling HF-6 C 36 635 lock C 13: bt of gravel chur by eg: 50, V = 5.7 by in HE-H picac. 13:43 Begin Angering Co HF-6 Jum compt on 5.72 (arspec) Begin air hemmering HE-6 15:11 Jim CLAT leaves wife 16:11 Pidding ago for the day 4342 AT 16" Very Saft 13-16" 13.14 Breeking claure to move 7 13.15 Move to HF-6 bacation 21-51-5 87.14 14:34 14:35 but reading TOL all's 750 N a HF-5 S.7 Releve TOP - Jack THRN of 52 R 35 Presence Alove Pader 8.3' 5.3 ARCH/ imer 36(6 106 029 /.02.01 È is ない P Total Rew Witer (bsi) m 22 Q 5 **R** 77 \mathfrak{Z} 5 \mathcal{S} 1. Ľ, Š Ç 5 Ĵ ÿ 2 9 40 5 11:00 1149.0 10 0 হ 11:30 11500 The D. gillens 1142.4 1096.7 2.5611 Rivo 1151.6 1095.7 11.32.0 t that 6.741 i098.8 1108.0 111 4.8 +6+ 12:30 1153.1 1102.3 111.3 0.7211 6.66al 11011 jioH.S 1118.0 5:31 ELAPSED 1-61-6 JME 9:00 al 170 7:30 1.00 8,00 2.02 0:30 4.00 3:30 -16:30 80:1 L- 12 3:30 15:30 650 3:00 START 5:6 4:30 13:13 L 33. - (.) -- h e/ 22. gpm 13.01 (\mathbf{e}) 2.3 2.4-5 14

END TOST -E HFre Annie Burnen 8.5 TONA OU ON AGAIN Le 70 40 5.3 8.3 6070 25 12 12 - 12 N 1235,5 w P. Commerce 1220.5 40 1226.8 40 5. 5. 12345 10 1214.540 1184 2 25 11 8 8 3 25 25 1209.540 1239.3 10 (154) Witer 202.5 40 1192.6 25 Thur di zig 21 1175.5 25 1180.0 25 1196.8 25 116:31 0) ő 0 ŝ 232.5 1156 F 1164.4 07:32 TURNER WAAR FLOW 0 121 1159.2 1161.5 ELAPSET TIME 11:30 T 10:30 1:30 6.30 9:00 11:00 2:00 10,00 5.5 - 5:30 Jar - 6:00 4:30 6:30 1.00 0.30 3:30 - 4.00 7-5:00 r" 1. 30 L 2:30 9-20-12 1:00 5 3.8 2 4 4 1 1 s. 5.3 - 1 2,0 m 23 = 475 5 Arne it preserves of 10, 35, 40 psc. Then tund of point for 1 minute, then back on again at 10 psc. to Conquer creekings we initial 9-75 ARCH/LONER Scillobo27/102.01 9-75-13 ARCH/LONER Scillobo27/102.01 V = 5.65 by in HE.4 - we this a thing same note i spin for a gesting Ciclibrate PID W/ AD backyrowi ait? New Short & Back Ustriagh - Orillois Dea Stone, publica augers, mound Per water pressures into pretined 10 psi rulengs. Used single preher lifter test, Filled up HF. 6 w ATTENS HIS Broken for longe leather Simp, with las bus W/5 Que Cus = 100 pm Bly = 0.0 ppm 100 12m Frederichter Tom longly-Amer しょう

For the

È

Test:

Formation ofter the offer pleasure TURN on the 10 psc 12997 10 - 10 psc 60 050 INPA of with TIURN OFF モーシャ 0 70 40 ANNE With Comes ladely out of the (pse) Water Perm 1304.2 40 00 22 0 . 54E1 20 1299.5 40 1302.9 10 10 1285.9 40 t t TUNN UP TO Se 1359.2 13 15,34 1333.3 1324,5 1290.3 1301.1 341. 5 1267.5 281.2 1276.9 チャッセノ 0.748 RIN Hen 1761.7 str. 1.00 13:00 F 15:00 12:00 14:30 C14, 250 - 12:30 - 13.30 12 - 15:32 seit. TIME 9:00 2:30 8.00 ton. 9.2 - 09720 horac - 10:00 12:40 10:30 11:00 9-30-73 3.2 -ARCH/Lanza Billion 029/.02.01 HF-7 In Solling i Rock @ HE' 7 hours leg to 25 4Rue Predeur 8. 2S , 10:07 END Pring @ 36' Pressure 0902 SJAPOT AVE HAMMEREING 0830 51 Art Augening H. 7. 0843 UN Roch & 15.6 633 (psi) Weter 25 رې ۱۷ 20 ٦, 1 10 25 3 hit preduce 18. Ś 0 õ 0504 Moure Rig to HF-7 1242. F 1244.0 1253.0 1256.0 1245,0 1247.3 1246.2 1255.9 1250.2 1241.6 Total (fer) ELAPSON Due C 0:30 3:00 2:30 J. J. 12 1:30 3.30 2:00 1:00 4:3. ow: 7 11:00 10: 35 2.3 (Je)

tursh was grant 53 8.05 Berew Point 2EE 483 たたた 8.0 7.86 L. U # 8.8 B.1 7.9 (psi) V in ATER PRESSURE BELOW PO buck after preserve turned off (down't come 1 00 cS 3.34 HF-8 Trake off - Water days not com 5.6 2 2.0 12 Grand back from fromotion) Ale U. July 80 2, 2, 2 Z 15 2 20 2 2 7 10 3 ò 202 0 0 TETA FLOW 142.2 1476.3 14 81.3 1460,0 1444.9 14 70.9 1501.9 1506.7 1428.3 1432.5 1446.9 1454.4 465.6 H36.7 440.7 1424. 5 1415.2 1420, 2 H-1241 1416.2 T 15:30 ELAPSEN Clark nine 14:33 START 14:53 - 17. 16:00 [13.00 15:00 w.El 10:00 11:00 - 9:00 3,48 Lies 12:00 1:00 5:00 7.8° -8:00 3:00 61-00-6 9.7.9 25.4 if fem 1.200 ON ROCK @ 16.4 Bys. Cart ready to hommer 13:19 Buyin hommering HE. 8 Ancilianza 341106029/12.00 HF-7 Break down to mere to next boundy. Mull all write & higher presence Erans the presence presence 19:00 1373.0 \$0 90 pri 4.21:00 14232 90 END TEST HITTING obstruction ~ 2' bys; more Rig to Corneria after release preserve then gy write preserve, S? Water shill bleeds out of 12:41 _ 51 most Spinning Augus in HF-8 wither strik comes back after END PRILLING 41 36 IN AF-8 11:30 Now to next being HF-8-= 3.2' Bolen Casing PW-15 1430 I = 8.8 Belan derran HF-8 34.841- Jores 1397.8 90 East just a bit break for lunch 12:35 Brate from Breck - 19:00 -21-26-6 0 0:H 10:56 E 39.2

copies of notes PDF to attrice bet HENE FROM NF-9 15:52 Mare Rod to HF-9 Location D il 1 (@ Plak wy, clean my , dram fer teday nehe no prope der Us m 61-08-6 4 PW-K TF-S Plezo Shight communication w/ PW 15 bares ArcH/Iman 3616 106 029/ 02.01 HF.Z My have bad some deling above pectage on water been readings, As noted Abure. AT 32 min. Mapsel Thue, V = 7.8 in 至 = 7.95 " n 3't= A 14 1 Fiengemeter in HF-8 N N TUC SON No 3 3.7.0.5. 11 - - 7.9 BT. 2. 4. AT 33 min. Mapiel Mine, K Kom D. Tank W-15 = AT 25 mm AT 24 mm Will out a Pw-15 9-30-12 pentere Bereak 15:18 16:04 (H)

08:50 Drillers have replacement port-will be drilling Shorts 30 beam puts ned to be break work fac back entil Mondy to be break, work fac 09 is Tom boyled ferrer aite - dillers an turned out to be broken. The repleconnet 4 To find and has been demaged - Mich Caupter broke again, ? Kelly hav attacking 0856 Drilling again w/ H5A Wore then just what broke helore, come 9-21-12 Porty-Pt-109 garts they have a hand, 110 week to got Sup Neal Siber & Tack Nothmage of W. Dutling 0750 2' Well ~ 10 West of PW-15, PW. $\nabla = 8' 8.7.0.R. = 0' 8.4.5. - PZ-109$ N to set the at the the -START Augering HF-9 Broke drive cheiner drill freid /Kelly: Weather Ownerst showed be 70's Getting read to doill HF-9 Breezer with 5-5W: warm, humed 71.BLDC 57 ATIEND 435 meshing & to work May be able to hit wy replacement Chrein Coupler is right Term, ~ ~ PZHFE = 6.7 by 5 ~ ~ PZHF-4 = 5.8 by 5 Archtonga 3ulia org / 02.01 Ling the multiple Pom Infig in Site AMEZ () A Way when the stand 12 HER 2-11-12 d Ser 1 04-30 NO No survey لمه عنينك أماره 1.4.0 9240 07.00 5150 2

23 3-14 3.7.42 201 9.23 8.95 9.20 WARE Passing 300 tt 8 わった , 6-7H 8.25 10) (v) 5.6 Austric 105 (End) 23 les could go fer a l'minute : forwation : on much water as me could gove it. Am d. Dry g Wester deer not come back from formation experition is all serve 40 Joko Ran grasseres from to To 40 psi over a fear minutes seek, then as high 25 Loto dr alg (2:0) 40 Ş L U Ľ. 5° ð \tilde{o} 0 0 1571.0 2487 15:00 14:04 20:01 7:04 20 1554.2 1562.7 1535.3 1544.5 1583 0 -12.7 [12.00 241, 1608.6 gpm [13,00 and 1621, 3 16345 JOHLE FLOW 11:00 7 -1559.9 5302 15 4.4 1625.1 ans 09: 30 True 24 14.000 Ethered ! ve is and they a Time) 1:00 6:00 10:01 21.2 19:00 - 5:00 7.00 5. **G** - 4100 9-14-12 ~ 5.1 ~ 0.3 42.4 HF-9 V = 5. 14" B.T. 0, R. / PZ-109 = = 8, 82" B.T. 0, 2. / HF - 8 PZ0. / 6.85 Rus. Wentur Bryler ced, who be a breege from Sul 2.47 B.T.O.R. HF-4 P.E/5.90 & B.S.
 O7:25 Parts on rig- rudy to go: Down to " & b3
 Calibrate 11.760 Pib Num Pine Env. HF-8 - Top of Pools 2 15 45 5 (15.4) 08:44 (~ orush Hr-9, with June (Hr-drapped from 8.82 To 9.75 B.5.0.6. psi @ 10 . START at this prevent 07:20 Tom Longer (Amer) or 2). NCAL SHOLT & Dred Nothingle on site at 5 minutes in , go up to 25 psi 47 9 minutes in , go up to 40 psi 9-24-17 ARCH LONZA 36/106 029/12.01 AT 14 minutes in go up at high 100 Ischaften gas = 100/99.7 Rp. M. ATTEND It is neeting us Jos Places AS me center to a losper. Y = 8,51 'B. T. U.R. / PZ-109 Dahqueral AR TO. Opp m Eren of the to obsta 09:14 65:56 $\binom{28}{28}$

E3 E3 Above 3.1.2.2. Prehove 46-871620 2.77 9.10 8.47 8.4 8.45 8.31 5.9 HFro P/" 9.45 8:45 10 few the 6.57 9.2 13 13 40 Je to Wister e 7 63 20 (تحم) 10 ц. 5 2/2 Ó 0 2 δ 1.537.1 1874.0 8 8 231 1845. 8 17 10.0 1716.0 1737.5 17580 2. - 1799. 2 1-1781. 0 1858.1 3. t9 t1 1776.7 1.96.6 t.t.t.t. 0.781 1703.5 1689,2 (come) TOTAL FLOW 13.8 - [15:00 His preduce 27' 10.3- 7 8:00 9.8 - 7 9:00 9.8 - 10:00 L cr ;]] 1 90:61 7 L 1. 1- 1. 1. 2. C. 3. ~ 13.16 END ELAPSED 15:33 18.3 T 6:00 T 12:00 Dut 1:00 F 3:00 3:00 9.24-13 13.20 thek picture of appendict of the mean. if PW-15 - late of mud shat cut of well. Driller mores. @ 21 Med whice when an Wy. Aley/Longe 3616 106025/ 22.01 HF-10 10:00 Precede tous ant of the of the fully by france much 10:22 More Nig to HF-10 2 = 8.92° Bit. 0. L. HF-2 PIEZ. START H.S. 4. - HF-10 WEFSET DUE TO hit purretural lestery, smalling ; ; bubbly water in all barings(generally) drilling HF-10, lit of water 3 with 13,18 Test Turnel of Spec 17 min. Chepsed Purs out of broky is y pur grand HF-10 boring DIAN'T natice, but is PW-15, during Augers at Rocks of 17 bys 13:20 TURN in Mater & 10 psc Start Air HAMMERING www with W/SW DEBRIS OBSTRUCT TO N THE AMAR r)bre. t)-ht.b (eg) 10:33 12:50 Rivy 12.7 10:57 í î î î

15.44 END DRIVING O 34 bys. No voriceable commission u/ other wells / borngs during. (7 = 9.43 B.T. O.R. in PIERO. @ HF-8) 33 Will end drilling activities by This point for HF-11 Copies to here to seve \$25.70 Joff from p.26 14:23 START Spinning super for HF-11 14:43 IN Rode @ 13,7 15:00 START ATE HAMMERING Today 2)-7-1-6 2 cents, parts next two barings, HF-11 & HF-12, (see p. 3) Arcy/Low2A 366106 029/ 02.01 are off the due to bldgs. 45-10 - オグ・タ Birds. et. ri, 11-1 13%. 2 245 1-1-1 -01-46-6 un^hr (32) LANLONE gudy

The Sea = I solutione lot # 0621 FB 12, un logar of 1246 Above SCA Calibrate PID w/ backgravel with to Set 0,0 ppm due to proceeds is hele, Jeff B. ? Nelson B. ? I corne to more do more to more to the HF-12. ? HF-1 \$ 100 ppm Isabustiene : Fired Ready = 99.8 ppm Deerly not to construct w/ HF-11, teating, for nour = wit worry about teating C 1-3H Parler PID= 11,7ey leng # Ob466 From Pinc ENV. Certaria -Joseph Witter of I agree to man in to (b?r/) .-HF-11 for new. Civers. V Weight CLAPSED -71.45 9-25-12 Wetter Pty, Suny, Breager, into high cos Normerity act 4 f-11. And water sich hund, etc So upper freetunes commende Very well up serves in this core (setting a better such is the of Rock. 7 = 9.20 B.T.O.R. in HE-B piece. Water Lovels #F-= lames wet of PW-15 Again 1 hot of water Parke falling into hole joining in problems in Sown awfors Saw an additional 3.5 /4 New Strint of Iner Whomple an sola With prefer Hydre Test in HF-11 getting pueber who waing. Need to Spin augers a bit to get a reelly fluctuate in this pitzs ?. Hrs Hrd Hr 10 ne some and in Mrs water shuts entry piego. Hr. 8. This numing V = 8.3' 3.7.0.K. in PZ-109 lower to seal off country for Arch lange 3616 1060291.02.01 DP30 X=9, 0, 0, 0, 22 HF-8 ALL ATTEND HE'S LOT ELONG oteo Tom longy Amiz on site 134) 9.25-12 8:00 0530 3080 B

13:30 DRAFER TUBE FOR CHLERE FORM 15 NON-DEFECT 1338 " " VINYL CHLORIDE 15 NON-DEFECT effected by Junping of extraction well(5)? PW-75 doesn't gopson to be prompting, so??? And Annier To 39 me want to plan a piego at HF-E laration. Tabl drillers to publi aut of HF-U, fill up per Store " " Carbon Tetrachlinde is Non Detect 12:01 Spinning on top of Rock @ 13.7' 1) extrus Claudlen steely breeze outog \$500 hers tos alleyers stopped @ 18.7' bys on Rock B Decide, for new, to not continue with HF-11, best Bolo Schuldunger markes and the fer west can' of Detroit of in the piezo go from 9.3' To 91' B.T. a. in I minute 211 IS This letty any to set puter 23 35 HF-12 a 12 west of this have - we are ok to the proposed today. Regulation, P2 in HF-8 is 258 Sitter and harmoning in Rock to fill up per stone to surface. 10:47 Drillers are back an site 11:20 Rig 13 moved to HF-12 lecarion 14:20 Jim Cartor (NYSDE) an Site 11:35 Titres Spinning augers in HF-12 A.d. Zg ę, 9-25-12 13.50 0855 HF it Bory has been heramered clean again Ulero, essent of remarking/getron sheek the prevent this advised here some denning to it to see been not will greed at that petention. We agree to more on the drill #F-12, HF-1 ? then call them live is in cut nue to go down this bound. 093- Driver of site for ~ 30 min. Call & talk of Joy B. & NESON B. Church paint. Meanwhile, Jobs & Relsen to talk nor Nothwale to come up as plan on how to install an effect much Alayloniza 3616,106029/102.01 HF-11 a top of will but ! Anily triuble pulling That pull liked go at the lastin overburden. We may get tools Struck in This is a laid hale - Appens to be crocked but still have grand, etc. stalling into have from hitting an obstraction high up in the IT want go into rad-gets stude! 0916 Grong brok dawn of prober depth of 36 from rocks Filing down around it diving the first they that morning. Am Consistency are about in this have A. D. Dry for bottom of parker out tals 9-25-12 (it)

45-10.95' from a caracit -10-22-11-OC E. 10.95' HF-12/ 10.95 's. '' Above Prehar λ. ie . SZ 10.95 11.0 P So al to al 25 Spapto 40 20 × 10 of the 30 m 20 25 Wither Reserve (B) 52 Ĵ. 60 ご 22 ų, 2 40 õ 10 2 60 0 5 0 Ő õ Õ <u>a</u>/ Hem el. 1911-5 1918.6 1934.0 1949,5 TOTAL Fluir 1988.7 t. t06. 1925.3 1941.8 6749 1999.2 (Cras.) 1.899.7 1903.8 960.9 1993. 8 1895.6 1883.9 1891.5 14:35 Pwg is a 1880.7 826.6 1889.1 14:52 01 17.6 I 12:00 L 20:00 - 19:00 16:00 21-52-6 15:00 F: 13;02 10:00 14,00 L 8:00 00:11 (12:00 ELAPSEN LS L 3:00 TME 5:00 1:00 8.6 H H ARCH/LENZA 364106029/.02.01 HFTE backful w/ per strie. During the tosi, did not observe Come and of hube Jim Craft lenses with @ army 14:38 to give on mereau in their S, will pull wit of here 7. Burnes opened the fortunes "opsi from initial "25.5pm Ametime in the early part of the increase in GPm flow at 60 psi . Then wint back down at premares of 10, 25, 40, 5 15:26 Packer is ant of the hole, high preserves of fractories. Redding place stone to bonny cu. Par Prelar test in HF-13 to 4.4 Spm. So, the higher to 10 psc. There was an Communication w atter When til to HFU lastin Bachy test. 9-25-12 16:00 hete; (32) (32)

- House for wite law loos: Dreeze from 5/5W Span angers yesterday to top of Reek in HF-10 12.5. W.W. plan to hanner to ~ 33: bgs ي. م. - درنم Ē Zuch Nothwyle - Rein Haver - we two after HES CPW-IF let "Dia. delighted PIO, Min. the 200 miliantair =0.0 ppm Appive leter - getting well metericis & shop briefing un hinge Joe Flaces - New SHORT D HF-1 08,45 NEM SHORT (Nothwage) on Eite of Ann 67:53 7 = 9.25 B. T.O.R. in Pictor @ HF.8 X = 8.26 B. T.O. K. in PIER. & HF-4 for extraction well of the & programmers. • Weisther: Obercast predicted Showing, A P2-106 5 č15/ OF:00 Tow lingly (Ame) a site 2. Fodertylen 100pm = 95.9 pm Ì = 1.2' 0.4.5. ≡ 6.2 B.6.5. 3¢ 224 , (j) A. S. 9-36-12 07.55 9-25-12 Arch / Longe 3616 106 029 / 02.01 +F-1 AT 13.5 bys. - and have for other 16:13 AT 12 lage. "Sperming on rech tho. I duy. (je)

Ð 10:40 AT ~ J6 b35, driver notes different smell ~ air PID = 0.2 ppm; "next pavigant" edor: he smelled it torice ? went away below 37. 1012 DRACK For Carbon Terrachente - and - ditect 1-1 11:16 Conducted Deem. Parker test (see , Danien For Chilerstam = non difect Then putted out i buby they wy Will perform presence testing 10:15 DRACION for VC= Non-defect Frich air humaning @ 33' 10:45 Y = 22 B.T. C.R. L PZ-106 -11- 9C-6 *2* С Well 15 North of HF-1 all react to drilling. X Nort: No water buildies antog PW-14 Well 7 = 7.92 B.T.O.R. @ PZ-106:26.2' 845 PZ-106 deer not react when HF-Z HF-S threads HE - Sair receip to driver & HE-1 . I are HEbarions priving in HEI caused the nest rections over the site, by far ₩F-(Start humaning 13ch Above 45 in HF1, air water come -7 =7.45 B.T.O.R. P2- 106 - not newhork too much to drilling to HF-1 hart HF-2 go below 16.3' , but pigs in HE-4 0854 Rig is twind on ; on rach @ 12.5': will Flow ~ 14' to 5 through 122, receives from Twhenty anter HF-2, Piegoe HF-4 ? well? us' N of HF-1, HF-5 This settles claim considerably of the HF-2, HF3, Hery/picy, HF5, ARCH/LOWEA SLIG 106029/,02.01 Or mel N. of HE-1 (14" Dia) go w/ air harmer to ~ 33' V=7.5' BT.O.L. P2-106 still loughs up water A. U. Ky the for the company 0955 Cf 32

12:21 Clairds mousy ant of W/Sw-humid, fuels like rain 35 psi, trade where Q ~ Orb Gpm Versee @ ~ 0.5gm caring in hele where where the day but this care 10 When turned off water presence there were sur back presence from the formation. 11:49 Spirming on Roch @ ~ 17 higs; meanued @ 16-7 45 11:35 that is break fulled (HF-1) my per store -EXTRE TION WELL PW-17 Will pull dugers to place 1044: 70 Tang. millings no more than I into each to then be for mution took water a very show rates up able to gent into the secret on 84° FD. will now set sig @ HF10 to drill to rate Water @ ~13.5gp.n. When brek down to to 63 psi: When premie 80 psi, trak for setting 8° Cours for Extraction well 12:32 1-Auger Drilled (Angers made ~ 14° dia. hale) threw here to evaluate that right away. at earlier rate of 25 psi. - Don't to set waing for Extremin well 11:45 kig noved to HF-10 Location 12:42 3- Augus southed ~ 14'5 bys N. O. 7, pennent ceing 12:37 2- Augus drilled 9-26-13-Above Produce 54.2 Ĩ D 1-2 5. 8.83 1.5 the while ١ ARCH/LONZA 3616 106 029 1.02.01 In al al - In as ig 25 pm do de ab Pressure (15g) · 4563 40 ò da. 63 0/ Water Ď 35 25 2 S 63 \$ 7 22 5 3 22 52 89 Total Row (GME) 2003, 3 2003, 8 2002.4 2.Hhaz 2045.7 Jo02,7 2002.0 2 004. 9 2001.6 2005.3 19:00 Joy 1,9 100t 2006.8 2045.1 2007. 4 2008.5 18:00 2028,3 2009.6 2010.6 2017.8 1.110t ENA ELAPSED 4-26-6 TIME esth foil (J. 20 8.8 16.00 1:00 00:1 5.00 0.6 - [11:00 3.5 3:00 ٥، حرازه 6:00 L 2:00 1:00 1.00 9.00 10,00 13,00 ect. 21 J- 4.0 ه. د با _13.6-[15:01 Lans 61:1) 0):11 (HFF)

Ê) Copied to here placed a cutside of Sty caring, in anular space mide by the temp. 104 caring -Athe is done mean want for concrete to late in the mentione & tommer with Flush to grand completions. They will bedrock in the new sytnetic mell to PW-17 Iline Will mig another batch of emorte built. to doill ? install 2×2° piegometers in the to send Por 7 Jeft B HF-8 & HF-12 barring: Both mill be a depter of ~ 37 bys (~ so in bedrech). Coin Jeff B. a call it the april the will call Ditama C noth wigh cloud remaining "some place is the borng : 245 gellars such as development of lapswitz size an "8" ter-cone to doill the testing star 9-26-10 1 10 4 casing/ IEmp. 13:15 104 Teng Curing Aniver hummeral to Tep of Rock C 16.7' (201107 = 3.7/37') (247 36') Getting read to doill artist into bediroch Arch/Jonza Bulbolozg/02.01 PW-17 -Made a 45 gellons - punged in hel, pulled mican 15:49 & Casing Sitty in the hele, in connete live hulling tamp 104 ceary ant of hele -17 15:30 MIX Concert/But. comment grant will tranie bottom. The will place permanent 8 casily with the grant to Set horder ownight Drilling w/ Ner core acorport to clean 11 = 11 = M Thrangh drift sony " 45 gallins to set a 14:56 AT 18.6 - END HERE N, Micane Will recorder water TRICENE 1816 - -1~ 二二二 二二 111- 111 14:52 Gaby to 18,7 14:45 On pack new 14:26 out cering Roche Sockeer 01-76-6 (fl)

AT HF-12 LOCATION (f. - 2' Saugo PVC Riser 11 = 11 = 11 12.7 20ck in Ariequery 2° PIED. D2-110 AF 16.5 00 5400 RA SIM - 20 120 Morak 5 8 011-21 hit וווב ומבולב Cetter Med. Wrips. BENT. 2 NA AL 2 sed to pue 10 Spin Cutto Box Bering ~ 334 in Pull altt & Centrestors It ?: borrefory. Weather: Ptry. Cloudy, histors preserved mid. 60's. Slight theye from W/54 (more mid 40's) AT HE-12 011-Id 0 fer Tom longly (Amer) a site is pl-110 Neel short of Zach Northhigh - Attend long Theugh were driking all cash in actes to clean out the hele in the bestrack particul 07:30 Setting up & HF-12 70 place 7" PIEED. 07:45 Dawn to Rock P 18:7" of 44 myres Will go daw of 3 the bir to clean ant hele to pat bottom of scheme e 31" So pred of the beend. Chin is the set 2" PVK , 10. Slot Sorean, 10 lang Archtimun Seletobold/ 122.01 Prezo. get seg centerinent boy aread vij a from 31 - 31, sus put eq to 20' bunt, Well is its shown on p. 49 - Shill need to place growth a surface peal de - 17' lack being a 18.1'), then Grant 17 to surface caller but to The and pull wit Rids (48) g. 27.12 0843 6832 036

(HF 3 barnes) 51 Xere Quind 1124 11 = H = ~ 334° BUTHL SEA SIDNE 1)/22/6 w 3/22/12 4.2.4. 52H 40 PC Berceck Plser 10 zam bed to PK 21-62-6 3 ARCH / Lonza 3616 106 029 / 02. 01 to ame right at us. no. The oder, Says DE, is from a neighboring company to the NE that manufoctores high- tech insulating material. Breeze out of Evest - cause der from pits Hale & celemed ent - pull mis to set well This may be done after towner or next to depth by miny a thi-care but (73 Die) Bund - Publicize back over PW-17 to dry aut rack Libely Not develop the two piges. 10:10 Rig noused to HF-8 lown to drill of Will clean from out have to - 35 w the PW-17 by Newbord air helt System , rather them game up a f 12.50 Joy bronden cula dillers will $\overline{V} = 7.35^{\circ} Bcs$. Publicut l'Pieze. I'M' Thi-come roller bit uning air plue P2-111 at this bearin Simer valuing but PE-111 Augors ave an Rock @ 16.5 11:23 Burtonite seek up to 14' Home O. July 13:2 Take a break for Sench Auch てったやら 10:16 12:01 10:34 \$5:01 8

Mr Richer Farting - par Pake Humpson 53 やいっそ 15:33 Down to 31 : Have 5 more to go 15:33 Down to 31 : Have 5 more to go 15:57 Dewn to 36 - evel of EW/PW-IT for pletty Presence vs. Frem 60 to there are por marysis? (2) HF-10 1500 Down to 9 ~ 25' Locarton 15 20 Down to 9 ~ 25' 21-25-6 ti-md yesterday of connet gout left to set oronight. Had to act 8 Casing to 14 Aas in order to drive one it, i attach these percentism COREASTE/BONT. GROOT -28° CASINE IN ~10° Raik Sacket The B permanent cesing were set into save reduct 13:51 Emertgiant at ~ 3 bys! Lot of diving to do. - with Anger Hold TEX THENE 11 = 11 = 16.7 OPEN HOLE 18.6 1412 Down to Rock new. Will be increasing the existing took build from 324" to 778" clia. Si XX Arch/Ionza Zulloloz9/,02.01 الا رح _ 9 4 in the 4-MA ivil be deiling up water 111 Ē 111 Ξ 111 2 111 Emg 0 4 Putton of 8 months GREEND X B" FU STER Bebred もったもっち . 4. Casing 1 Suchet (52)

APPENDIX D

DETAILED COST ANALYSIS BACKUP

ITEM		COST
DIRECT CAPITAL COSTS		
Direct Cost Subtotal	\$	-
INDIRECT CAPITAL COSTS		
Project Management (@ 10 Percent)	\$	-
Remedial Design (none included)	\$	-
Construction Management (none included)	\$	-
Contingency (@ 15 Percent)	\$	-
Indirect Cost Subtotal	\$	-
TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS	\$	-
ANNUAL OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE COSTS		
OM&M of the Existing Groundwater Extraction System (years 1-30)	\$	228,000
Semiannual Monitoring and reporting (years 1-30)	\$	97,000
PRESENT WORTH OF ANNUAL AND PERIODIC COSTS (30 yrs)	\$	4,996,000
TOTAL PRESENT WORTH OF ALTERNATIVE 1 (30 yrs)	\$	4,996,000
NOTES:	Ψ	1,220,000

Table 9-2: Cost Summary for Alternative 1 - Continued Groundwater Extraction

Costs have been rounded to the nearest thousand. Costs based on annual inspection and reporting.

FS Report — Arch Chemicals, Inc. NYSDEC — Site No. 828018a AMEC E E, PC Project No. 3616176061

Alternative 1 - No Further Action: Continued Groundwater Extraction

Task	Description	Quantity	Unit of Measure	Material Unit Cost	Labor Unit Cost	Equipment Unit Cost	Extended Cost	Comments/ Assumptions
Subtask Assembly (1) CAPITAL COSTS None ALTERNATIVE ANNUAL AN	ND PERIODIC COSTS							
Annual OM&M of Groundwar Eng. Estimate	ter Extraction System: Years 1-30 T	ask Subtotal					\$ 228,417.01	Assume 30 years until asymptotic mass removal rates or RAOs achieved.
Long-Term Monitoring - Semi	annual Sampling and Reporting: Years	1-30						
Eng. Estimate	Т	ask Subtotal					\$ 97,000.00	Annual budgeted costs for semiannual monitoring and reporting.

Notes:

1) Assembly numbers presented indicate RACER/RS MEANS assembly code

APPENDIX D - COST TABLES

September 2019

PRESENT VALUE OF ANNUAL AND PERIODIC COSTS FOR ALTERNATIVE 1 (No Further Action: Continued Groundwater Extraction)

		Number	Annual	Number	5-Year	Number	10-Year	Total Non-	Present
		of Annual	Discount	of 5-Year	Discount	of 10-Year	Discount	Discounted	Value
Year	Cost*	Periods	Rate	Periods	Rate	Periods	Rate	Cost	Cost
Capital (Year 0)	\$ -	1	0	NA	NA	NA	NA	\$ -	\$ -
Annual Groundwater Extraction System OM&M (1-30)	\$ 228,000	30	0.05	NA	NA	NA	NA	\$ 6,840,000.00	\$ 3,504,918.83
Semiannual Monitoring (Years 1-30)	\$ 97,000	30	0.05	NA	NA	NA	NA	\$ 2,910,000.00	\$ 1,491,127.75
Totals								\$ 9,750,000.00	\$ 4,996,046.58

*Annual and periodic costs include 10% for technical support and 25% contingency for unforeseen project complexities, including insurance, taxes, and licensing costs.

Capital costs include 25% contingency, as well as and project management, remedial design, and construction management costs per DER-10 guidance.

Discount rate of 5% (for 30-years) percent based on NYSDEC PRAP Outline / Instructions.

ITEM		COST
DIRECT CAPITAL COSTS		
General Conditions	\$	39,000
Extraction Well Installation	\$	685,000
Direct Cost Subtotal	\$	724,000
INDIRECT CAPITAL COSTS		
Project Management (@ 6 Percent)	\$	44,000
Remedial Design (@ 12 Percent)	\$	87,000
Contingency (@ 15 Percent)	\$	58,000
Contingency (@ 25 Percent)	\$	181,000
Indirect Cost Subtotal	\$	370,000
TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS	\$	1,094,000
ANNUAL OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE COSTS		
Annual Groundwater Extraction System OM&M (1-25)	\$	355,000
Semiannual Monitoring (Years 1-30)	\$	97,000
DDESENT WODTH OF ANNUAL AND DEDIODIC COSTS (20 yms)	¢	5 917 000
I RESERT WORTH OF ANNUAL AND FERIODIC COSTS (30 yrs)	φ	3,917,000
TOTAL PRESENT WORTH OF ALTERNATIVE 2 (30 yrs)	\$	7,011,000

Table 9.3: Cost Summary for Alternative 2 – Install Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells

<u>NOTES:</u> Costs have been rounded to the nearest thousand.

4.1 Tables 10.1, 9.2-9.5 Costs_2015-03-24_mg

FS Report — Arch Chemicals, Inc. NYSDEC — Site No. 828018a AMEC E E, PC Project No. 3616176061

Alternative 2 – Install Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells

Task	Description	Quantity	Unit of Measure	M٤	aterial Unit Cost	L	abor Unit Cost	Equipment Unit Cost		Extended Cost		Comments/ Assumptions
Subtask				Adj	i 2009	Adj	2009 /vr)	Adj	2009 /yr)			No localized factor added. 4% Tax on Materials
ALTERNATIVE CAPIT	AL COSTS			, <i>3 1</i>	- , , 1)	J /0	· · J =)	(<i>J</i> / <i>l</i>	· · J = /			1
Conoral Conditions												
General Conditions				4-		¢	100.00	4-		*	00.000.0-	Assume 35 days oversight for site preparation, trenching, drilling, pump
F	Eng. Est Site Superintendent	280	HR	\$	-	\$	100.00	\$	-	\$	28,000.00	installation, electrical and instrumentation.
E	Eng. Est Temporary field office and utilities	1	LS	\$	1,000.00	\$	-	\$	-	\$	1,000.00	
F	Eng. Est Contractor Workplan	1 Subtat-1	LS	\$	-	\$	10,000.00	\$	-	\$	10,000.00	
	11	ISK SUDIOIAL								Ş	39,000.00	
Extraction Well Installation												Extraction well installation costs are based on an extraction well replacement bid by Matrix Environmental Technologies at Arch Chemical (March, 2010) and quotes from Directed Technologies Drilling, Inc.
Site Preparation												
Contingency (@ 15 ł	Percent)											
	Vendor Project Coordination	16	HR	\$	-	\$	88.00	\$	-	\$	1,408.00	
	Vendor Senior Remediation Technician	16	HR	\$	-	\$ ¢	70.00	\$	-	\$	1,120.00	
	Vendor Service Vehicle	16	HK	s ¢	-	\$ ¢	60.00	¢ ¢	-	\$ ¢	300.00	
		2	DAI	φ	-	φ	-	φ	130.00	ф	500.00	
Drilling and Install:	ation of Discharge Piping and Electrical for Extracti	on Wells										Days 30
	Vendor Mobilization/Demobilization	1	LS	\$	-	\$	25,000.00	\$	-	\$	25,000.00	
	Vendor Project Coordination	8	HR	\$	-	\$	88.00	\$	-	\$	704.00	
	Vendor Geologist	280	HR	\$	-	\$	70.00	\$	-	\$	19,600.00	
-	Vendor Senior Remediation Technician	280	HR	\$	-	\$	70.00	\$	-	\$	19,600.00	
	Vendor Remediation Technician	280	HR	\$	-	\$	60.00	\$ ¢	-	\$	16,800.00	
	vendor service venicie x2	35	DAY	\$	-	\$	-	Э	150.00	\$	5,250.00	Assuming \$230-275/foot hovering somewhere around \$240/ft estual
	Vendor Drilling	1270	FT			\$	240.00			\$	304,800.00	770' of well screen plus four 125-ft sloped bore holes to reach target well denth.
	Vendor Well seals and surface completion (w/ vault)	4	UNIT	\$	8,000.00					\$	32,000.00	nen aepun
X	Vendor Well Materials - screen	770	FT	\$	15.00	\$	-	\$	-	\$	11,550.00	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Vendor Well Materials - casing	600	FT	\$	10.00	\$	-	\$	-	\$	6,000.00	
	Vendor Fuel - Estimated	35	DAY	\$	75.00	\$	-	\$	-	\$	2,625.00	
	Vendor Plumbing, Electrical Wire and Pump Ends	2	BUDGET	\$	1,500.00			\$	-	\$	3,000.00	
	Vendor 2'x2' aluminum valve box (flush mount)	2	UNIT	\$	1,100.00	\$	-	\$	-	\$	2,200.00	
	Vendor Freight	2	BUDGET	\$	100.00	\$	-	\$	-	\$	200.00	
	vendor Concrete	4	BUDGET	\$ ¢	400.00	\$ ¢	-	\$ ¢	-	\$ ¢	1,600.00	
L Pumn Installation	Eng. Est remporary water Connection for drilling	1	DUDGEI	ф	5,000.00	ф	-	Ф	-	ф	5,000.00	
r unp mstanation												
	Vendor Pump Installation	2	LS	\$	2,500.00	\$	-	\$	-	\$	5,000.00	
Alternative 2 – Install Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells

Task	Description	Quantity	Unit of Measure	Ma	terial Unit	La	abor Unit Cost	1	Equipment Unit Cost	Ex	tended Cost	Comments/ Assumptions
Subtask	1	1	wieasure	Adj (3%	2009	Adj 2 (3%	2009 /vr)	Adj	2009	1		No localized factor added. 4% Tax on Materials
Transportation and Dispo	sal of Excavated Soil and Cuttings			(0 /0	· • • • • •	.0.10	,,,,,	(27)	,,,,,			Assume development water will be pumped to Arch's treatment plant from the driller provided frac tank.
Eng. Es	. Cutting T&D	62	TON	\$	115.88	\$	-	\$	-	\$	7,242.16	Assume non-hazardous industrial waste. 10" diameter cores, density of 2.9 g/cm3, conversion of .84 to tons per cy
Groundwater Treatment												
Eng Es	. Prefabricated treatment building	1500	SF	\$	45.26	\$	55.10	\$	15.63	\$	173,985.00	RS Means 2014 - 20' x 40' x 20' prefabricated steel building. Includes foundation plumbing mechanical and electrical
Eng Es	. Extraction Piping	1000	LF	\$	23.10	\$	15.63	\$	-	\$	38,730.00	Assume above ground and heat traced. It is assumed that there is an existing overhead utility pipe rack structure
	Ta	ask Subtotal								\$	684,674.16	that the pipe will be attached to.
ALTERNATIVE ANNUAL A	ND PERIODIC COSTS											
Annual OM&M of Groundwat	er Extraction System: Years 1-20											
												Assume 20 years until asymptotic mass removal rates or RAOs
Eng Es	. Routine OM&M	1	LS	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	206,667.01	achieved. Assumed 50% reduced flow from new wells> one changeout per year instead of 2. Half of \$43,500 for carbon change outs (2 in CY14) = 21 750
Eng Es	. Carbon Vessel Rental	12	MONTH	\$	-	\$	-	\$	1,500.00	\$	18,000.00	Estimate based on current facility costs
Eng Es	. Carbon Change Out	6	#/YEAR	\$	21,750.00	\$	-	\$	-	\$	130,500.00	Scaled based on 2 change outs / year at the current water treatment plant @ 30-35 gpm (New system flow assumed 100 gpm)
	Ta	ask Subtotal								\$	355,167.01	
Long-Term Monitoring - Semia	nnual Sampling and Reporting: Years 1-30											
Eng Es Notes:	. Та	ask Subtotal								\$	97,000.00	Annual costs for semiannual monitoring and reporting.

1) Assembly numbers presented indicate RACER/RS MEANS assembly code

APPENDIX D - COST TABLES

PRESENT VALUE OF ANNUAL AND PERIODIC COSTS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2 – Install Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells

		Number	Annual	Number	2-Year	Number	4-Year	Total Non-	Present
		of Annual	Discount	of 2-Year	Discount	of 4-Year	Discount	Discounted	Value
Year	Cost*	Periods	Rate	Periods	Rate	Periods	Rate	Cost	Cost
Capital (Year 0)	\$ 1,094,000	1	0	NA	NA	NA	NA	\$ 1,094,000.00	\$ 1,094,000.00
Annual Groundwater Extraction System OM&M (1-25)	\$ 355,167	20	0.05	NA	NA	NA	NA	\$ 7,103,340.20	\$ 4,426,165.99
Semiannual Monitoring (Years 1-30)	\$ 97,000	30	0.05	NA	NA	NA	NA	\$ 2,910,000.00	\$ 1,491,127.75
Totals								\$ 11,107,340.20	\$ 7,011,293.73

Capital costs include 25% contingency, as well as project management, remedial design, and construction management costs per DER-10 guidance.

Discount rate of 5% (for 30-years) percent based on NYSDEC PRAP Outline / Instructions.

ITEM	COST
DIRECT CAPITAL COSTS	
Hydraulic Fracturing Field Program	\$ 64,300
Extraction Well Installation	\$ 77,982
Direct Cost Subtotal	\$ 142,282
INDIRECT CAPITAL COSTS	
Project Management (@ 8 Percent)	\$ 11,000
Remedial Design (@ 15 Percent)	\$ 21,000
Contingency (@ 15 Percent)	\$ 14,000
Contingency (@ 25 Percent)	\$ 36,000
Indirect Cost Subtotal	\$ 82,000
TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS	\$ 224,282
ANNUAL OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE COSTS	
Annual Groundwater Extraction System OM&M (1-20)	\$ 228,000
Semiannual Monitoring (Years 1-30)	\$ 97,000
PRESENT WORTH OF ANNUAL AND PERIODIC COSTS (30 yrs)	\$ 4,581,000
TOTAL PRESENT WORTH OF ALTERNATIVE 3 (30 yrs)	\$ 4,805,000
NOTES:	

Table 9.4: Cost Summary for Alternative 3 - Hydraulic Fracturing and Additional Groundwater Extraction Wells

Costs have been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Costs based on annual inspection and reporting.

Alternative 4 - Enhanced Multiphase Extraction

Task	Description	Quantity	Unit of Measure	Ma	terial Unit Cost	L	abor Unit Cost	E U	quipment Jnit Cost	Ex	tended Cost	Comments/ Assumptions
Subtask				•								
Assembly (1)												
CAPITAL COSTS												
Hydraulic Fracturir	ng Field Program											Assume 12 hydraulic fracturing points on northern alignment and 12 on
fryuraune Fracturn												middle alignment (one point per 10 feet).
General Condition	15											
Eng. Est	Site Superintendent	120	HR	\$	-	\$	100.00	\$	-	\$	12,000.00	
Eng. Est	Temporary field office and utilities	1	LS	\$	1,000.00	\$	-	\$	-	\$	1,000.00	
Eng. Est	Contractor Workplan	1	LS	\$	-	\$	10,000.00	\$	-	\$	10,000.00	
Contingency (@ 1	5 Percent)											
Hydraulic Fracturi	ing											
Vendor	Mobilization & Demobilization	1	FΔ	\$	_	\$	_	\$	500.00	\$	500.00	
Vendor	Crew Site Safety Training	1	DAY	ф \$	-	\$	800.00	\$	-	ф \$	800.00	
Vendor	Drill & Crew (8 hours on site)	15	DAY	ф S		ф \$		ф \$	1 450 00	ф \$	21 750 00	Assume 2 points per day and 1 extra day per extraction well
Vendor	Temporary 4" casing	540	FT	ф S	15.00	\$		φ s	1,450.00	φ \$	8 100 00	27 points - assume other 3 will be developed as extraction wells
Vendor	Packer Equipment Rental	15	DAY	\$	-	\$	_	\$	150.00	\$	2 250 00	27 points - assume other 5 will be developed as extraction wells.
Vendor	Temporary Decontamination Pad	1	EA	ŝ	-	\$		\$	100.00	\$	100.00	
Vendor	Steam Cleaner Rental	3	WK	\$	-	\$	-	\$	250.00	\$	750.00	
Vendor	Portland Cement	81	BAG	\$	20.00	\$	-	\$		\$	1,620.00	3 per temporary point.
Vendor	55 Gallon Drums	54	EA	\$	-	\$	-	\$	45.00	\$	2,430.00	- F
Vendor	1000 Gallon Frac Tank Rental	3	WK	\$	-	\$	-	\$	1,000.00	\$	3,000.00	
		Task Subtotal								\$	64,300.00	
E-4	4-11-41											Entraction well installation costs are based on an autoration well
Extraction well ins	tanation											Extraction wen instantion costs are based on an extraction wen
												(March 2010)
												(Match, 2010).
Site Preparation												
•												
Vendor	Project Coordination	4	HR	\$	-	\$	88.00	\$	-	\$	352.00	
Vendor	Senior Remediation Technician	16	HR	\$	-	\$	70.00	\$	-	\$	1,120.00	
Vendor	Remediation Technician	16	HR	\$	-	\$	60.00	\$	-	\$	960.00	
Vendor	Service Vehicle	2	DAY	\$	-	\$	-	\$	150.00	\$	300.00	
Drilling and Ove	rsight Associated with Extraction W	Vell Installation										
Vendor	Project Coordination	8	HR	\$	-	\$	88.00	\$	-	\$	704.00	
Vendor	Geologist	40	HR	\$	-	\$	70.00	\$	-	\$	2,800.00	
Vendor	Service Vehicle	5	DAY	\$	-	\$	-	\$	150.00	\$	750.00	
Vendor	Drilling Subcontractor	1	LS	\$	-	\$	-	\$	4,971.00	\$	4,971.00	Based on Nothnagle budgetary estimate from August 3, 2011. Costs for
												mobilization and day rate already covered under hydrofracking field
												program.

Trenching and Installation of Discharge Piping and Electrical for Extraction Wells

Vendor Mobilization/Demobilization	1	IS	\$		\$	750.00	\$		\$	750.00	
Vendor Project Coordination	8	HR	ŝ	_	φ \$	88.00	\$	_	¢ \$	704.00	
Vendor Senior Remediation Technician	06	HD	¢	-	¢	70.00	¢	-	¢	6 720 00	
Vendor Remediation Technician	96	HR	\$	_	\$	60.00	\$	_	\$	5 760 00	
Vendor Service Vehicle x2	24	DAY	ŝ		\$	-	\$	150.00	¢ \$	3,600,00	
Vendor Backhoe	27	WK	\$	_	\$	_	\$	800.00	\$	2 400 00	
Vendor Excavator	3	WK	\$	-	\$	-	\$	1 000 00	\$	3 000 00	
Vendor Tamper	3	WK	\$		ŝ	_	\$	225.00	\$	675.00	
Vendor Fuel - Estimated	12	DAY	ŝ	75.00	ŝ	_	\$	-	ŝ	900.00	
Vendor Packfill	3	BUDGET	ŝ	400.00	Ψ		\$	-	\$	1 200 00	
Vendor Plumbing Electrical Wire and Pump Ends	3	BUDGET	ŝ	1 500 00			\$	-	\$	4 500 00	
Vendor 2'x2' aluminum valve box (flush mount)	3	UNIT	\$	1.100.00	\$	-	\$	-	\$	3.300.00	
Vendor Freight	3	BUDGET	\$	100.00	\$	-	\$	-	\$	300.00	
Vendor Concrete	3	BUDGET	\$	400.00	\$	-	\$	-	\$	1,200.00	
Pump Installation											
Vendor Pump Installation	3	LS	\$	-	\$	9,900.00	\$	-	\$	29,700.00	
Transportation and Disposal of Excavated Soil and Cuttings											Assume development water will be pumped to Arch's treatment plant from the driller provided frac tank.
Eng. Est. Excavated Soil T&D	1	TON	\$	115.88	\$	_	\$	_	\$	115.88	Assume non-hazardous industrial waste
Eng. Est. Cuttings T&D	6	DRUM	\$	200.00	\$	-	\$	-	\$	1,200.00	Assume non-hazardous industrial waste.
Task Subtotal									\$	77 981 88	
									Ψ	77,901.00	
ALTERNATIVE ANNUAL AND PERIODIC COSTS											
Annual OM&M of Groundwater Extraction System: Years 1-25											
Eng. Estimate Task Subtotal									\$	228,417.01	Assume 25 years until asymptotic mass removal rates or RAOs achieved.
Long-Term Monitoring - Semiannual Sampling and Reporting: Years 1-	30										
Eng. Estimate Task Subtotal									\$	97,000.00	Annual costs for semiannual monitoring and reporting.
1) Assembly numbers presented indicate RACER/RS MFANS assembly coo	le										

APPENDIX D - COST TABLES

September 2019

PRESENT VALUE OF ANNUAL AND PERIODIC COSTS FOR ALTERNATIVE 3: Hydraulic Fracturing and Additional Groundwater Extraction Wells

		Number	Annual	Number	5-Year	Number	10-Year		Total Non-		Present
		of Annual	Discount	of 5-Year	Discount	of 10-Year	Discount	Discounted		Value	
Year	Cost*	Periods	Rate	Periods	Rate	Periods	Rate		Cost		Cost
Capital (Year 0)	\$ 224,28	1	0	NA	NA	NA	NA	\$	224,281.88	\$	224,281.88
Annual Groundwater Extraction System OM&M (1-20)	\$ 228,00	25	0.05	NA	NA	NA	NA	\$	5,700,000.00	\$	3,213,419.36
Semiannual Monitoring (Years 1-25)	\$ 97,00	25	0.05	NA	NA	NA	NA	\$	2,425,000.00	\$	1,367,112.62
Totals								\$	8,349,281.88	\$	4,804,813.87

Capital costs include 25% contingency, as well as and project management, remedial design, and construction management costs per DER-10 guidance.

Discount rate of 5% (for 30-years) percent based on NYSDEC PRAP Outline / Instructions.

		Alternative	Alternative	Alternative
Item	Description	1	2	3
1	Capital Costs	\$ -	\$ 1,094,000	\$ 224,282
2	Present Worth of Annual and Periodic Costs	\$ 4,996,000	\$ 5,917,000	\$ 4,581,000
3	Total Present Worth (Item 1 plus 2)	\$ 4,996,000	\$ 7,011,000	\$ 4,805,000
4	Annual Costs Years 1 through 15	\$ 325,000	\$ 452,000	\$ 325,000
5	Annual Costs Years 16 through 20	\$ 325,000	\$ 452,000	\$ 325,000
6	Annual Costs Years 21 through 25	\$ 325,000	\$ 97,000	\$ 325,000
7	Annual Costs Years 26 through 30	\$ 325,000	\$ 97,000	\$ 97,000
8	Remedial Timeframe (yrs) (Note 3)	30	30	30

Table 10.1: Summary of Remedial Alternative Costs

Notes:

1. Present Worth costs shown above are based upon the assumed Remedial Timeframe.

2. Annual and Periodic Costs (Item 2, 4 - 7) presented are non-discounted (future) costs.

3. Estimated costs presented in this table are intended to be within the target accuracy range of minus 30 to plus 50 percent of actual cost.

Alternative Descriptions:

1 = Continued Groundwater Extraction

2 = Install Horizontal Groundwater Extraction Wells

3 = Hydraulic Fracturing and Additional Groundwater Extraction Wells

Groundwater

Net Total Costs	Act. cumulated	
	1.24	
5030050 SAFETY SUPPLIES	1.24	
5030060 POLLUTION SUPPLIES	66,624.98	calgon
5030090 SUPPLIES, INDIRECT	668.72	
5040010 MINOR MTLS(MIN.PROP)	1,016.78	
** SUPPLIES	68,311.72	
5055150 MAINT MATL -WH ISSUE	5,503.30	see tab
5325010 CONTR SVC-MAINTNANCE	9,385.06	see tab
9005020 Maintcont-w/o to cc	26,094.40	see tab
9005030 Maintsvcs-w/o to cc	31,209.75	see tab
9005040 Maintmat-w/o to cc	21,346.32	see tab
* MAINTENANCE MAT;CONT;SVC	Contingency (@ 1	15 Percent)
** MAINTENANCE MAT;CONT;SVC	93,538.83	
5327990 CONTR SVC-OTHER	82,469.50	mactec reserve
** CONTRACT SERVICES	82,469.50	
5730010 DEPRECIATION	7,420.53	
** DEPRECIATION	7,420.53	
5712010 TAXES-MISCELLANEOUS	55,115.93	Groundwater Surcharge from Monroe County
** TAXES AND INSURANCES	55,115.93	- · · ·
5810010 RENT-EQUIPMENT	4,800.00	rain for rent
** RENTALS	4,800.00	
5068010 DEMURRAGE - TRUCK	650.00	calgon
** DETENTION & SWITCHING CHGS	650.00	C .
5329010 LABORATORY FEES	(1.420.00)	
** OTHER EXPENSE	(1.420.00)	
*** TOTAL DIRECT SPENDING	310,886.51	

<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>		
<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>		
 March 11, 2010 Ms. Francien Trubia Environmental Specialist 100 McKee Road Rochester, NY, 14033 RF: 2010 Proposal for Well Replacement and Connection Arch Chemicals 100 McKee Road Rochester, New York 14003 Matrix Project #04-029 Dear Ms. Trubia: At the request of Arch Chemicals, Matrix Environmental Technologies Inc. is pleased to provide the following proposal for installing a new pumping well and connecting if to the existing piping network associated with the groundwater treatment system at the above referenced facility. In order to gain access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link fence. The fince will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will be installed by Nothmagle Drilling. Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a newp younging well to the location of the elevtricul and extend to the location of the new pumping well. The existing lotalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new young line decision of the lacetion in twill be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the pump well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new young well to the location of the alevitical matterial and the surface will be restored to matche actions of the beackfilled with native material and the surface will be restored for your review. Matrix Environmentals 'mot to exceed' cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a completent and tratched cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in his proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt o	March 11 2010	
 Ms. Francien Trubia Environmental Specialist 100 McKee Road Rochester, NY, 14603 RE: 2010 Proposal for Well Replacement and Connection Arch Chemicals 100 McKee Road Rochester, Nev York 14603 Matrix Project #04-029 Dear Ms. Trubia: At the request of Arch Chemicals, Matrix Environmental Technologies Inc. is pleased to provide the following proposal for installing a new pumping well and connecting it to the existing piping network ascess to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link france. The finance of the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link france. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located new PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to temporative as the value box for protection. The discharge piping to the new pumping well will be installed by work on this project will be restored to matche will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located mer PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to ecomplete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and to the location of the new well. In order to complete these connections is will be installed around the valve box for protection. This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a completent of professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Pa	March 11, 2010	IVIATRIX
Ms. Francien Trubia Environmental Specialist 100 McKee Road Rochester, NY, 14603 RE: 2010 Proposal for Well Replacement and Connection Arch Chemicals 100 McKee Road Rochester, New York 14603 Matrix Project #04-029 Dear Ms. Trubia: At the request of Arch Chemicals, Matrix Environmental Technologies Inc. is pleased to provide the following proposal for installing a new pumping well and connecting it to the existing piping network associated with the groundwater treatment system at the above referenced facility. In order to gain access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link frace. The fence will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will be installed by Notimagle Drilling, Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby wult that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the project well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and totatizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.		Environmental Technologies In
 Divide and Park, NY, 14603 RE: 2010 Proposal for Well Replacement and Connection Arch Chemicals 100 McKee Road Rochester, New York 14603 Matrix Project #04-029 Dear Ms. Trubia: At the request of Arch Chemicals, Matrix Environmental Technologies Inc. is pleased to provide the following proposal for installing a new pumping well and connecting it to the existing pingn network associated with the groundwater treatment system at the above referenced facility. In order to gain access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link fence. The face will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will be installed by Nothmagle Drilling, Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and totalizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a completent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specifie	Ms. Francien Trubia	3730 California Road
 Rochester, NY, 1403 Weit: (718) 463-0745 Weit: T181 463-0745 Dear M5. Trubia: At the request of Arch Chemicals, Matrix Environmental Technologies Inc. is pleased to provide the following proposal for installing a new pumping well and connecting it to the existing piping network associated with the groundwater treatment system at the above referenced facility. In order to gain access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link fence. The fence will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will be installed by Nothnagle Drilling, Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new yumping well to be location of the electrical and toatizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a completent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordneace with the rates professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordneace with the rates professional manner consistent with standard indus	100 McKee Road	P.O. Box 427 Orchard Park, N.Y. 14127-0427
RE: 2010 Proposal for Well Replacement and Connection Arch Chemicals 100 McKee Road Rochester, New York 14603 Matrix Project #04-029 Dear Ms. Trubia: At the request of Arch Chemicals, Matrix Environmental Technologies Inc. is pleased to provide the following proposal for installing a new pumping well and connecting it to the existing piping network associated with the groundwater treatment system at the above referenced facility. In order to gain access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link fence. The fence will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will be installed by Nothnagle Drilling, Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the essisting electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the new pump well. The existing totalizer and associated with grow PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow tench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and totalizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native materials incomed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	Rochester, NY, 14603	Voice: (716) 662-0745
RE: 2010 Proposal for Well Replacement and Connection Arch Chemicals 100 McKee Road Rochester, New York 14603 Matrix Project #04-029 Dear Ms. Trubia: At the request of Arch Chemicals, Matrix Environmental Technologies Inc. is pleased to provide the following proposal for installing a new pumping well and connecting it to the existing piping network associated with the groundwater treatment system at the above referenced facility. In order to gain access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link fence. The fence will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will be installed by Nothnagle Drilling, Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vauit that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the new pump well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and totalizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days fo		Fax: (716) 662-0946 www.matrixbiotech.com
 NO McKee Road Rochester, New York 14603 Matrix Project #04-029 hear Ms. Trubia: the request of Arch Chemicals, Matrix Environmental Technologies Inc. is pleased to provide the oblowing proposal for installing a new pumping well and connecting it to the existing piping network ssociated with the groundwater treatment system at the above referenced facility. In order to gain ccess to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link fence. he fence will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will be statled by Nothnagle Drilling. Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised y a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. he discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a earby vauit that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump fill be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the ne ump well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new earby vauit that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump fill be pulled from the existing electrical and totalizer associated with PW11. The trench and ace valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match sixting surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection his proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for our review. Matrix Environmentati's work on this project will be performed in a competent and rofessional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the tached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the tase specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are ne	E: 2010 Proposal for Well Replacement and Connection	
Rochester, New York 14603 Matrix Project #04-029 Dear Ms. Trubia: At the request of Arch Chemicals, Matrix Environmental Technologies Inc. is pleased to provide the following proposal for installing a new pumping well and connecting it to the existing piping network associated with the groundwater treatment system at the above referenced facility. In order to gain access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link fence. The fence will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will be installed by Nothnagle Drilling, Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the new pump well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	100 McKee Road	
Matrix Project #04-029 Dear Ms. Trubia: At the request of Arch Chemicals, Matrix Environmental Technologies Inc. is pleased to provide the following proposal for installing a new pumping well and connecting it to the existing piping network associated with the groundwater treatment system at the above referenced facility. In order to gain access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link fence. The fence will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will b installed by Nothnagle Drilling, Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and toatizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoice according to the rester specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	Rochester, New York 14603	
Dear Ms. Trubia: At the request of Arch Chemicals, Matrix Environmental Technologies Inc. is pleased to provide the following proposal for installing a new pumping well and connecting it to the existing piping network associated with the groundwater treatment system at the above referenced facility. In order to gain access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link fence. The fence will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will be installed by Nothnagle Drilling, Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new pump well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the statched cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	Matrix Project #04-029	
At the request of Arch Chemicals, Matrix Environmental Technologies Inc. is pleased to provide the following proposal for installing a new pumping well and connecting it to the existing piping network associated with the groundwater treatment system at the above referenced facility. In order to gain access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link fence. The fence will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will be installed by Nothnagle Drilling, Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the evisiting surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection. This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be invoiced according to the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	Dear Ms. Trubia:	
The discharge pipping for installing a new pumping well and connecting it to the existing piping network associated with the groundwater treatment system at the above referenced facility. In order to gain access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link fence. The fence will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the new pumping well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection. This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	At the request of Arch Chemicals Matrix Environmental Technol	ogies Inc. is pleased to provide the
associated with the groundwater treatment system at the above referenced facility. In order to gain access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link fence. The fence will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will be installed by Nothnagle Drilling, Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the new pump well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and totalizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	following proposal for installing a new pumping well and connect	ting it to the existing piping network
access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remove a section of the chain link fence. The fence will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The new pumping well will be installed by Nothnagle Drilling, Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the ne pump well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and toatlizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a completent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	associated with the groundwater treatment system at the above ref	ferenced facility. In order to gain
The rence will be replaced immediately upon completion of the project. The hew plumping well will be installed by Nothnagle Drilling, Inc. of Scottsville, NY. The installation of the well will be supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the ne pump well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and toatlizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	access to the new location it will be necessary to temporarily remained	ove a section of the chain link fence.
Instanced of Normagic Driming, int. or seconstruct, NTP. The instantion of the went with ce supervised by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by MACTEC Engineering. The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the new pump well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and toatlizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	installed by Nothnagle Drilling Inc. of Scottsville NV. The installed	ollation of the well will be supervised
The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the new pumping well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and toatiizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection. This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	by a qualified scientist from Matrix Environmental as directed by	MACTEC Engineering.
The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected to existing piping located inside a nearby vault that was recently decommissioned in November 2009. Electric for operation of the pump will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the new pump well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and totalizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection. This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.		
Will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW11 and extend to the location of the pulp well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and toatlizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	The discharge piping for the new pumping well will be connected nearby you't that was recently decommissioned in November 200	to existing piping located inside a
pump well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW11 will also be utilized for the new well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and toatlizer associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	will be pulled from the existing electrical panel located near PW1	1 and extend to the location of the ne
well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary to complete a shallow trench from the new pumping well to the location of the electrical and toatlizer associated with PW11. The trench and he valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection. This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the ates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	nump well. The existing totalizer and associated wiring from PW	11 will also be utilized for the new
hew pumping wen to the location of the electrical and to an 24 associated with PW11. The trench and the valve box areas will be backfilled with native material and the surface will be restored to match existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection. This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	well. In order to complete these connections it will be necessary t	to complete a shallow trench from the
existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the valve box for protection This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	new pumping well to the location of the electrical and toatilizer as the value box areas will be backfilled with native material and the	sociated with P w 11. The trench and
This proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	existing surroundings. A concrete pad will be installed around the	e valve box for protection
Ins proposal includes a detailed time and materials "not to exceed" cost estimate attached for your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will be performed in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.		12
your review. Harris Environmental's work on this project will be profined in a competent and professional manner consistent with standard industry practices and in accordance with the attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	This proposal includes a detailed time and materials 'not to excee your review. Matrix Environmental's work on this project will h	a cost estimate attached for
attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope will be invoiced according to the rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	professional manner consistent with standard industry practices an	nd in accordance with the
rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment terms are net 30 days following receipt of invoice.	attached cost estimate and assumptions. Any change in scope wil	l be invoiced according to the
receipt of invoice.	rates specified in this proposal as authorized by Arch. Payment te	erms are net 30 days following
	receipt of invoice.	

Optional equipment for previous pump installation by Matrix:

One (1) Grundfos model 10E11 electric submersible well pump with 3/4 HP 230V/1P motor; 10 GPM at 60 PSI

- One (1) 65' length of tow wire TEFZEL motor lead
- One (1) 65' length of steel support cable
- One (1) 65' length of 1" discharge hose with cam lock fittings

One (1) 4" well cap

- One (1) Warrick level probe assembly:
 - Neutral level probe with 55' of wire
 - High level pump control with 55' of wire *discrete output*
 - Low level pump control with 55' of wire *discrete output*
 - High level alarm with 55' of wire *discrete output*

Control System Module:

RELAY Series Relay Logic based control panel with the following features:

- UL certification
- NEMA4 lockable panel enclosure
- Inner swing panel
- Primary circuit protection using external fused main disconnect
- Surge and lightning protection for control system
- Main power block
- Branch circuit protection with circuit breakers for motors
- Motor starters with overload protection
- Branch circuit protection with circuit breakers for powered devices
- Warrick pump controller
- Wired and factory tested prior to shipping

Outside cover of inner swing panel to contain the following:

- HOA switches with green run lights
- Red alarm indicator lights
- Alarm reset button
- Emergency stop button

Total Cost of Optional Equipment:

\$ 9,900.00

NOTHNAGLE DRILLING, INC.

1821 Scottsville-Mumford Road Scottsville, New York 14546 (585) 538-2328 Fax (585) 538-2357

July 26, 2011

AMEC Environment & Infrastructure 511 Congress St. Portland, ME 04101 RE: Drilling Services Rochester, NY

ATTN: Mr. Brandon Newman

Contingency (@ 15 Percent)

Dear Brandon:

Below please find applicable unit costs to perform drilling services at the above referenced location.

	EST.			EST.
	QTY.	COST	UNIT	EXTENSION
1. Mobilization & Demobilization	1	\$500.00	Ea	\$ 500.00
2. Crew Site Safety Training	1	\$800.00	Day	800.00
3. Drill & Crew (8 hours on site)	5	\$1,450.00	Day	7,250.00
4. 6" pipe installed	60	\$26.00	Ft	1,560.00
5. Packer Equipment Rental	5	\$150.00	Day	750.00
6. Temporary Decontamination Pad	1	\$100.00	Ea	100.00
7. Steam Cleaner Rental	1	\$250.00	Week	250.00
8. Portland Cement	15	\$20.00	bag	300.00
9. 55 Gallon Drums	6	\$45.00	Ea	270.00
10. 1000 Gallon Frac Tank Rental	1	\$1,000.00	Wk.	1,000.00
	тот	AL ESTIMAT	ED COST :	\$ 12,780.00

We have assumed that all borings are accessible to a truck mounted drill rig. All waste generated during the project will be left neatly on site for disposal by others.

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal.

Sincerely,

Timothy M. Nothnagle President

NOTHNAGLE DRILLING, INC.

1821 Scottsville-Mumford Road Scottsville, New York 14546 (585) 538-2328 Fax (585) 538-2357

August 3, 2011

AMEC Environment & Infrastructure 511 Congress St. Portland, ME 04101 RE: Drilling Services Rochester, NY

ATTN: Mr. Brandon Newman

Contingency (@ 15 Percent)

Dear Brandon:

Below please find applicable unit costs to perform drilling services at the above referenced location.

	EST.			EST.
	QTY.	COST	UNIT	EXTENSION
 Mobilization & Demobilization 	1	\$900.00	Ea	\$ 900.00
2. Drill & Crew (8 hours on site)	9	\$1,500.00	Day	13,500.00
3. Temporary 10" Casing	60	\$15.00	Ft.	900.00
3. 6" Pipe Installed	66	\$26.00	Ft	1,716.00
4. Locking Royer Cap	3	\$45.00	Ea	135.00
5. Temporary Decontamination Pad	1	\$150.00	Ea	150.00
6. Steam Cleaner Rental	9	\$50.00	Day	450.00
7. Portland Cement	36	\$20.00	Bag	720.00
8. 55 Gallon Drums	20	\$45.00	Ea	900.00

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST : \$ 19,371.00

We propose to drill with 10.25" hollow stem augers, set a temporary 10" casing, drill a 9 7/8" rock socket, and grout in permanent 6' casing. After grout set time a 5 7/8" rotary hole shall be advanced to total depth.

We have assumed that all wells are available to truck mounted equipment. All waste generated during the project will be left neatly on site for disposal by others.

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal.

Sincerely,

Timothy M. Nothnagle President

NOTHNAGLE DRILLING, INC.

1821 Scottsville-Mumford Road Scottsville, New York 14546 (585) 538-2328 Fax (585) 538-2357

August 4, 2011

AMEC Environment & Infrastructure 511 Congress St. Portland, ME 04101 RE: Drilling Services Rochester, NY

ATTN: Mr. Brandon Newman

Contingency (@ 15 Percent)

Dear Brandon:

Below please find applicable unit costs to perform drilling services at the above referenced location.

	EST. QTY.	COST	UNIT	E	EST. XTENSION			
 Supply and install pump plumbing flow meter, and electric for pump test 	2	\$320.00	Ea	\$	640.00			
2. Remove pump & plumbing after test	2	\$320.00	Ea		640.00			
3. Generator rental / 8 hour shift	6	\$95.00	Shift		570.00			
4. Labor to conduct pump test (24 hour)	48	\$75.00	Hr.		3,600.00			
	TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: \$ 5,							

All waste generated during the project will be left neatly on site for disposal by others.

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal.

Sincerely,

Timothy M. Nothnagle President